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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”),
| am pleased to present the annual report of Jiyi Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“FY2022" or the
“Reporting Period”), together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021").

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the management team continued to
put forth significant effort in fostering its existing businesses and
actively seeking for new business opportunities, recovering and
catching up with the Group's revenue and net profits, which had
been negatively impacted by the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19")
epidemic and from the intense market competition as a result
of market recovery. The Company sought to expand its sale and
distribution of merchandise business segment by entering the
business of bulk commodity trading. As a result, the Group'’s
revenue and gross profit had an increase in this year. In FY2022,
the provision of interior design and building engineering services
segment accounted for 5% of the total revenue (2021: 19%),
while the sale and distribution of merchandise segment accounted
for 95% of the total revenue (2021: 81%).

Provision of interior design and building engineering
services

The business segment of the provision of interior design and
building engineering services was severely impacted by the
recession in the real estate and property development industry in
China which had delayed the progress of various interior design
and building engineering projects. This led to a decrease in revenue
in the provision of interior design and building engineering
services segment. The revenue generated from the provision of
interior design and building engineering services decreased by
approximately RMB58.0 million or approximately 67.1%, from
approximately RMB86.5 million in FY2021 to approximately
RMB28.5 million in FY2022. The Group also recorded a decrease
in gross profit of approximately RMB11.5 million or approximately
65.0%, from approximately RMB17.7 million in FY2021 to
approximately RMB6.2 million in FY2022. The gross profit margin
increased from approximately 20.5% in FY2021 to approximately
21.7% in FY2022.
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Sale and distribution of merchandise

The sale and distribution of merchandise remained a stable source
of revenue to the Group. In FY2022, the Group experienced
an overall increase of approximately RMB159.6 million or
approximately 42.9% in revenue from the sale and distribution
of merchandise from approximately RMB371.7 million in FY2021
to approximately RMB531.3 million in FY2022, in particular, the
revenue generated from bulk commodity trading had an increase
of approximately RMB209.1 million, which was offset by the
decrease in revenue generated from the sale of building materials
of approximately RMB41.4 million during the Reporting Period. The
Group also recorded an increase in gross profit of approximately
RMB14.2 million or approximately 143.4%, from approximately
RMB9.9 million in FY2021 to approximately RMB24.1 million in
FY2022. The gross profit margin increased from approximately
2.7% in FY2021 to approximately 4.5% in FY2022.

Overall, the Group recorded a consolidated net loss of
approximately RMB39.9 million for FY2022, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB47.8 million or approximately
607.6% as compared with consolidated net profit of approximately
RMB7.9 million for FY2021. Such decrease was mainly resulted
from the net effect of the increase in share-based payment
expenses of approximately RMB11.6 million, the increase in the
provision for impairment losses under expected credit loss model,
net of approximately RMB27.0 million, the decrease in other
income of approximately RMB13.4 million, offset by increase in
gross profit of approximately RMB2.7 million as well as the decrease
in finance costs of approximately RMB4.4 million.
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PROSPECTS

The year 2022 was marked by persistent challenges to the global
economy, resulting from the prolonged negative economic impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic and geopolitical tensions that affected
international trade. The pandemic’s resurgence in China led to
temporary store closures and construction suspensions, which
negatively impacted our business performance. Additionally, a
slowdown in the property market eroded buyers’ confidence,
resulting in delays in new project development and decreased
capital investments from real estate investors.

To address these challenges, the Group’s management team
implemented a multi-pronged strategy that included expanding
into new markets, optimizing cost structures, and pursuing new
business opportunities. For example, the Group diversified its sales
and distribution channels by venturing into international bulk
commodity trading, leveraging its experience and cost advantages
to achieve success in this field. The Group also secured new
Engineering, Procurement, and Construction (EPC) projects in
several cities in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area, which included the construction of solar-powered motor
charging stations and several corporate construction projects. This
success has significantly increased our confidence in securing new
project tenders and business opportunities with corporate and
governmental clients.

Looking ahead, the Group plans to further expand its presence in
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, particularly
in new energy supply chain and bulk commodity trading, where it
sees promising growth potential. The Group remains committed
to expanding its online distribution and e-marketing channels,
utilizing cutting-edge technologies such as artificial intelligence to
sell and distribute building materials, home improvement supplies,
and furniture. Moreover, the Group is actively seeking investment
opportunities to bolster its service capabilities and capacity in the
merchandise sale and distribution business segment by leveraging
digital transformation initiatives across traditional distribution
channels. Our overarching aim is to increase our market share and
scale of sales, generating sustainable benefits for both the Group
and our valued shareholders.
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CHAIRLADY'S STATEMENT
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Regarding the Group's capital market strategy, we successfully
completed seven placements of new shares under general mandate
in 2022, raising approximately HK$241.4 million to bolster our
financial position and foundation, and facilitate future business
growth and development. The capital was allocated towards its
intended purpose and has positively impacted our operations. The
Group will remain focused on raising capital and proactively seek
out strategic relationships with external investors to support new
and existing business development and expansion.

We anticipate that the reopening of the border between Hong
Kong and Mainland China, coupled with the relaxation of
protective measures against the COVID-19 pandemic in Mainland
China, will result in a rebound of business activities and economic
conditions. This expected recovery is a positive development
that is likely to enhance our business performance. The Group is
dedicated to adhering to our pragmatic and enterprising approach
in executing our business strategies, continually searching for fresh
opportunities to maximize value for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our management and all committed staff members for their
contributions to the Group and the shareholders, valued customers,
suppliers, and other business partners for their continuous support.
Our success would not have been possible without their dedication,
contributions, efforts, time and confidence.

Yours sincerely,

Hou Wei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue by business operations

The Group is a well-established integrated building and home
improvement materials and furnishings supplier and interior design
and building engineering services provider in the PRC. The Group is
mainly engaged in the sale and distribution of merchandise and the
provision of interior design and building engineering services.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue by the
Group's business segments for the Reporting Period with the
comparative figures of FY2021:

EEE &S

A #5501 8
BREBEEIIHEA

FEERTHEARBRNGGERERREEE
MEURKEHEIREARS RERTRE
REBMER cERTEZNFHEHRDFHB M
RRHERR R TRERS

RN EHE > RAEBEF D EE D
U AR BRI S —HMBREEZ LERH

=a .

¥

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLFE

Sale and distribution of merchandise 45 &7 847 @
— Building materials — &M

— Home improvement materials —XBEEMK
— Furnishings —fxE

— Bulk commodity trading* —RREmE2*
Provision of services AR

— Interior design services —EANRTIRT
— Building engineering services —RETREIR
Total wast

2022 2021 Changes
—E-= BT k)
RMB’000 RMB'000 %
AR¥ T ANEBEFT
28,389 69,786 (59.3)
2,043 10,653 (80.8)
6,424 5,995 7.2
494,450 285,314 7/53e3)
531,306 371,748 429
2,224 21,322 (89.6)
26,233 65,226 (59.8)
28,457 86,548 (67.1)
559,763 458,296 22.1
E—ERERAR
—EC"FFR 009



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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£3 During the year ended 31 December 2021, included in the balance of
approximately RMB33,342,000 of the bulk commaodity trading was sold
to the entities who were related parties of the Group’s Suppliers of bulk

commaodity trading.

Total revenue of the Group increased by approximately RMB101.5
million or approximately 22.1% from approximately RMB458.3
million for FY2021 to approximately RMB559.8 million for FY2022.
Such increase was mainly attributed to the increase in revenue
from the provision of sale and distribution of furnishings and bulk
commodity trading during the Reporting Period.

Revenue from sale of and distribution of merchandise

Revenue of the Group from sale and distribution of merchandise,
comprising (i) sale of building materials; (ii) sale of home
improvement materials; (iii) sale of furnishings; and (iv) bulk
commodity trading, recorded an overall increase by approximately
RMB159.6 million or approximately 42.9% from approximately
RMB371.7 million for FY2021 to approximately RMB531.3 million
for FY2022. The overall increase was a combined result of the
followings:

Sale of building materials

Revenue generated from the sale of building materials decreased
by approximately RMB41.4 million or approximately 59.3% from
approximately RMB69.8 million for FY2021 to approximately
RMB28.4 million for FY2022. Such decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in sales of cement, offset by the increase in sales of
aluminum alloy during the Reporting Period.

Sale of home improvement materials

Revenue generated from the sale of home improvement materials
decreased by approximately RMB8.6 million or approximately
80.8% from approximately RMB10.6 million for FY2021 to
approximately RMB2.0 million for FY2022. The decrease was mainly
due to the decrease in sales of paint and other home improvement
products during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Sale of furnishings

Revenue generated from the sale of furnishings increased by
approximately RMB0.4 million or approximately 7.2% from
approximately RMB6.0 million for FY2021 to approximately
RMB6.4 million for FY2022. Such increase was mainly due to
the increase in sales of electronic products and home decoration
products during the Reporting Period.

Bulk commodity trading

Revenue generated from the bulk commodity trading increased
by approximately RMB209.1 million or approximately 73.3% from
approximately RMB285.3 million for FY2021 to approximately
RMB494.4 million for FY2022. Such increase was mainly due to the
increase in sales of electrolytic copper and aluminum ingot products
during the Reporting Period.

Revenue from provision of services

Revenue from provision of interior design and building engineering
services decreased by approximately RMB58.0 million or
approximately 67.1% from approximately RMB86.5 million for
FY2021 to approximately RMB28.5 million for FY2022. Such
decrease was due to a decline in the scale of corporate projects,
as well as a delay in the stage of completion of some construction
engineering projects as a result of COVID-19 during the Reporting
Period. However, the Board is optimistic in continuing to expand
this business segment in the coming years, given the number and
scale of future projects that are currently under negotiation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth the breakdown of gross profit and
gross profit margin by the Group's business segments for the
Reporting Period with the comparative figures of FY2021:

ENREFE

TREHINHESHRE > REEBEFDEE D
MENKREFN KB ER _T-_—HHFE
ZHEBHF .

For the year ended 31 December

#E+ZA=+-HLEE

2022 2021
—E-C B %
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin Gross profit margin
] ERE e ERE
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
AREFT NEBFT
Sale and distribution of merchandise HERDHEE® 24,133 45 9,880 27
Provision of interior design and building REENZHARERTRE
engineering services R 6,186 21.7 17,700 205
Total 45t 30,319 5.4 27,580 6.0

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately RMB101.5
million or approximately 22.1% from approximately RMB458.3
million for FY2021 to approximately RMB559.8 million for FY2022,
the Group'’s overall gross profit increased by approximately RMB2.7
million or approximately 9.9% from approximately RMB27.6 million
for FY2021 to approximately RMB30.3 million for FY2022. The
increase in the Group’s overall gross profit was mainly due to the
increase in the gross profit margin from the sale and distribution of
merchandise during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The gross profit margin of provision of interior design and building
engineering services increased from 20.5% for FY2021 to 21.7%
for the Reporting Period, owing to better management and
monitoring of construction progress which reduced construction
costs. With the increasing volume of corporate projects and the
expansion of market share, the Group believed that the gross profit
margin of this business will gradually rise and become more stable.

The gross profit margin of the business of sale and distribution of
merchandise increased from 2.7% for FY2021 to 4.5% for FY2022,
owing primarily to the increase in gross profit margin from the
business of bulk commodity trading during the Reporting Period.

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group’s selling expenses decreased by approximately RMBO. 1
million or approximately 1.9% from approximately RMB5.4 million
for FY2021 to approximately RMB5.3 million for the Reporting
Period. Such decrease was due to the closure of retail stores during
the Reporting Period.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by approximately
RMB1.3 million or approximately 9.4% from approximately
RMB14.5 million for FY2021 to approximately RMB15.8 million for
the Reporting Period. The increase was mainly due to the increase
in rental expenses and service fees.

Finance costs — net

The Group's net finance costs decreased by approximately RMB5.8
million or approximately 32.6% from approximately RMB17.8
million for FY2021 to approximately RMB12.0 million for the
Reporting Period. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
the finance costs arising from the convertible loan notes during the
Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

(Loss)/profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s loss was approximately
RMB39.9 million for the Reporting Period as compared to the profit
of approximately RMB7.9 million for FY2021.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB7.0 million (2021: RMB32.0 million)
mainly denominated in RMB and HK$. The Group also had a total
restricted cash balances of approximately RMBO0.2 million (2021:
RMB2.2 million) which was mainly related to security deposits
provided to secure certain bank borrowings. The decrease in total
cash and bank balances was mainly due to decrease in cash inflows
from collection of trade receivables during the Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB741.2 million, as compared to approximately
RMB490.6 million as at 31 December 2021.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no unutilised banking
facilities for short term financing (31 December 2021: Nil) and
total bank borrowings of approximately RMB232.0 million
(2021: RMB272.1 million). The total bank borrowings comprised
approximately RMB77.7 million (2021: RMB116.3 million) in
bank borrowings arising from discounted commercial bills and
discounted letters of credit that were not yet due.

Other than the bank borrowings arising from discounted
commercial bills and discounted letters of credit that were not yet
due, the bank borrowings of the Group were secured by property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The bank borrowings were also
jointly guaranteed by Ms. Hou Wei and Mr. Deng Jianshen, husband
of Ms. Hou Wei.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE &S

Details of the Group’s capital structure, in terms of among other
things, the maturity profile of debt and obligation and types of
capital instruments used as at 31 December 2022, are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group has no material capital expenditure during the Reporting
Period.

FINANCIAL RATIO

Current ratio” FRENEEZRO
Quick ratio®? ERE X

BARABLER(%)®
A LEER(%) @

Gearing ratio (%)%
Net debt to equity ratio (%)“

(1)  Current ratio is calculated as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

(2)  Quick ratio is calculated as total current assets less inventories and divided
by total current liabilities.

(3) Gearing ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total equity and
multiplied by 100%.

(4)  Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as total borrowings net of cash and
cash equivalents and restricted cash, and divided by total equity and
multiplied by 100%.

BERAEBEEAEE B (HHPEE) RZE
T IFE+R=+—HEBEEBEAEEIHBER
KFTERANERTRBERNMES) WEEBERER
B EHRRMIEE28

BARHX

AEFENREPBLEEREAML -

rpr S

As at

31 December
2022

+=8
=+-H

2.72
2.71
30.87
30.08

31 December
2021

2.02
2.01
50.9
46.0

(1) RBLEXRTIZRPEERERLURBERBERS

Ho

Q) BEHEXDRABHEERERFEBGRLURTEA
(EEEEEE

(B) BXRBELXTIZEIEEEMGERAZEE T
100%5t & o

(4) BEBERBLEDZREREE NBRRESRIES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

The Group had no material investment, acquisition and disposal
transactions during the Reporting Period.

UPDATES ON THE ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND
THE USE OF PROCEEDS

On 22 April 2019, the company entered into eight (8) subscription
agreements with the subscribers (the “Subscribers”) respectively,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue
and the Subscribers has respectively and conditionally agreed to
subscribe for the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$102,100,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). The issue
of the Convertible Bonds was completed on 25 June 2019. The
net proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds, which
amounted to approximately HK$101.6 million after deducting the
related professional fees and an related expenses, have already
been fully utilised during FY2019.

On 24 December 2021, the Company and the bondholders agreed
to extend the maturity date of the outstanding Convertible Bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$41,555,555 from 24
December 2021 to 31 August 2022 (the “Maturity Date”). Save for
the extension of the maturity date, all the terms and conditions of
the Convertible Bonds remain unchanged.

As of 30 June 2022, Convertible Bonds in the amount of
HK$60,544,445 have been converted into 60,544,445 conversion
shares by the bondholders, and the remaining Convertible Bonds
in the amount of HK$41,555,555 were outstanding (“Outstanding
Convertible Bonds”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at the date of this annual report, the Outstanding Convertible
Bonds have reached the Maturity Date. The Company and the
outstanding bondholder are in the course of negotiating for
a further extension of the Maturity Date and the outstanding
bondholder has indicated its intention to agree to an extension.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31
August 2022 and further announcement(s) to be made by the
Company as and when necessary in relation to the Outstanding
Convertible Bonds.

The extension of the Maturity Date, if realized, would allow the
Company to enjoy more flexibility when planning its financial
resources, as it would enable the Company to apply its financial
resources to fund its operation and/or business development,
especially when facing the challenges of the COVID-19 situation,
instead of repayment of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds by 31
August 2022 so as to maximise returns to the Shareholders.

For further details in relation to the Outstanding Convertible Bonds,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 24
December 2020, 31 December 2020, 24 June 2021, 24 December
2021 and 31 August 2022, the circular of the Company dated 26
January 2021, 30 July 2021 and 11 February 2022 in respect of the
EGM, and the poll result announcement dated 22 February 2021,
10 September 2021 and 7 March 2022 in respect of the EGM.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE
AND THE USE OF PROCEEDS

On 25 January 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total
of 28,022,000 placing shares to not less than six placees at the
placing price of HK$1.2 per placing shares pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the placing agreement signed between the
Company and the placing agent dated 30 November 2021. The net
proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and other related
expenses and professional fees) from the placing amounted to
approximately HK$33.1 million. Please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 30 November 2021, 20 December 2021, 11
January 2022, 12 January 2022 and 26 January 2022 for further
details.

On 15 March 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
48,000,000 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing
price of HK$0.9 per placing shares pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the placing agreement signed between the Company
and the placing agent dated 4 March 2022. The net proceeds (after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses and
professional fees) from the placing amounted to approximately
HK$42.6 million. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 4 March 2022, 8 March 2022, 11 January 2022
and 15 March 2022 for further details.

On 28 April 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
56,000,000 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing
price of HK$0.76 per placing shares pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the placing agreement signed between the Company
and the placing agent dated 22 April 2022. The net proceeds (after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses and
professional fees) from the placing amounted to approximately
HK$42 million. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 April 2022, 25 April 2022, and 28 April 2022 for further
details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 31 May 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
41,431,833 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing
price of HK$0.57 per placing shares pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the placing agreement signed between the Company
and the placing agent dated 20 May 2022. The net proceeds (after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses and
professional fees) from the placing amounted to approximately
HK$23.3 million. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 20 May 2022 and 31 May 2022 for further details.

On 27 July 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
73,230,000 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing
price of HK$0.55 per placing shares pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the placing agreement signed between the Company
and the placing agent dated 14 July 2022. The net proceeds (after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses and
professional fees) from the placing amounted to approximately
HK$39.7 million. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 14 July 2022 and 27 July 2022 for further details.

On 17 August 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
45,882,000 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing
price of HK$0.55 per placing shares pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the placing agreement signed between the Company
and the placing agent dated 3 August 2022. The net proceeds
(after deducting the placing commission and other related expenses
and professional fees) from the placing amounted to approximately
HK$24.9 million. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 3 August 2022 and 17 August 2022 for further
details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

On 22 September 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
95,362,000 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing
price of HK$0.38 per placing shares pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the placing agreement signed between the Company
and the placing agent dated 9 September 2022 (the “September
Placing”). The net proceeds (after deducting the placing
commission and other related expenses and professional fees) from
the placing amounted to approximately HK$35.9 million. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 9 September
2022 and 22 September 2022 (the “September Announcements”)
for further details.

Net Proceeds Raised Proposed use of proceeds
Date of Placing (Approximately) (Approximately)

N_E-__FNAZ+H > KAFREBEEA
BHEREEREBEMZEERPEAS _“FnA
NWBZEERZZRIARKGHEREEBER
o & BR1D0.38 B TE A LR N B A B ALK&
#¥175$£95,362, 000 FLER D ((HBRES
B ) FeEFHEZMSNIEFEE (KIMREE
RAEkHEMEEBEIREEERR) 54359
EEBT - E—THBERESHEARBNRBEAT
T _FhABABRIZEIZEAAZA+C
Az s ZERBALE)e

Actual and intended use of proceeds

EEZFREWIE
REEEHEAH PR (B149) FRGRRIRRERE (B4Y) FRSRIER IR R B E R &
25 January 2022 HK$33.1 million General working capital of the Group The amount has been used as intended.
- F BIAEEBET FEEZ—REEES ZTEORRERRER
—BZ+4AH
15 March 2022 HK$42.6 million (i) approximately HK$20 million for the (i) HK$20 million has been used as
repayment of trade and bill payables; intended.
BT fF £2.6B88BT () #20E8BTARNEEESZRERE () 208BBREREBTRRER-
=A+aH FEATTRIE ;
(i) approximately HK$20 million for the (i) HK$20 million has been used as
repayment of other borrowings; intended
(i) X20ESBTANEBAMER, () 208E8BTCRBTRRER-
(iii) approximately HK$2.6 million for (i) The amount has been used as
general working capital of the Group intended.
(i) M2.6EBBTARNEERZ K (i) ZELEERBTRRERH-
SEES
28 April 2022 HK$42 million Capital investment on new investment The amount has been used as intended.
opportunities
“E-F NREEETT MEEREZERKRE ZEHOERRERARER
ME—+/\H
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Date of Placing

REXEHEAMH
31 May 2022
2T F
HEE=+—H
27 July 2022
T HF
tBZ+tH

17 August 2022

T F

NB+tH

22 September 2022

T F

NBEZ+ZH

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net Proceeds Raised Proposed use of proceeds

(Approximately)

BEZFSTE

B (BE49)

HK$23.3 million

233EBBETT

HK$39.7 million

39.7EBBETT

HK$24.9 million

249 BBETT

HK$35.9 million

35.9R8BT

(Approximately)

FRISTRIERE & (§i49)

Working capital to expand existing
business segment of the sale and
distribution of merchandise

MERERBmFE RDEEH DI Z
SEES

Working capital to expand existing
business segment of the provision of
interior design and engineering services

MERREREHENR R IEREE
BoMz EEER

Working capital to expand existing
business segment of the provision of
interior design and engineering services

MERREREHENR G R IEREE
BoHz EEER

Repayment of the principal and interest
payables of the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds

BEANBHATEABRREZTZE
EREMFE

EEE &S

Actual and intended use of proceeds

The amount has been used as intended.

ZExRCRRERERER-

The amount has been used as intended.

ZExRCRBREREER

The amount has been used as intended.

ZExRCRBREREER-

Approximately HK$35.9 million has
been reallocated and utilised towards
expansion of the existing business
segment of the sale and distribution of
merchandise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

REASONS FOR THE CHANGE IN USE OF THE NET
PROCEEDS RAISED IN THE SEPTEMBER PLACING

With reference to the September Announcements regarding the
September Placing, the original intended use of proceeds raised in
the September Placing was for the repayment of the outstanding
principal and interests accrued and payable with respect to the
Company’s outstanding convertible bonds. With further reference
to the Company’s voluntary announcement dated 31 August 2022,
the Board has been negotiating for the extension of the maturity
date pursuant to the outstanding convertible bonds. In view of
the ongoing negotiation progress, after further deliberation of the
Board, the Board resolved to the reallocation in such manner set out
in the table above. Furthermore, owing to the lifting of restrictions
regarding COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC, the Board sees a spike
in the demand for building and home improvement material and
furnishings, and the Company intends to expand its investments in
the development of the business segment of sale and distribution
of merchandise of the Group by expanding its sales pipelines, which
are expected to improve the profitability and/or further develop the
revenue streams of the business segment of sale and distribution of
merchandise for the Group.

The Board is of the view that the reallocation would allow the
Group to utilise its financial resources in a more flexible, beneficial
and effective way and to meet its operational and business needs
of the Group.

The Board considers that the reallocation of the net proceeds raised
in the September Placing will not have any material adverse impact
on the existing business and operations of the Group and is in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, the Board confirms that there
are no other changes to the use of the net proceeds raised in the
September Placing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

In extraordinary general meeting of the Company convened on
9 December 2022 (the "EGM"), the resolutions approving the
capital reorganisation involving the share consolidation, the capital
reduction and the share sub-division (the “Capital Reorganisation”)
was duly passed by way of poll. The Capital Reorganisation
involves:

(i) Share Consolidation (the “Share Consolidation”)

Every five (5) issued Shares of HK$0.10 (“Existing shares”)
each shall be consolidated into one (1) Consolidated Shares
of HK$0.50 each, and every five (5) unissued Existing Shares
of HK$0.10 each shall be consolidated into one (1) unissued
consolidated share of HK$0.50 each (“Consolidated Shares”).

(ii) Capital Reduction (“Capital Reduction®)

The Capital Reduction will be implemented subsequent to the
Share Consolidation becoming effective, pursuant to which
the par value of each of the issued Consolidated Shares will
be reduced from HK$0.50 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-
up capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.49 on each
of the issued Consolidated Shares. As such, the issued share
capital of the Company will be reduced.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

(iii) Share Sub-Division (the “Share Sub-Division"”)

Immediately following the effectiveness of the Capital
Reduction, the Share Sub-Division will be implemented on the
basis that every unissued Consolidated Share of HK$0.50 each
in the authorised share capital of the Company shall be sub-
divided into fifty (50) New Shares of HK$0.01 each (the “New
Shares”).

The Share Consolidation became effective after the passing of
the resolution in connection with the Share Consolidation as
an ordinary resolution of the Company in the EGM. The Capital
Reduction and the Share Sub-Division became effective (i) after
the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands made an order confirming
the Capital Reduction (the “Court Order”); and (ii) upon the
Court Order together with the minutes approved by the Court
containing the particulars required under the Companies Act (2022
Revision, Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands) with respect to the Capital
Reduction were filed and duly registered with the Registrar of
Companies in the Cayman Islands.

024 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022

(iii) RR{7iF4E (TRR1DIF4H))

ZFERAHR LR RDFERIEER
BLAERASTEREE0. 0B THIRET
aHRPSERFASETGCORSRE
BE0.01 BT RN (k) 2BEE
i

ROGHIERRFINAG LEBERRNE
HHORBESERBNEBREZEZREN K
AR B A R AR (1) 2 8% B R EBT 3 I B
SRAHIRBES (DEBRES ) 5 K(i)EFE
LEBRERFILER B RFE (FEFE5522
B (CTEZZFEBED) FRE S RRAHIREFE
BrzERCHRERRILEREESASZEM
RERENBLEREN



The effect of the Capital Reorganisation on the share capital

structure of the Company is summarised as follows:

Authorised share capital
EE R

Par value

H{E

No. of authorised shares
EERMDEE

Par value of issued share capital (HK$)
B TRAEE (B)

No. of issued shares
BEEITRNEE

No. of unissued shares
RETRHEUEB

Par value of unissued share capital

(HK$)
REETRAEE BT

Before Capital
Reorganisation

MR E4H A

500,000,000

HK$0.10 per
Existing Share
SRITE RN
0.10%8 7t
5,000,000,000
Existing Shares
5,000,000,000%%
RERGN
131,882,761.20

1,318,827,612
Existing Share
1,318,827,612f%
RERN
3,681,172,388
Existing Share
3,681,172,388M%
RERDN
368,117,238.80
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Immediately after the
share consolidation
becoming effective

but before the capital

reduction becoming
effective
SRERR DA B
EMEEREE

Hl i S 24 A

500,000,000

HK$0.50 per
Consolidated Share
SREHKHS
0.5078 7T
1,000,000,000
Consolidated Share
1,000,000,0008%
EXiav)

131,882,761.20

263,765,522
Consolidated Share
263,765,522h%
EXiav)
736,234,478
Consolidated Share
736,234,478k%
EXi 4

368,117,238.80

Immediately after the
Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective

4
EHENE

500,000,000

HK$0.01 per

New Share
ST )
0.0187T
50,000,000,000
New Share
50,000,000,0008%
El-a)
2,637,655.22

263,765,522

New Share
263,765,522/
Eilieah)
49,736,234,478
New Share
49,736,234,4788%
ilieah)
497,362,344.80
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Details of the Capital Reorganisation aforementioned are set out
in (i) the announcements of the Company dated 4 November
2022 and 9 December 2022 respectively in relation to, among
other things, the Capital Reorganisation; (ii) the circular of the
Company dated 24 November 2022 in relation to the EGM; (iii)
the announcement of the Company dated 9 December 2022
regarding, amongst other things, the poll results of the EGM; and
(iv) the announcement of the Company dated 17 February 2022 in
relation to, amongst other things, the effective date of the Capital
Reduction and the Share Sub-Division.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from those disclosed in the above paragraphs, there were no
material investments or additions of capital assets authorised by the
Board at the date of this annual report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue in RMB and also incurs cost in
HK$ and RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk with
respect mainly to HK$ which may affect the Group’s performance.
The management is aware of the possible exchange rate exposure
due to the continuing fluctuation of HK$ and will closely monitor
its impact on the performance of the Group to see if any hedging
policy is necessary. The Group currently does not have any foreign
currency hedging policy.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no significant outstanding capital commitment as at
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the employee headcount of the Group
was 33 (2021: 95) and the total staff costs, including Directors’
remuneration, amounted to approximately RMB14.4 million for
the Reporting Period (2021: RMB10.2 million). The decrease in
employee headcount was due to the strategic restructuring and
outsourcing plan implemented by the Group to achieve better cost
control while streamlining its operations and improving overall
efficiency during the Reporting Period. The increase in total staff
cost was due to the increase in equity-settled share-based payment
expenses during the Reporting Period.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice and provides various fringe
benefits to employees. The Group conducts induction training for
all of its new employees and on-going training from time to time
during their employment. The nature of training offered depends
on their specific field of operation.

The objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to maintain fair
and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration
paid to its employees (including directors and senior management),
the following factors are considered:

workload, responsibility and job complexity;

. business requirements;

e individual performance and contribution to results;

e company performance and profitability;

e retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

e  corporate goals and objectives;

EEE &S

(B8 R#HEE R

N _ETFE+"B=+—H ArxEBZES
AHABA(CEZ—F :95A) » RRREH
M BETHA (BREEZHFH WA AR
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HiEE (BREESREREER) ZIBIREK
FREZEUTHE:

s IHE-BERIFNEREE,

o BAXRBRKHEEFELIER ;
o RARBKRBHES;
o RBEREKEBENED;

s AEBERKFES;
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e market rates and changes in relevant markets, including
supply and demand fluctuations and changes in competitive
conditions; and

e general economic situation.
KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties
in addition to those shown below which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

Business Risk

Future growth of the Group relies, to a certain extent, on the
successful maintenance and expansion of the Group’s sales to key
customers. As a result, any loss of key customers or substantial
reduction in the amount of purchase by them could significantly
and adversely affect the business, results of operations, financial
condition and prospects of the Group. Further, the business of
the Group is currently concentrated in Meizhou of Guangdong
Province. Any adverse economic or market development in this
region or any other regions that the Group operates may materially
and adversely affect the demand for the merchandise of the Group.

Operational Risk

Most of the Group's sale and distribution of merchandise are
derived from merchandise procured from its suppliers. Any adverse
change of the Group's relationship, including termination or change
in requirements as imposed by the suppliers, with its suppliers may
adversely affect the business operation of the Group. Further, the
Group's operation can also be adversely affected if there occur any
material delay in product delivery by the Group's suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industrial Risk

The products and services offered by the Group are mainly used
for or closely related to building or home improvement purposes.
Accordingly, business, results of operations and prospects of the
Group are driven, to a considerable extent, by the growth of the real
estate market and the relevant government policies in China.

Financial Risk

The business and operation of the Group are exposed to financial
risks on currency, interest rates, credit and impairment assessment
and liquidity.

Details of financial risk management of the Group are set out in
note 37(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

MANPOWER AND RETENTION RISK

The competition for talents in the cities that the Group operates
leads to the risk that the Group may not be able to attract and retain
key personnel and talents with the most appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence which would meet the business
objectives of the Group from time to time. The Group will continue
to evaluate our remuneration system and policy from time to time
and target to provide attractive remuneration package to attract,
retain and motivate suitable candidates and personnel.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Hou Wei (f%#%), aged 53, was appointed as a Director on
2 February 2015 and was re-designated as an executive Director
on 5 June 2015. Ms. Hou is also the chairlady and chief executive
officer of the Group. She is primarily responsible for the overall
management, strategic planning, business development and
cooperation of the Group. In September 1999, Ms. Hou joined
Guangdong Jiyi Household Building Materials Chain Co., Ltd.
("Jiyi Household™) as the manager of Jiyi Household and she
was later appointed as the executive director of Jiyi Household
in May 2004, primarily responsible for the overall management,
operation, strategic planning and the supervision of the finance
and purchase department. She has over 20 years of experience in
retail chain store operation and distribution of housewares and
building materials. Prior to joining the Group, from July 1989 to
July 1999, Ms. Hou served as a teacher of Meizhou Middle School
of Meizhou (8N I#8 A 22) . From October 2011 to December
2016, Ms. Hou served as a member of CPPCC Guangdong
Province Meixian Committee (MIpEREIBHEZES). In
November 2011, she received the title of “Guangdong Province
Outstanding Entrepreneurs” (B & EFHEZEZ) jointly awarded
by Guangdong Entrepreneurs Council (B2 KRIBES)and
Guangdong Province Economists and Entrepreneurs Association
(BRERBEZREEREET). In November 2012, she
received the title of “Green Brand Advocates of Chinese Household
Building Materials” (FEIEM K B4 B mIEEEE) awarded by
China Real Estate Society (FEIFE#ZEZ®)and China Building
Materials Daily (FFEI#ZE# #R) . Ms. Hou received her diploma in
English from Guangdong Jiaying College (R 2 FEZFR) in the
PRC in June 1989 and her graduate certificate in the advanced
class of business strategy (48 75 B& /= &R FHETE) from the Peking
University (652K 22) in the PRC in January 2013. Ms. Hou is the
sister of Mr. Hou Bo, a non-executive Director, the mother of Ms.
Deng Yiyi, a senior management of the Group and the sister-in-
law of Ms. Deng Haiming, who is also a senior management of the
Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Xianxiu (1B %), aged 50, was appointed as an executive
Director on 5 June 2015. He is primarily responsible for overall
internal control and internal audit affairs of the Group. He joined
the Group in July 2011 and served as an account manager and
warehouse logistics manager of Jiyi Household until February 2013,
primarily responsible for accounting and auditing and management
of warehouse logistics. He was re-designated as a deputy chief
financial officer of Jiyi Household from March 2013 to June 2013,
and was appointed as the chief financial officer of Jiyi Household
in July 2013, primarily responsible for the overall management of
financial affairs. He was re-designated as the chief internal audit
officer of Jiyi Household in September 2017, primarily responsible
for the overall internal control and internal audit affairs. Prior to
joining the Group, from July 1995 to November 2001, he served
as the accountant of Meizhou Gas Company Limited (8N T &
BEIERRF),

supply of towngas in Meizhou, where he was primarily responsible

a company which is principally engaged in

for accounting. From November 2001 to November 2004, he was
the finance manager of Meizhou Yanming Lake Tourist Resorts
Company Limited (1854 fE ISk ERAN B RAE)), a company
which is principally engaged in the management of Yanming Lake
Tourist Resorts (FEIS#IRE E R HT),
accounting and finance of such company. From November 2004

primarily responsible for

to July 2011, he served as the head of finance of Meizhou New
Weima Ceramics Company Limited (8N EEMEEBREA
&]), a company which is principally engaged in the production of
ceramics, primarily responsible for accounting and finance of such
company. Mr. Liu received his diploma in financial management and
computer application from South China Agricultural University (2
B2 K2)in the PRC in July 1995. He received his qualification
certificate of specialty and technology (intermediate accounting)
(BERMEKFESE (FRES
the PRC in May 2002.

)) from the Ministry of Finance of
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Mr. Yang Baikang (#3# &), aged 57, was appointed as our
executive Director on 7 November 2018. He has been the vice
president of the Company since 1 November 2017 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing the engineering services business of
the Company’s subsidiary in the PRC. Mr. Yang served in various
positions in different government departments in Meizhou City,
Guangdong Province, PRC. He served as the deputy mayor of the
People’s Government of the Triangle Town of Meijiang District in
Meizhou City ({8 I & = AiE A BEEUF) from December
1995 to March 1999; he served as the deputy secretary of the
Party Committee (2 ZRIZ50) of the People’'s Government of the
Triangle Town of Meijiang District in Meizhou City (i M 181 &
= AEARBUT) from March 1999 to July 2002; he also served
as the mayor of the People’s Government of the Triangle Town of
Meijiang District in Meizhou City (8N M8 I & =AEARIK
Jf¥) from December 2000 to July 2002; he served as the deputy
director of the Meizhou Municipal Real Estate Administration Bureau
(BMNTEESER) from July 2002 to June 2007; he served as
deputy director of the Meizhou Municipal Construction Bureau ({8
MR
deputy director of Meizhou Municipal Housing and Urban-Rural
Development Bureau (8N & B AW A2 5% /Z) from February
2010 to July 2016. He obtained his diploma in political history
from Jiaying Normal College (ZZFEEMEBZERIE4R) in July 1986.
He obtained his graduation certificate in economic management
from CPC Guangdong Provincial Party School (FIHEREZEK)
in December 2000 and obtained his graduation certificate of the

=) from June 2007 to February 2010; and he served as

postgraduate course for world economy and political majors from
Graduate School of Renmin University of China (FFE] A R A2 Hf
ZE4 B in June 2002.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hou Bo (f%if), aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 5 June 2015. He is primarily responsible for the risk
management and providing supervision in the business of the
Group. From September 2010 to December 2011, he has been the
supervisor of Jiyi Household and from December 2011 onwards,
was then appointed as the non-executive director of Jiyi Household,
primarily responsible for the risk management and providing
supervision in the business of Jiyi Household. Since June 2002, he
has been the managing director of Meizhou Xikang Real Estate
Investment Company Limited (I8N T1EREEMEREBR AR,
a company which is principally engaged in property investments,
where he is primarily responsible for the overall business
management. From October 2011 onwards, he has also served
as the managing director of Meizhou Xikang Estate Management
Company Limited ((8NTHEEYZEEIRBRAF]), a company
which is principally engaged in estate management, where he is
primarily responsible for the overall business management. He
received a diploma in electronics from Meizhou West Vocational
and Technical College (113 P8 E 2E 52 T 22 4%) in the PRC in July
1984. Mr. Hou is the brother of Ms. Hou Wei. He was qualified
as a senior industrial construction engineer (TE#EE SR T2
BM) recognised by the Department of Personnel of Guangdong
Province (2B & A ZEE8) in March 2006, and was registered as
an architect with the Department of Housing and Urban Rural
Construction of Guangdong Province (&5 & £ = A 15 40 72 5% BE)
in August 2010.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Yihui (B2 #8), aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 6 October 2015. He has been the
independent director of Jiyi Household from July 2013 onwards,
primarily responsible for providing independent view and advice to
the board of directors of Jiyi Household including the effectiveness
of the internal control system and the audit process of Jiyi
Household. Mr. Ye has over 30 years of experience in areas of
finance, audit and tax. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ye served in
various positions where he was primarily responsible for the overall
management of financial affairs, operation and audit management.
He worked with the Audit Bureau of Meizhou Province (1§84%%
5t/E) from 1988 to 1998, during 1995 to 1998, he served as the
supervisor, where he was primarily responsible for the audit of
finance and infrastructure projects; the deputy manager of Zhuhai
Huacheng Certified Public Accountants (k8% 5 & 5TEI S 75Fm)
from February 2001 onwards, where he was primarily responsible
for the management of financial affairs and operation; the manager
of Meizhou Zhengde Tax Agent Office (8N IE12 %R 75 6T =75 Fh)
from November 2010 to October 2021, where he was primarily
responsible for the overall management and operation; the partner
of Zhuhai Hancheng Certified Public Accountants Gk/82 &
SHEMEE#5FT) from October 2021 onwards, where he provides
professional accounting and auditing services to clients. He received
his diploma in economics and industrial enterprise management
from Guangdong Radio and TV University (BREEE R KAL)
now known as the Open University of Guangdong (/& 58 B8 iR 22)
in the PRC in July 1986 and his diploma in economic management
from CPC Guangdong Provincial Party Committee Party School
(FRHEEREZER)in the PRC in July 2005 through a distance
learning course. He is an auditor registered with the National Audit
Office of the PRC (% A R £ M EEE 51E) since November 1992
and an accountant registered with Ministry of Finance of the PRC
(FhEE N\ R HFIE R EER) since December 1992. He has been
admitted as a registered certified public accountant of Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (REIsE & stEtHE)
since April 1996 and a registered tax agent of Management Center
of Certified Tax Agent of Guangdong Province (B & & s R 75
Bt &) since June 1999. He has been a member of the Council of
Management Center of Certified Tax Agent of Guangdong Province

(BB FMRFEEMHE) since March 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ho Hin Yip (fIfi7%), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 October 2015. Mr. Ho
has more than 24 years of financial and auditing experience.
Since April 2012, he is the financial controller and joint company
secretary of Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited (stock code: BKV),
a company listed on the Singapore Exchange Limited, where he
is responsible for the finance and accounting functions, statutory
compliance and corporate governance affairs. Mr. Ho has been
serving as an independent non-executive director of China Ever
Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd (formerly known as PME
Group Limited) (stock code: 379), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, since December 2012. Mr. Ho was
also appointed as an independent non-executive director of Xinhua
News Media Holdings Limited (Stock code:309) from December
2012 up until April 2020, where he resigned from the directorship
due to personal reasons. Mr. Ho received his bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in December 1997. He was admitted as a member and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in August 2000 and August 2005, respectively. He has also been
registered as a certified public accountant (Practising) of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since February 2005.
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EEREREEERE

Mr. Hou Lianchang (f%E#&), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 October 2015. He has
over 20 years of experience in legal work focusing on corporate
finance practice. Since April 2000, Mr. Hou has been a lawyer
with Jing Tian Law Office of Guangdong (BESR&KZHNEF
FIT), specializing in areas such as foreign investment, mergers and
acquisitions, venture capital financing, asset and shareholding
restructuring, and initial public offerings in overseas markets. He
is also well versed in corporate structure and governance matters.
From March 2012 onwards, he serves as a board member of
Shenzhen Association of Trade in Services CFYIT AR & 7 1
BiEE).
law and his graduate certificate in the professional graduate
course of economic law (8 AE M I8 4 ERIZZEIEHD) from
Wuhan University (B2 A22)in the PRC, in December 1989 and
December 2003, respectively. He is a lawyer registered with the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC (FZE AR HFME BAER) since
September 1995.

Mr. Hou received his bachelor's degree in international

Mr. Hou was a director of New Heng Ye Investment Development
Limited FrIE2REEEERAE), a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong with a principal business of investment
holding and dissolved by deregistration by the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong as a defunct company pursuant to
section 291 of the Predecessor Companies Ordinance. The
aforesaid company was inactive prior to its dissolution and was
dissolved in 2009.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Deng Yiyi (81#2%8), aged 30, was appointed as our chief
executive officer of the Company on 29 November 2019. She is
responsible for the Company’s strategic management, investor
relations, business development, corporate finance and legal and
regulatory compliance of the Group. Ms. Deng obtained a bachelor
degree in Laws from the University of International Business
and Economics, a master degree in Laws from the University of
California, Berkeley and a Juris Doctor from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Deng has extensive experience and knowledge
in the cross-border of legal and regulatory compliance, merger
and acquisition transactions, investor relations, corporate finance,
private equity and in advising on initial public offerings (“IPOs”) in
Hong Kong and in the United States. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Deng worked at two leading U.S. law firms, Skadden, Arps, Slate,
Meagher & Flom LLP and Cooley LLP, respectively. She has worked
on over 10 successful high profile IPOs in the U.S. and Hong Kong
capital markets and represented a number of leading new economy
companies in their cross-border merger and acquisition transactions
during her tenure with these two U.S. law firms. Ms. Deng is the
daughter of Ms. Hou, who is the Chairlady, an executive director,
and a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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EEREREEERE

Mr. Lo Wai Siu (Z&f&JK), aged 35, was appointed as our chief
financial officer and company secretary of the Company on
19 February 2019. He is responsible for the financial and audit
management, corporate finance, investment management,
investor relations, administration and company secretarial matters
of the Group. Mr. Lo holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration in accountancy and management information
systems from the City University of Hong Kong and is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo
has extensive experience and knowledge in the areas of financial
markets, corporate and management accounting, investment
management and auditing. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in the audit and assurance department of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong, and later he served key managerial roles in the regional
finance department (Asia Pacific region) of two multinational asset
management companies. He also served as vice president of the
investment management department of a financial group before
joining the Company.

Mr. Ling Yongshan (& Ll), aged 51, was appointed as the
executive vice president of the Group on 1 January 1999, primarily
responsible for managing human resources, warehousing logistics
and information technology of the Group. Since January 1999,
he has been the deputy general manager of Jiyi Household and
is primarily responsible for its overall management, including
human resources management, sales and marketing, warehouse
logistics and customer services. Since 9 January 2015, Mr. Ling has
been a director of Meizhou Jisheng Household Building Materials
Company Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Ling received his graduate certificate in the advanced
class of innovative entrepreneur ((E# X B T A= HKFHELD)
from the School of Continuing Education, Tsinghua University (&
TERBUMEHEZP7) in the PRC in August 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Deng Haiming (8B:808), aged 66, was appointed as the
chief purchasing officer of the Group on 1 February 2012 and was
re-designated as the vice president of the Group in June 2016.
She is primarily responsible for managing and coordinating the
procurement of raw materials and equipments of the Group. From
October 1998 to January 2012, she served as the general manager
of various branches of Jiyi Household and was primarily responsible
for its overall operation and management. From February 2012
onwards, Ms. Deng serves as the chief purchasing officer of
Jiyi Household and is primarily responsible for supervising the
procurement of building materials and the selection of suppliers.
Since 6 April 2015, Ms. Deng has been a director of Jiyi Household.
She has nearly 17 years of experience in procurement and trading
of building materials. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Deng served
as the labour statistics officer of Dongfeng Enterprise Group of
Guangdong Meizhou Province (BERigMNE R PEER) from
October 1979 to May 1998, where she was primarily responsible
for personnel administration. Ms. Deng received her diploma in
Financial Accounting from Guangdong Radio and TV University
(BHEBEEHRAZS) (currently known as the Open University of
Guangdong (BEERBAAZR) in the PRC in July 1991. Ms. Deng is
the sister-in-law of Ms. Hou Wei.
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EEREREEERE

Mr. Liang Weizhen (2E&E), aged 37, was appointed as
the chief sales officer of the Group on 1 January 2019. He is
mainly responsible for the sales and marketing management of
the Group. He joined the Group in June 2013 and worked as
a construction engineer in the engineering department of Jiyi
Xinya until September 2013, and was mainly responsible for
supervising construction engineering work. From September 2013
to June 2014, he served as the deputy manager of the purchasing
department of the Company, and was mainly responsible for
managing and coordinating the Group’s procurement. From
June 2014 to January 2015, he was re-designated as the deputy
director of the General Office, and was mainly responsible for
the Group’s internal administration affairs and corporate legal
work. From January 2015 to January 2016, he served as the
company’s representative, and was mainly responsible for assisting
the company secretary in handling listing-related matters and
coordination between various internal departments of the Group.
Since January 2016, He served as the assistant to the Chairlady and
was mainly assisting the Chairlady in managing the coordination
between internal departments, and was in charge of managing the
Group’s administration, logistics, human resources, legal affairs,
warehousing and other tasks. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in law from Guangzhou University of China in June 2009.
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The Board are pleased to present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year under review and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and outlook
of the Company’s business, possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing and important events affecting the Company
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2022 are provided in
the sections headed “Chairlady’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 8 and pages 9 to 29 of
this annual report. An account of the Company’s relationships
with its key stakeholders is included in the paragraph headed
“Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and Customers” of the
report of the Directors on page 67 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2022 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 9 to 29 of this annual report.

An analysis of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group and the particulars of events affecting the Group since
the end of the Reporting Period are set out respectively in the
paragraph headed “Key Risks and Uncertainties” on pages 28 to
29, and the paragraph headed “Event after the Reporting Period”
on page 69 of this annual report.
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In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company
are provided in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of the on pages 91 to 122 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 135 to 136 of this report.

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). The Board has
adopted a dividend policy on 31 December 2018. Details of which
is set out of page 43 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2022,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
(the “Companies Law”) amounted to approximately RMB792.3
million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 31 December
2018 (the “Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company to allow shareholders to share the Company’s profit and
for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group is profitable
and without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
shareholders of the Company. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, among others, the operating results, cash flow,
financial condition, capital requirements of the Group, the interests
of the shareholders and any other factors that the Board may
consider appropriate. Declaration of the dividend by the Company
is also subject to the Companies Laws, the articles of association of
the Company and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and shall in noway constitute a legally-binding commitment
by the Company in respect of its future dividend. There can be
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific periods.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's borrowings as at 31 December 2022 are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Hou Wei (Chairladly)

Mr. Liu Xianxiu

Mr. Yang Baikang

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hou Bo

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ye Yihui

Mr. Ho Hin Yip
Mr. Hou Lianchang
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In accordance with article 108(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Liu Xianxiu, Mr. Yang Baikang and Mr. Ye Yihui will
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had or is having a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The controlling shareholders of the Company entered into a deed
of non-competition in favour of the Company dated 6 October
2015 (“Deed of Non-competition”) as set out in the paragraph
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus, pursuant to which the controlling shareholders of the
Company have undertaken to the Company that she/it will not,
and will procure her/its close associates (other than members of
the Group) not to directly or indirectly be involved in or undertake
any business (other than our business) that directly or indirectly
competes, or may compete, with our business or undertaking, or
hold shares or interest in any companies or business that compete
directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from
time to time. The controlling shareholders have provided an annual
declaration and confirmed their compliance of all the undertakings
provided under the Deed of Non-competition. There are no matters
which required to be deliberated by the independent non-executive
Directors in relation to the compliance and enforcement of the
Deed of Non-competition and it is considered that the terms of the
Deed of Non-competition have been complied by the controlling
shareholders.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report, there
are no other changes in the information of Directors, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022

046

T B EGE

RRABDERRRURRBTHZm AL B
HTE-—RF+ANBZARFRZE (RRP
2ig) > RN ERER TRERRRARHR —
BBt ARBERKRRAAAT K H
RAGUWREEEREZHMBEAN (REEBHRER
BIFRIN TEZEHEES BEETE R E R
WEBUFXEZABEBRGF N ER
PR FBIZER FFIBEFERIN » HIERE
ByBEEARERTRRENEFERGS
WABHEHBFAERMNIED - IERRRER
M- FEZRLESR WFET A5 F R
PIREZ 2B AE -MERBTRATAGS
REAMFRAKBIIIFNTESEN T
FHRBEZIFABER A EBIERRRET

EEERZE8

FAFREETKEREEERE | —&FK
BEI BIERE LHRAUBI13.51BFET
KEZHMESEEFo



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 30 to 40 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
each director and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong, the “SFO")), which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of the SFO; as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Name of Director

EEA

Ms. Hou Wei (“Ms. Hou") (Note 2)

Ekwt (MEkt)) (#Ez2)

Mr. Hou Bo (“Mr. Hou") (Note 3)

R E (MREE)) (Ha23)

Mr. Liu Xianxiu (Note 4)
REHLE (Hat4)

Mr. Yang Baikang (Note 4)
WIRRREE (Hfat4)

Mr. Ye Yihui (Note 4)
EREBEE (Hit4)

Mr. Ho Hin Yip (Note 4)
RITTE R E (Hfat4)
Mr. Hou Lianchang (Note 4)
B SR (Hfat4)
Ms. Deng Yiyi
EEL L
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Nature of interest

EmitE

Interest in a controlled
corporation
RELEER
Beneficial owner (Note 4)
BmEAE A (Wit4)
Interest in a controlled
corporation
REEE R
Beneficial owner (Note 4)
BmEA A (Hit4)
Beneficial owner
BmEAA
Beneficial owner
BmEAA
Beneficial owner
BmEAA
Beneficial owner
BmEAA
Beneficial owner
BmEAA
Beneficial owner

BEm#ER A

RE2E KRG RIAMKRABZEE

Number of
shares

(After share
consolidation
adjustments)
ik &8

(R B i & 6
AEE)

89,839,673

89,839,673
109,790,286
109,790,286

1,112,400

1,112,400
220,000
220,000
200,000
200,000
240,000
240,000
220,000
220,000
200,000
200,000
240,000
240,000
722,000
722,000

Approximate

percentage
of the issued
share capital

HBERITRE
BLAaaL
(Note 1)
(HtaE1)

34.06%

34.06%
41.62%
41.62%

0.08%

0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.08%
0.27%
0.27%



Notes:

1. The percentage figures were calculated based on 263,765,522 ordinary
shares (“Shares”) of the Company having a par value of HK$0.5 each in

issue as of 31 December 2022.

2. Ms. Hou was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Xinling Limited (“Xinling”). Xinling was the registered holder of
89,839,673 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Hou was therefore
deemed to have interests in 89,839,673 Shares in which Xinling was

interested.

3. Mr. Hou was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Jiesi Global Investments Limited (“Jiesi Global”). Jiesi Global was the
registered holder of 1,112,400 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Hou
was therefore deemed to have interests in 1,112,400 Shares in which Jiesi

Global was interested.

4. Asat 27 July 2022, the Company granted Share Options of 200,000 (after
share consolidation adjustments) to each of the members in the Board.
For details of the exercise period and vesting period of the Share Options,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
section on page 52 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in any Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO or which
were required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, DEBENTURES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were

FERRRBQE (G - FfkERAMAR
RZiEERRE

R TECTE+ZR=+—H UTAL (&
ABNEFHARSTHRAERIN REATR
PEBERRDTHEAREESRMERE S
XVEB B2 /30 BMR XA A A BIRENE D
gk B WERBRR AR B REESF RAEF

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO:

Aggregate long positions in the Shares and underlying

shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder

RRRBTE R

Xinling (Note 2) (Note 5)
fRe8 (Hfat2) (B1aE5)

Hou Wei (Note 2) (Note 5)
=& (Wst2) (H1525)

Yiju Holdings Limited (“Yiju Holdings”)
(Note 3) (Note 5)

mIEERARAR (NatEER])
(Hfa£3) (H1az5)

Ms. Ouyang Huiping (“Ms. Ouyang”)
(Note 3) (Note 5)

BE=Fwt ((Bis2 L) (Ha23)
(Ht525)

Mr. Wei Jiancun (“Mr. Wei”) (Note 5)
MEERE (5 E)) WaEs)

Ms. Deng Yiyi (Note 5)

gLt (ia5)
050  uaireporzoz

BIE3BeIRBEFEZ Sz Bmaka

RE2E RS RIARMKRG ZFE B8R

Number of
shares Approximate
(After share percentage
consolidation of the issued
Nature of interest adjustments) share capital
AGE 4=
(MR EH LB TS
EmtE HEE) BAE DL
(Note 1)
(Htat1)
Beneficial owner 89,839,673 34.06%
EmEE A 89,839,673 34.06%
Beneficial owner 109,790,286 41.62%
BREAA 109,790,286 41.62%
Beneficial owner 11,052,600 4.19%
BEREAA 11,052,600 4.19%
Interest in a controlled 11,052,600 4.19%
corporation
N E Ik -y 11,052,600 4.19%
Beneficial owner 11,295,000 4.28%
BEREBA 11,295,000 4.28%
Beneficial owner 722,000 0.27%
BEREAA 722,000 0.27%



Name of Shareholder

RRRAE R

Jiesi Global (Note 4) (Note 5)

R

Mr. Hou (Note 4) (Note 5)

&5k

Nature of interest

EmtE

Interest in a controlled
corporation

RTk (Mf524) (H1525) Sy AEER

Beneficial owner

& (Hiz24) (HizE5) BmEA A

Notes:

1.

Save

The percentage figures were calculated based on 263,765,522 Shares
with a par value of HK$0.5 each in issue as of 31 December 2022.

Xinling was the registered holder of 89,839,673 Shares.

Ms. Ouyang was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Yiju Holdings. Yiju Holdings was the registered holder of 11,052,600
Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Ouyang was therefore deemed to
have interests in 11,052,600 Shares in which Yiju Holdings was interested.

Mr. Hou was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Jiesi Global Investment Limited (“Jiesi Global”). Jiesi Global was the
registered holder of 1,112,400 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Hou
was therefore deemed to have interests in 1,112,400 Shares in which Jiesi
Global was interested.

Hou Wei, Ms. Ouyang, Mr. Wei, Ms. Deng Yiyi, and Mr. Hou, being parties
acting in concert, are collectively deemed to have interest in 134,192,486
Shares, representing 50.9% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as of 31 December 2022.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company

had not been notified of any other persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short

posit

ions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which

would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the

provi

sions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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Number of
shares Approximate
(After share percentage
consolidation of the issued
adjustments) share capital
LiabE 4= ]
(b2 B9 & B wERTRE
HE®) BLaaL
(Note 1)
(HtaE1)
1,112,400 0.42%
1,112,400 0.42%
1,332,400 0.51%
1,332,400 0.51%

Mt -

1. HEHEEALBEFLRER_ZE-__F+"H4
=+—BB#17263,765,522 S B EE0.5% T
2RIt E -

2. [R¥E789,839,673KIRMZESTFHA A

3. BB IEHEAREZERI00%Z BEITIRA
BT R 211,052,600 N 2 BEERFA AR
B E RIS IEH EXVER > B L TR M5
PR B RR ER AV 11,052,60008 IR IAhER
MR o

4, FHRAEBEZEAGBIBIREBEERAR (EBIB
k1) 100% 2 BE TR AS o E BEREK 21,112,400
BRRPDZEZFAA AL RIBESRBEEK
BIEXVER  EIEWR AN ERIRKEEERZDN
1,112,4008& B R HE B % ©

5. —RITPHALER BB BELE HBERE
QIR EREHFRRHI134,192,486 & B 17
AR HERARTIR T _F+_H
=+ —HE#HTRABHZ50.9% °

R EXFRIREEN R_F__F+_H
=t—R FxRFUEESNEAEMAL
(ERBNEFHRSITHABRIN RERQ
B R BARRIRD P R RIRE S KRR
BIEXVER 237 B % X AR AR B K E R
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HAERPIFE336IFR BT E 2 E Lt 2 sl
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 6 October

2015 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant share

options (the “Share Option”) to any directors, employees, advisers,

consultants, suppliers, customers and distributors who in the sole

discretion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the

growth and development of the Group so as to provide incentives

or rewards for their contribution to the success of the Group’s

operation.

Summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(a)

(b)

052

Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to enable
the Group to grant options to the eligible participants to: (i)
motivate them to optimise their performance efficiently for
the benefit of the Group; and (i) attract and retain or maintain
on-going business relationship with the eligible participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.

Eligible Participants

Any employees (whether full time or part time), directors
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors), advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers
and distributors of the Group (“Eligible Participants”) who,
in the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the growth and development of the Group.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(9]

(d)

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in
issue from time to time. The total number of Shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the date of listing of the Shares, being 36,000,000 Shares,
unless the Company obtains the approval of the shareholders
in general meeting for refreshment.

The shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 30 May 2019 to approve the renewal of the 10%
general limit on the number of shares which may be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of the options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme, being 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as of 30 May 2019 and amounting
t0 69,120,000 Shares.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Participant must not exceed 1.0% of the
total number of Shares in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder of the Company or an
independent non-executive director must not exceed
0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue and not
exceed HK$5.0 million in aggregate value.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

054

Period within which the Shares must be taken up under
an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held

No minimum period for which the option has to be held before
it can be exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.

Period open for acceptable of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Participant within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant
of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an option

The exercise price must be at least the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

Validity of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire

on 5 October 2025 unless otherwise terminated in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
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Share options granted on 2 November 2018 (the “FY2018

Share Options™)

On 2 November 2018, the Company granted a total of 36,000,000
share options to certain eligible participants under the Share
Option Scheme. These options were to subscribe for a total of
36,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Share Capital
of the Company. The details of this grant of the Share Options were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2 November

2018 and are set out as follows:

Total number of Share Options granted

Shch b i it o

Exercise price of the Share Options granted

ERLERENTEE

Exercise period and vesting period of
the Share Options
fBRetE 2 1T EHA R BR B HA
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RS- N\F+—B-_AEBHZEBRE(_Z
— \ BB EERBRR )

A CE-NE+—B__H AxQATEER
RKESFEODETEERL2RERHEH
36,000,000k ERE - ZEBEBRESERES
36,000,000 A~ B) R A R B R HE0.10748
TTZEER  EREREREZHBENRAAR
A N\F+—HBHZAERIFE"
;W

36,000,000
36,000,00017

HK$0.704 per share, as stated in the daily quotations sheet

issued by the Stock Exchange, the closing price of the date of
grant and the date immediately before the grant were HK$0.69.
BRRH0.704% T MU B AEMNE HIRERFAR
PR B R B AT B IR B E 40.6978 7T

(@

approximately 1/3 of the Share Options offered, i.e. Share
Options to subscribe for 1,833,334 Shares, shall become
vested in the 7th month of the date of this offer letter (the
“1st Vesting Date”) and shall be exercisable at any time
during the period commencing on the 1st Vesting Date
and ending on the day immediately preceding the 1st
anniversary of the 1st Vesting Date (both dates inclusive);

RUBREZN=7272— BI58#E1,833,334 KR HBVE
) BN AEAREHIRE7ER (BEHE B )
FE O URNEEREHARG RN EZEERE B
B UBFRIER AL (BEEEWA) AR ZEME
BRI TATME 5

E—ERERAR
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(b) approximately 1/3 of the Share Options offered, i.e. Share
Options to subscribe for 1,833,333 Shares, shall become
vested in the 19th month of the date of this offer letter
(the "2nd Vesting Date”) and shall be exercisable at any
time during the period commencing on the 2nd Vesting
Date and ending on the day immediately preceding the 1st
anniversary of the 2nd Vesting Date (both dates inclusive);
and

(b) BWHEREZAH=92— (RI38E1,833,333KKRMAE
IR BINAEZLQREBHARE19ES (MFE2EEE B
HA)) BRI W AS TN SE2ME 55 B B HARR 1A I R IR R 2(E 5
BHEZFVEFRIEH AL (BEEEMAB) iR
IR F1T6E ; &

(c) approximately 1/3 of the Share Options offered, i.e. Share
Options to subscribe for 1,833,333 Shares, shall become
vested in the 31st month of the date of this offer letter
(the “3rd Vesting Date”) and shall be exercisable at any
time during the period commencing on the 3rd Vesting
Date and ending on the day immediately preceding the 1st
anniversary of the 3rd Vesting Date (both dates inclusive)

(0 WUBREZLAO=792— (BANs0E1,833,333KRMHAVE
) BN ABLORGHIAESEI1MER (MFE3EREH
HR)) BB WA TN S 3ME R B B HARR 1A I i B S5 31E 5R
BHHZFVEFREHAL (BEEEMB) AR
GREESS IS
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Out of the 36,000,000 Share Options granted, 2,400,000 Share
Options were granted to the Directors or substantial shareholders
of the company, or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules), details of which are as follows:

ESEHRS

RE#EH 236,000,000 RER
2,400,000 FEREERFTARABZES
FEFERIRFEESZBZEAHEA (E
ZR EMRA) > HEFBuWT .

Number of
Name of grantee Position(s) held with the Company options granted
EBEANR R QB REZ B Bz BREsE
Ms. Hou Wei Chairlady of the Board, executive Director and 300,000
substantial shareholder of the Company
B+ EEEIFE - ARINTEFKRIERRE
Mr. Liu Xianxiu Executive Director of the Company 300,000
NEHKE KRBHITES
Mr. Yang Baikang Executive Director of the Company 300,000
(appointed on 7 November 2018)
i LiElE e ARBHITEE (M_E—/\FE+—HBtBEZD
Mr. Hou Bo Non-executive Director and the brother of the chairlady of 300,000
the Board and substantial shareholder of the Company
BREE ARBIIFHITES IAEEETIRATIERRZIE
Mr. Ye Yihui Independent non-executive Director of the Company 300,000
BREAE RRBBUIIFRNTES
Mr. Hou Lianchang Independent non-executive Director of the Company 300,000
B EfRE ARBEIUIFRNTES
Mr. Ho Hin Yip Independent non-executive Director of the Company 300,000
(BERES e RRBEUIIFNTES
Ms. Deng Haiming Sister-in-law of the chairlady of the Board and substantial 300,000

shareholder of the Company

b=l kg FABDEFEIEREERRZ W%
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The following table disclose details of the Company’s FY2018 Share
Options held by Directors and other employees and movements in

such holding during the year ended 31 December 2022:

Date of grant

Granted to Directors
2 November 2018
Granted to senior
management
2 November 2018
Granted to employees
2 November 2018
Granted to consultants
2 November 2018
Granted to customers
2 November 2018

Total

058

=B

REFRF
“2-\F+—AZH
HEREEEET

“E-N\F+—BZH
RESRT
- )\&t+—HAZH
REMRTF
“E-N\FE+—AZH
REREF
—E-N\F+—-BZH

mit
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Outstanding Outstanding
and and
exercisable exercisable
at the beginning at the end of
of the year Exercised Cancelled Lapsed the year
RED K REKRHK
TERATRE BT Bl BEH TR AIITHE
700,000 (200,000) = (500,000) =
100,000 - - (100,000) -
400,000 - - (400,000) -
5,433,334 (2,966,668) - (2,466,666) -
5,366,666 (5.366,666) - - -
12,000,000 (8,533,334) - (3,466,666) -




The following table disclose details of the Company’s FY2018 Share
Options held by Directors and other employees and movements in
such holding during the year ended 31 December 2021:
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TREROEEREMBERRE I AL
T — )\ B B AR T LA R % AR 1A
E-2-—6+-A-+—DLHEEZEH

BEI

Outstanding Outstanding

and and

exercisable exercisable

at the beginning at the end of

of the year Exercised Cancelled Lapsed the year

WREMHK REREF

Date of grant =AM TERATHE Bi7fE B E3 FERATE
Granted to Directors REERT

2 November 2018 “E-N\F+—-BZH 1,400,000 - - (700,000) 700,000

Granted to senior REREERRT
management

2 November 2018 —E-N\F+—FZH 200,000 - - (100,000) 100,000
Granted to employees RESRTF

2 November 2018 “E-\E+—RAZH 800,000 - - (400,000) 400,000
Granted to consultants REMERT

2 November 2018 “Z—-\F+—AZH 10,866,667 - - (5,433,333) 5,433,334
Granted to customers REEEF

2 November 2018 —Z-N\F+—-BZH 10,733,333 - - (5,366,667) 5,366,666

Total 4zt 24,000,000 - - (12,000,000) 12,000,000

The fair values of the FY2018 Share Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme were determined and measured using the
Binomial Model on 2 November 2018. The significant inputs
into the model were the exercise price shown above, risk-free
interest rates of 2.02% to 2.25%, volatility of 43.4% to 46.1%
and dividend yield of 0%. As any changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates, the
valuation models for the Share Options granted do not necessarily
provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of the Share
Options. The related accounting policy for the fair value of the
Share Options granted is disclosed at note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RIE—NF+—B_HREBRESZ
BENZZ—N\VBREFEEREZ ATE
DERBZEARAEETRSGTE - ZEAN
ERBMARBEA LA AZITERZ ER
G R A2 02%FE2.25%  KIBA43.4%E
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The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the Share Options are based on the Directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

On 2 May 2022, all unexercised share options from the FY2018
Share Options were lapsed.

Share options granted on 27 July 2022 (the “FY22 Share
Options™)

On 27 July 2022, the Company granted a total of 69,100,000
share options (the “Share Options”) to certain eligible participants
under the Share Option Scheme. These options were to subscribe
for a total of 69,100,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Share Capital of the Company. The details of this grant of the Share
Options were disclosed in the announcement of the Company

SHIEBREATEMERNERAEERRR
DBDEREFZREMS -BREBEREET
TBRRROTREEMEFNRE-

RN_EBE__HFFRA_H —E— ) \BHREERE
FRRERIFT A MR ITEBREE L -

M-S —FtA-+taBHZERE(=
T HMBFEERRRE)

RZE - _F+TtAZ+tH AQRBIRE
ERESEDNE TEER2HEEREEGH
69,100,00017 BB I #E (TRERGHE)) - Z R HE
S TR B £ 1£69,100,00008 &~ A B S 2 R S 8
EE0.10B Tz EEK BREBRERH
BRAABHBEAZZE "+t =++tH

dated 27 July 2022 and are set out as follows:

Total number of Share Options granted

Shch g

Exercise price of the Share Options granted

ERLEREZTEE

Validity period of the Options

ARG B R
060  iatresorizezz

ZAERIEE HHWT

69,100,000
69,100,00017

HK$0.56 per share, as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on 27 July 2022, the average closing
price of approximately HK$0.56 per Shares as quoted in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the Date of Grant and the nominal
value of HK$0.10 per Share, subject to adjustments
SRKH0.568T BN _E__Ft -+t AFff
EmEHRERMIITE) RONEFRL BRI LEE
FHAEBMXEEREBRMKRNTHRTHENER0.56H8
TTRER0.10BTTHEE Y o] TR

The Options are exercisable for a period of 10 years from the

Date of Grant (27 July 2022 to 26 July 2032)

BREREEBHRES+F8HE CE22FtBA=++tH
EZE=_FtAZ+B) AFITE
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Out of the 69,100,000 Share Options granted, 9,000,000 Share Bt 269,100,00017 8 A& > 9,000,000
Options were granted to the Directors or substantial shareholders R EBREERFTAATDZEETHETEREL
of the company, or any of their respective associates (as defined in  HESZBZTAHMBEA (EER LHRE) - H

the Listing Rules), details of which are as follows: 1IN
Number of

Name of grantee Position(s) held with the Company options granted

EBEANR R QB REZ B Bz BREsE

Ms. Hou Wei Chairlady of the Board, executive Director and 1,000,000
substantial shareholder of the Company

B+ EEEIFE - ARINTEFKRIERRE

Mr. Liu Xianxiu Executive Director of the Company 1,000,000

NEHKE KRBHITES

Mr. Yang Baikang Executive Director of the Company 1,000,000

sl e RRBHITES

Mr. Hou Bo Non-executive Director and the brother of the chairlady of 1,000,000
the Board and substantial shareholder of the Company

FERATE RRBIFHITES ITAEFTETIRARTIERRZIE

Mr. Ye Yihui Independent non-executive Director of the Company 1,000,000

BREBEE RRBEIIFNTES

Mr. Hou Lianchang Independent non-executive Director of the Company 1,000,000

EH Bt RRBBUIIFANTES

Mr. Ho Hin Yip Independent non-executive Director of the Company 1,000,000

(BERE$res ARBEEIIFRNTES

Ms. Deng Haiming Sister-in-law of the chairlady of the Board and substantial 1,000,000
shareholder of the Company

BEISZ + ARBEEETFERTERR WG

Ms. Deng Yiyi Chief Executive Officer and the daughter of the executive 1,000,000
director and substantial shareholder of the Company

Ryt THRHFURAADIITEEFRTERRNLSR

E—ERERAR
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The following table disclose details of the Company’s FY22 Share

Options held by Directors and other employees and movements in

such holding during the year ended 31 December 2022:

Outstanding and

TRIEBEHEEREMEERFBAEZAREZ
DT TR FERRENARZEBRERE
E_E2__H+ZA=+—HULEFEZEH
BB -

Outstanding and

Share exercisable at
Outstanding and Consolidation the end of the

exercisable at the exercisable at the Adjustments  year after share

date of grant Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  end of the year (Note 1) consolidation

RinEHE

gL B REXRHK  RIDPGHAR RERRFK

Date of grant Rt A HRITER AT 817 Sk ] BEX fTER AT (Hizt1) fIER AT
Granted to Directors ~ HEZEF

27 July 2022 Bt o = P b o =| 7,000,000 (2,000,000) S S 5,000,000 (4,000,000) 1,000,000

Granted to senior REREEERT
management

27 July 2022 St = o = Bty o8 o =| 18,300,000 (7,482,000) - - 10,818,000 (8,654,400) 2,163,600
Granted to employees F{EEEF

27 July 2022 St = o = Bty o6 ol =| 8,700,000 (8,300,000) - - 400,000 (320,000) 80,000
Granted to consultants ERERIEF

27 July 2022 St 2 of = bty o8 o =| 35,100,000 (14,200,000) - - 20,900,000 (16,720,000) 4,180,000

Total @t 69,100,000 (31,982,000) = S 37,118,000 (29,694,400) 7,423,600

Note 1: As a result of the Share Consolidation became effective on 13

062

December 2022, adjustments were made to the exercise price of the
outstanding FY2022 Share Options and the number of Consolidated
Shares falling to be issued upon the exercise of the outstanding FY2022
Share Options in accordance with (i) the terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme; (i) Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules; and (iii)
the Supplementary Guidance on Main Board Listing Rule 17.03(13) and
the Note immediately after the Rule attached to the Frequently Asked
Question No. 072-2020 issued by the Stock Exchange on 6 November
2020 (the “Stock Exchange Supplementary Guidance”).
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Prior to adjustment After adjustment
R RiABE
Number of Adjusted number
Existing Shares of Consolidated
to be issued Shares to be
upon full issued upon full
exercise of the Adjusted  exercise of the
outstanding exercise price outstanding
Exercise price per FY2022 Share per Consolidated FY2022 Share
Existing Share Options Share Options
RZBZZHMH RZBZZHMH
FERKITE FERKRTE
FEREEER FEREEERY
TfEERT fTfEERT
skRE BzHE sSkatikitz BITZE4RG
Date of grant b =b Rin2{TERE RHBE  RERTEE  ZQREBEE
(HK$) (HK$)
(87) (87
27 July 2022 “E-"tB-+tH 0.56 37,118,000 2.80 7,423,600

5,000,000 out of the 37,118,000 outstanding FY2022 Share
Options stipulated above were granted to and unexercised by the
Directors. Details of those Directors and the adjustments to be
made to the exercise price of those FY2022 Share Options and
the number of Consolidated Shares falling to be issued upon full
exercise of those outstanding FY2022 Share Options are as follows:

7 E XX FrETBERY37,118,00014 H15,000,0001%
TECHREERNARTEBEREERTE
FERAREEFTE - AFEFRRHERF
T _HMBFEBEBREZTEERZEZ
TTHBREEHRTEBREETHITER
RTETZEHRNDHBBFHABRZFEH
PN -

E—ERERAR
—E_FFR 063
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Name of director

EFNA

Mr. Liu Xianxiu
ANEFKE

Mr. Yang Baikang
IR EE

Mr. Ye Yihui
ERELE

Mr. Hou Lianchang
EBERE

Mr. Ho Hin Yip
(BEESins

Date of grant
REAMH

27 July 2022

- o = Py o =

27 July 2022

“BCHFtRAZ+tH

27 July 2022

S o = Py o =

27 July 2022

“BHFtRAZ+tH

27 July 2022

“BHFtRAZ+tH

Prior to adjustment After adjustment
AR REBE
Number of Adjusted number
Existing Shares of Consolidated
to be issued Shares to be

Exercise price per
Existing Share

sRARRMZ
TEE

(HKS)

()

0.56

0.56

0.56

0.56

0.56

Among them, Mr. Liu Xianxiu and Mr. Yang Baikang are executive
Directors, Mr. Ye Yihui, Mr. Hou Lianchang and Mr. Ho Hin Yip are

independent non-executive Directors.

064

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022

upon full
exercise of the
outstanding
FY2022 Share
Options

KRB ZHH
FERHKRITHER
BRI IT(E
ERIRTZ
RERHHE

1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

1,000,000

5,000,000

H 2EFH

Adjusted
exercise price

issued upon full
exercise of the
outstanding

per Consolidated FY2022 Share
Share Options
RSB
FERKITHERR
RREEEHT
E'RFETZ
skattiinz aftknz
BRBTER BREHE
(HK$)
(#71)
2.30 200,000
2.30 200,000
2.30 200,000
2.30 200,000
2.30 200,000
1,000,000
RERGHEBERERNITES

REEAE EMEXLERANTELREREIL

FERTES-



For details of the Share Reorganisation, please refer to (i) the
Company's announcement dated 4 November 2022, 9 December
2022 and 17 February 2023 respectively in relation to, among
other things, the Capital Reorganisation; (ii) the circular of the
Company dated 24 November 2022 (the “Circular”) in relation to
the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held on 9 December
2022 (the "EGM"); and (iii) the announcement of the Company
dated 9 December 2022 regarding, amongst other things, the poll
results of the EGM.

The fair values of the FY2022 Share Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme were determined and measured using the
Binomial Model on 27 July 2022. The significant inputs into the
model were the exercise price shown above, risk-free interest rates
of 2.78%, volatility of 42.78% and dividend yield of 0%. As any
changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimates, the valuation models for the Share Options
granted do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the
fair value of the Share Options. The related accounting policy for
the fair value of the Share Options granted is disclosed at note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the Share Options are based on the Directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

For details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Statutory and General Information — D. Other
Information — 1. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the

prospectus dated 27 October 2015.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this report was the Company, its holding company, any of its
subsidiaries or follow subsidiaries or a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts by which any person undertook the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into between the Company and
any person who is not a Director or not engaged in the full-time
employment of the Group or existed during the Reporting Period.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 67.7% of the Group’s total
turnover. The largest customer accounted for approximately 19.3%
of the Group's total turnover.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 70.4% of the Group's total
purchases. The largest supplier accounted for approximately 33.4%
of the Group's total purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group'’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture, and
are focused on establishing relationships with customers. The
Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate
and long-term goals. To maintain its market competitiveness within
the industry, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards
of quality in the service to its customers. During the Reporting
Period, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
in the normal course of business are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements, of which certain transactions
also constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules but were exempted from disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation
thereto in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Directors and officers liability insurance are currently in force and
in place to protect the Directors, officers and/or the directors of
the associated corporation of the Company against potential costs
and liabilities arising from claims brought against them. Permitted
indemnity provision are set out in such insurance contracts.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
on pages 72 to 90 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Group during the Reporting Period.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The hearing of the Company’s petition for the Capital Reduction
under the Capital Reorganisation was held on 15 February 2023
at 9:30a.m. (Cayman Islands time) before the Court, and on 15
February 2023 (Cayman Islands time), the Court made the Court
Order confirming the Capital Reduction. Such Order, together
with the minutes approved by the Court containing the particulars
required under the Companies Act, (2022 Revision, Cap. 22 of
the Cayman Islands) with respect to the Capital Reduction are
filed and duly registered with the Registrar of Companies in the
Cayman Islands and upon which, all the conditions precedent for
the implementation of the Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-
Division have been fulfilled. For further details in relation to the
effective date of the Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-Division,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17
February 2023.

Except as disclosed in above, there is no material subsequent event
undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report.
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AUDITORS

During the three years immediately preceding this annual report,

the Company has undergone the following changes of auditors:

Name of former auditors

A BNz 518

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC")

BB G ST BN E RSP
(TR BB )

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”)

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
("Moore Stephens”)

REFMEGSTEMEFRT
BRAB (REFHME
et ))
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Date of resignation

FHERH

20 September 2019

“E-hFENABZ+H

11 November 2020

—B-TF+—A+—H

3 January 2022

- "HF—H=H

B RED

MREBEARFER Z = EFEE > &N B % B E
NT :

Reasons for resignation

FHEIRH

The Company and PwC could not reach an
agreement on the audit fee for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019.

AABHRBELERKEERBE_ZE—NE
+_R=1+—HUEMBEEZEZERS
EREEN —RER-

The Company and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
could not reach an agreement on the audit
fee for the financial year ended 31 December
2020.

RAEEEY-AEEAGHMTEREE
BoRET A=+ BULHMHEEE
ZERKEREER —RER-

The Company and Moore Stephens could not
reach an agreement on the audit fee for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021.

RABERESHES N EBAENEE
B HF+"A=+—HUIMBFEZ
BREAPHEREER —RER-



The Board, with the recommendation from the Audit Committee,
has resolved to appoint McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
as the auditor of the Company with effect from 3 January 2022
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Moore
Stephens and to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 3 January 2022 for more
details.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hou Wei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
of the Company and to enhance corporate value and responsibility.
The Board comprises three executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The Board
has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code ("CG Code"”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has complied with the code
provisions under the CG Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Directors have adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
for Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiries have been made to all Directors and all Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022. Relevant employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Group
are also subject to compliance with written guidelines or no less
exacting terms than the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
“Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee

Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a

different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, namely
Ms. Hou Wei (chairlady), Mr. Liu Xianxiu and Mr. Yang Baikang, one
non-executive Director, Mr. Hou Bo and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ye Yihui, Mr. Ho Hin Yip and Mr.
Hou Lianchang.

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 30 to 40
in this annual report. A List of Directors identifying their roles and
functions is available on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s
website.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship between any
members of the Board, and no information relating to the Directors
is required to be disclosed pursuant to rules 13.51(2) and 13.51(B)
(1) of the Listing Rules.
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The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group.
It also decides on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the
Group's businesses to the executive Directors and members of
senior management. The functions and power that are so delegated
are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis as and when necessary.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and
that every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Liu Xianxiu, Mr. Yang Baikang and Mr. Ye Yihui will
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Details of the re-election are
set out in the AGM circular as despatched together with this annual
report.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company and is appointed for a specific term of three
years unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either the executive Director or the Company.

The non-executive Director and the independent non-executive
Directors have each signed an appointment letter with the
Company and is appointed for a specific term of three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company's corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include: (a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

The Board has performed the abovementioned corporate
governance functions during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board held 26 Board meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022, and a tentative schedule for four regular Board
meetings for 2023 has been provided to the Directors at the
beginning of the year. The attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings is set out on page 84.

Between scheduled regular Board meetings, Directors may approve
various matters by way of passing written resolutions. Additional
Board meetings may be arranged if required. In addition, at least
14 days’ notice of a regular Board meeting shall be given and the
Company aims at sending the agenda and the accompanying board
papers to Directors at a reasonable time before the intended date
of a Board meeting.

The Company Secretary assists in preparing the agenda for the
Board meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
regarding Board meetings are complied with. Minutes of the
Board and Board committees’ meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary, which are available to all Directors for inspection.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
responsibilities of the external auditor to the shareholders are set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 123 to 134.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect
of indemnification against costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities that may be incurred by the Directors and officers of the
Company in the execution and discharge of their duties.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022

076

BEgEREBE_E__F#+-BA=+—H
IFFERRITREEE G WEREVE
BEERHNX _ESE_=FEHEETTEEN
FERER - ZREETHFEEEEENERE
FREE84HE o

REREFEEE B EFHUEEREL
AMERBEZEE-FERE JARBEINES
TEZ M EFTEREEZ—MALELE
MARBA MARBDTRINEEZTSEZ
FERMA—RaEFERESFELEER
B EEEX o

NEMERHEREFTEERHRE WHRE
BTAAEAMESEERNBERARAKER
REAMETREFEFENESTEE T TET
B WHEREEER-

EEMPEREAER GV HRENST
AN M AR RN ETENE123E134
BB IZEENIRE 1N e

EFRkSRASREFRE

ERTERBEEATDEZTRERABNH

ThRETREZHBERAEEEZMA X
EBR - HAXREEZH S BERR -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. For the year ended
31 December 2022, each of the Directors has been given relevant
guideline materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed
by a director. The package will also include the latest published
financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board.

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or
guidance notes are also issued to Directors where appropriate to
ensure their awareness of best corporate governance practices.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests
of the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board
and its committees to provide their independent and objective
views.

In compliance with rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. Two of
the independent non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Ye Yihui and
Mr. Ho Hin Yip, have the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors a written
confirmation of his independence and has satisfied itself of such
independence in accordance with the independent guidelines as set
out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three Board Committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined
and written terms of reference approved by the Board covering
its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of reference are
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.
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Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ye Yihui, Mr. Ho Hin Yip and Mr. Hou Lianchang. Mr.
Ye Yihui, who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, to oversee the external and internal audit
processes, to develop and review the Group's policies and to
perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

There were 3 meetings of the Audit Committee held during the
year ended 31 December 2022. The attendance of each Director at
the Audit Committee meetings is set out on page 84. During the
year under review, the members of the Audit Committee reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and for the six months ended 30
June 2022, reviewed the risk assessment results, the internal audit
activities for 2022 and discussed the audit plans for the year ended
31 December 2022 with the external auditor.

In addition, the Audit Committee held one meeting in March 2023.
The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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The Audit Committee monitors the audit and non-audit services
rendered to the Group by the external auditor and ensures that the
engagement of external auditor in non-audit services will not impair
its audit independence or objectivity.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees in respect of the
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, is set out as follows:

BEZZEERERIINELBME A ERREMH
B IFBEZIRTS > TR HS SIS 1% BLAM
RHEIFBELRBR/AGESEZIZBILIEN
F8E-

RBEE_E-__F+°"A=+—HLFE T
RS &R GstiiEHAARABDMNERRE
HEBEZRIFEZRB M ER &L
T

Fee

&H

RMB

NE#

Statutory audit services EEBIZRTS 970,000

Non-audit services IEEIZARTS Nil 4
Remuneration Committee TEE g

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors and one executive Director, namely Mr. Hou
Lianchang, Mr. Ye Yihui and Mr. Liu Xianxiu. Mr. Hou Lianchang is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee include (but without limitation):
(i) making recommendations to the Directors regarding the Group’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policies; (ii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
our Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (iv) considering
and approving the grant of share options to eligible participants
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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There was one meeting of the Remuneration Committee held
during the year ended 31 December 2022. The attendance of
each Director at the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out
on page 84. During the year under review, the members of the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the existing remuneration
policy and package of all existing Directors and senior
management.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The emoluments paid to each of four members of senior
management of the Company was between RMBO to RMB1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors and one executive Director, namely Mr. Hou Lianchang,
Mr. Ye Yihui and Ms. Hou Wei. Ms. Hou Wei is the Chairlady of
the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee is to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select, or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.

There were two meetings of the Nomination Committee held
during the year ended 31 December 2022. The attendance of each
Director at the Nomination Committee meeting is set out on page
84. During the year under review, the members of the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and reviewed the objectives set for implementing the board
diversity policy.
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The Company believes that diversity of Board members can
be achieved through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
length of service and the legitimate interests of the Company’s
principal shareholders. All Board's appointment are based on the
merits of the candidates and the Board believes that doing so will
be consistent with achieving a diversity of perspectives.

Meeting with Independent Non-executive Directors

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code states that the chairman of
the board of directors of a listed issuer should hold meetings with
the independent non-executive directors at least annually without
the presence of other directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting was
held between the Chairlady and the independent non-executive
Directors, with each of the independent non-executive Directors
present. The Chairlady will continue to make arrangements for
holding at least one meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors for every subsequent year.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has developed a nomination policy.
Such nomination policy is established with the aims of ensuring
the Board maintains a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group.

To assess and evaluate whether an individual candidate is suitably
qualified to be appointed as a Director, the Nomination Committee
shall take into account, among other things:

—  the qualifications, skills, knowledge, ability and experience of
the individual candidate;
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— the potential time commitment and attention to perform
duties as a director under the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws and regulations;

—  the potential contributions that the individual candidate can
make to the diversity of the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

—  the personal ethics, integrity and reputation of the individual
candidate (and where appropriate, adequate background
checks and other verification processes shall be conducted
against the individual candidate);

—  the current structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Company's corporate strategy;

—  Board succession planning considerations and the long-term
needs of the Company;

—  (in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
Director), the independence of such candidate with reference
to, among other things, the independence criteria as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and the guidance and
requirements relating to independent non-executive directors
set out in Code Provision A.5.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules; and

— any other factors and matters as the Nomination Committee
may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy at
least annually and discuss any revisions and updates that may be
required, and recommend the same to the Board for approval.
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The individual attendance records of each Director at the &=

physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and at the general meeting
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set

out below:

Name of Director

Exfty
Executive Directors BTES
Ms. Hou Wei BHRTT
Mr, Liu Xianxiu ABEALE
Mr. Yang Baikang BRERE
Non-executive Director FRTES
Mr. Hou Bo RREE
Independent non-executive BUFRTES
Directors
Mr. Ye Yihui BRERE
Mr. Ho Hin Yip miT$Rs
Mr. Hou Lianchang BEHERE
084 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The Group has selected appropriate accounting policies and
has applied them consistently based on prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates. The Board considers that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future and not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may affect the business of the Group or cast
doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.

The responsibilities of the Company’'s external auditors with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the Group
maintains a sound and effective internal control and risk
management system. However, risk-taking is an inherent
element of the Group’s business and operation. The Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also designed
to safeguard assets against misappropriation and unauthorised
disposition and to manage operational risks. Review of the
Group's internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance control as well as risk management functions.
The Group’s risk management framework includes the following
elements:

e identify significant risks in the Group’s operation environment
and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group's
business;

e develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
e monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The implementation of risk management framework of the Group
was assisted by the Group’s internal audit department which was
responsible for the internal audit function so that the Group could
ensure new and emerging risks relevant to the Group’s operation
are promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy of
action plans to manage these risks and monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of the action plans.
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With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group: i) carries out
its daily operation with regards to the “Guidance on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong; and ii) closely communicates with its
legal advisor regarding whether the relevant information is likely
to have impact on the price of the shares of the Company or their
trading volume and thus is considered as inside information that
needs to be disclosed pursuant to the Inside Information Provisions

under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reporting to the Board the
implementation of the Group’s risk management, internal control
policy which among other things, included the determination
of risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could take and
effectiveness of risk management measures. During the Reporting
Period, a review was conduct by the Audit Committee together
with the Group's internal audit department in compliance with
Code Provision C.2 of the CG Code. The Board acknowledges
the review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
risk control systems should be an on-going process and plans
to conduct reviews quarterly commencing from the coming
financial year. For resolving defects and weaknesses of internal
controls and accounting procedures of the Group which the
external auditors and the Group’s internal audit department have
identified and reported to the Company, the Company would
pay full attention to the recommendations made by the external
auditors and the Group’s internal audit department and make
appropriate improvements. Based on the reports from the Group'’s
internal control department and the Audit Committee, the Board
considers the Group’s risk management and internal control system
is adequate and effective and the Group has complied with the
provisions on risk management and internal controls as set out in
the CG code.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Wai Siu has been appointed as company secretary of the
Company on 19 February 2019. He fulfills the requirements under
rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of Mr. Lo
Wai Siu is set out in the paragraph headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Lo took no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in compliance with rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The
Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its annual
general meeting. All general meetings other than annual general
meetings shall be called extraordinary general meetings (“EGM").

Right to convene EGM

Any two or more members of the Company, at the date of the
deposit of a written requisition holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings, shall at all times have the right to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must specify the objects of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionists and deposit it with the Company
Secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 912, 9th Floor, Tai Yau Building, 181
Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the EGM, but any EGM shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

An EGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Board.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions or requests
for information to the Directors or management through the
communication channel provided in “Contact Us” section in the
Company'’s website at www.jiyiholdings.com or in writing and sent

by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

As a matter of Cayman Islands law, no shareholders are permitted
to propose new resolutions at the general meetings if the
intention to propose the new resolutions is not specified in the
notice convening the general meeting. However, procedures for
proposing candidate(s) for election as Directors at a shareholder’s
meeting are set out in the Corporate Governance section of
the “Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website at

www.jiyiholdings.com.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company believes that communicating with its shareholders,
investors and other stakeholders by electronic means, particularly
through its website, is an efficient way of distributing information
in a timely and convenient manner. The Company’s website has
a dedicated "Investor Relations” section which publishes the
following information:

the Board, committee charters, key corporate governance
policies and constitutional documents;

— announcements, press and release made to the market and
media;

— annual and half yearly reports and all material information
lodged with the Stock Exchange; and

—  notices of general meetings and explanatory materials, if any.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview of
the Group's management and efforts in terms of maintaining
sustainable developments in respect of environmental, social and
governance aspects.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group is committed to ethical corporate citizenship and to
promoting sustainability in all of its activities. We demonstrate these
commitments through transparent and responsible management
of our environment and social values. These values respect and
are informed by those of all of our stakeholders, including the
communities with which we interact. The requirements listed below
apply to the Group's operations. Every subsidiary, each manager
and employee, as well as any contractor performing work on behalf
of the Group must support this policy.

The Board is responsible for establishing the Group’s ESG strategies,
and for ensuring the effectiveness in the control of ESG risks and
internal control mechanism. The internal audit department is in
charge of the overall implementation of the Group's ESG strategies.
The Head of internal audit department organized periodical
meeting with other department heads and is responsible for
collecting relevant information on its ESG aspects for preparing the
ESG Report. The Head of internal audit department reports to the
board of directors (the “Board”), which assists in the identification
and evaluation of the Group's ESG risks and the effectiveness of
the internal control mechanism. The Head of internal audit also
examines and evaluates the Group’s performances in different areas
such as environment, safety production, labour standards, and
product responsibilities in the ESG aspects.
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RIE-HERELGRS

Scope of reporting
Reporting framework

This report has been prepared in compliance with Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)
— "Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and is
presented under two categories, namely environmental and social.

For the Group’s corporate governance practices, please refer to
pages 72 to 90 for the section “Corporate Governance Report”
contained in this annual report.

Reporting period

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Contact us

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions
and suggestions on our sustainability initiatives. You can
provide valuable advice in respect of this Report or the Group’s
performances in sustainable development by post at Unit 912, 9th
Floor, Tai Yau Building, 181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands the importance of developing long-term
relationships and constant dialogues with various stakeholders.
We seek to balance the views and interests of these various
constituencies through constructive conversation. Through
collaborating with the stakeholders, the Group strives to further
improve its ESG initiatives to create greater value for the community
on a continuous basis.

Shareholders

The Company has established a number of efficient channels of
distributing information to its shareholders. The Company regularly
reviews these channels to ensure its effectiveness and ensure
effective and timely dissemination of relevant information to its
shareholders at all times. Shareholders are also encouraged to raise
any question to the Company Secretary.

Customers

The Group is committed to providing quality services and products
to achieve customer satisfaction. Customer feedback is invaluable
as the Group operates in extremely competitive markets. Under
different product categories, we have designated teams serving
key customers. We also have experienced sales attendants on site
who would introduce brands and products based on customers'’
requirement, and assist the customers by offering advice and
guidance on product functions, features, dimensions and
installations. To better serve our customers or potential customers
who do not visit our sales outlets, we have service hotlines and
website for handling inquiries from them.
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RIE-HERELGRS

Employees

The Group had 33 employees as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
95). The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice and provides various fringe
benefits to employees. The Group conducts induction training for
all of its new employees and on-going training from time to time
during their employment. The nature of training offered depends
on their specific field of operation. As the Group continues its
expansion, opportunities are always available for hardworking
employees.

Suppliers

The Group is committed to upholding laws and regulations that
are relevant to its business and closely monitor the Group'’s policies
relating to maintaining of business ethics.

Government

The Group is mainly engaged in the sale and distribution of
merchandise and the provision of interior design and engineering
services. These activities are mainly subject to the jurisdictions of
laws of the PRC. Along with different government laws, rules and
regulations, each operating company makes tremendous effort to
ensure that it is complied with the relevant laws and regulations.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group's respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the Report
to assist the Group in reviewing its operations and identifying
relevant ESG issues and assess the importance of related matters
to its businesses and stakeholders. The Group had compiled
guestionnaires to collect information from relevant departments,
business units, and stakeholders of the Group to identify key ESG
issues.

The Group has taken into account the feedback from relevant
stakeholders in determining the significant ESG aspects covered
in the Report. A summary of significant ESG issues for the Group
based on relative importance is displayed below:

The ESG Reporting Guide
RIR-HERERREIESI

Environmental
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A2. Use of Resources
A2. FRER

Paper consumption

MRFERE

Electricity consumption

Water consumption
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A3. The Environmental and Natural Resources
A3. IRIBERKAER

A4. Climate Change
Ad. RIREAE

Impacts on the environmental and natural resources
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“HERELAHRS

The ESG Reporting Guide
R ERERREIESI

Material ESG issues

BRI -HEREGEE

Social
e
B1. Employment Recruitment, promotion and dismissal
B1. & B B KEE
Compensation and benefits
FrEM @R
B2. Health and Safety Safety management measures
B2. BEHEZE T2 BB
B3. Development and Training Development and training
B3. EEE I ERLIE
B4. Labour Standards Prevention of child and forced labour
B4. T iZ#E BhIEE T K@ hlss T
B5. Supply Chain Management Suppliers sourcing and selection mechanism
B5. ftfEsEEIE L T 2R TR e i A A
B6. Product Responsibility Product quality and safety
B6. EmETT ERRmBERTZE
Customer satisfaction
BERmEE
Customer data protection and privacy
ERERHRE KRR
B7. Anti-corruption Anti-corruption
B7. R&5 R&E5
Whistle-blowing mechanism
B
B8. Community Investments Corporate social responsibility
B8. HtEKH& rEHEER

In FY2022, the Group confirmed that it has established appropriate
and effective management policies and internal control systems for
ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents comply with
the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Emissions

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for
the Group. Therefore, we are dedicated to maintaining
our energy consumption and emission at low level in
every single step. The conscientious use of resources
and adoption of best practices across the Group’s
businesses underlie its commitment to safeguarding
the environment. The Group encourages environmental
protection, complies with relevant environmental
legislations and promotes awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees.

In light of the nature of business and operation, the
Group does not involve in production of related air,
water, land pollutions, greenhouse gas, hazardous waste
and non-hazardous waste and does not have any direct
or significant impact on the environment and natural
resources. Nevertheless, the Group is aware that the daily
operation of the office and warehouse consume paper,
electricity and water. The Group recognises the impact
caused by these consumptions and the production of
waste. For the past several years, the Group has been
putting emphasis in energy conservation, rolling out IT
initiatives to help decrease unnecessary wastage and
reduce carbon emission and adopting different policies on
use of resources with an aim to reduce the impact on the
environment.
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A2. Use of Resources

The Group is committed to protecting the environment
by enhancing our operational efficiency and energy
efficiency to reduce energy, water, paper and waste by
following initiatives:

Paper

e Using E-fax to minimise printing needs

e Handling documents electronically except for formal

Documents

e Using recycled paper and double-sided printing
except for formal and confidential documents

Paper Consumption: 0.5 tonnes (2021: 1.0 tonnes)

Total consumption of paper of the Group was about 0.5

tonnes (FY2021: 1.0 tonnes).

Electricity

®  The use of electricity in the office of the Group must
comply the principles of power saving, safety first,
high efficiency and low consumption

e Light and electronic appliances like air-conditioners,

computers, photocopy machines, printers in
workplace must be turned off when not in use

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Electricity Consumption: 778,223 kwh (FY2021:
919,858 kwh)

Total consumption of electricity at the Group's
headquarter and other subsidiaries in the PRC was
674,237 kWh (kilowatt-hour) (FY2021: 775,360 kWh)
and 103,996 kWh (FY2021: 144,498 kWh) respectively,
which produced about 529 tonnes carbon (FY2021: 609
tonnes carbon) and 82 tonnes carbon (FY2021: 113
tonnes carbon) respectively (Assuming that 0.785 kg
(kilogram) of carbon will be produced by 1 kWh electricity
consumption).

Water

Posting notices at common areas of the office reminding
staff members to reduce water consumption and the
importance of water saving.

Water Consumption: 8,198 m? (FY2021: 12,717 n¥)

Total consumption of water at the Group’s headquarter
and other subsidiaries in the PRC was 7,433 m3 (cubic
meter) (FY2021: 10,986 m3) and 766 m3 (FY2021: 1,731
m?3) respectively. The Group had not encountered any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

The consumption of electricity and water reported above
are stated in the total amount of their measuring units.
As the Group is operating a variety of store portfolios,
intensity data (e.g per store or per gross sales area)
were not prepared because such indicators may not be
meaningful.

Stationery and Furniture
Reusing stationery, furniture and equipment among

offices and branches instead of buying new ones or
disposing of such materials.
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Waste

Encouraging recycling through installation of plastic,
paper and aluminum recycling boxes at the headquarters.

Packaging

During the course of the Group's business operation, it
does not generally involve the use of packaging materials
and thus its impacts on the environment are considered
to be minimal.

The Environment and Natural Resources

During the year, the Group consumed both less electricity
and less water. With the reduction of Company’s
headcount, the consumption of electricity decreased by
approximately 15%. On the other hand, with the closures
of retail stores and the Company’s internal policies to
control water wastage, the consumption of water of the
Group decreased by approximately 36% during the year
ended 31 December 2022. The Group also continued
its campaign to promote paperless working practice,
of which the paper consumption remained less than 1
tonnes during the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed above, the Group's business has no
direct or significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

Climate Change

The Group is actively studying the strategies and
policies of the PRC government and agrees that the
environment and climate change will pose risks to the
Group, such as extreme weather that could damage the
Group's operating equipment and increase the Group's
operating costs. In addition, the Group has also identified
opportunities for quality operations, committed to
improving the competitiveness and anticipated potential
risks to resist force majeure.
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SOCIAL

B1. Employment

The Group adopts fair and open recruitment mechanism
with all positions being openly recruited regardless of
age, gender, race, nationality, religion, marital status
or disability. Apart from internal transfers, all vacancies
are published to public via different recruiting channels
such as advertisement, online recruitment channels,
recruitment fairs, recruitment through Personnel
Exchange Center and recommendation.

A formal induction together with a tour of the
workplace is provided to all employees on the first day of
employment. This aims to welcome the new employees
and give them a better understanding of the Group. A
brief introduction of employee handbook is provided
to ensure new employees are aware of relevant policies
and code of conduct. Employee handbook together
with various guidelines and benefits are uploaded on
the Group’s intranet network for the access for all staff
members

As at 31 December 2022, the Group complied with the
Labour Law of the PRC, the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and all other
relevant Hong Kong/PRC employment laws and
regulations that deal with working hours and rest period
and had a total of 33 (as at 31 December 2021: 95) full
time employees. Breakdowns of the current employees by
position and gender, age and years of service are set forth
below respectively:
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The Group achieved relatively lower turnover rate in general
frontline positions and young workforce, but there was a reduction
of the total number of employee headcounts due to departmental
restructuring and the total number of employees decreased by
approximately 65.3% for the Reporting Period as compared
to FY2021. The turnover rate for the management team was
comparatively low which was reflected by the steady number of
senior management employees.

The Group strives to provide a work environment with equal
opportunities regardless of gender and age. As at 31 December
2022, the Group's male to female employee maintained at 2.3:1.
The Group had also recruited from a diverse age group. Around
67% of our workforce were fell in the age group of 30-50, while
around 33% were in the age groups of 51 or above, respectively.
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B2. Health and Safety

104

The Group strives to promote safety awareness, improve
occupational environment and reduce occupational risks.
The Group continuously promotes safety awareness
among employees and committed to providing a healthy
and safe working environment for our employees and
complies with the relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has dedicated adequate resources and effort to
uphold and improve the Group’s safety management
measures in order to reduce the risks relating to labour
safety, such as:

Guidelines

e Adopting and reviewing from time to time written
guidelines and policies for work safety and
occupational health safety

e Ensuring a healthy and safe workplace and
compliance with all relevant workplace health and
safety laws

Insurance

e Maintaining various insurance policies of endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, industrial injury insurance, maternity
insurance, and housing accumulation fund for
employees’ compensation and liability

Other safety Measures
e Conducting fire drill regularly and demonstration of
the use of fire extinguisher so as to enhance the fire

safety awareness

e  Providing regular training sessions on accident
prevention and management to the employees

Work Related Injury
e There was no fatality or injury case related to work

during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021
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B3. Development and Training

The Group believes that investing in employees is
essential to the future strength and success of its
business. The Group conducts various internal trainings
for different level of staff members. There is a general
regular training section to all employees once a month
during the morning meeting. For new employees, they
are required to take a one-week training on specific job
duty. The managers of each department will take turns
to different departments to provide training on product
knowledge, sales skills, store management, market
development and business operation etc.

Besides, the Group also encourages and offers the
opportunities for its staff members to take external
training from the suppliers.

All these trainings are designed to enhance and broaden
employees’ skill sets.

The Group encourages communication and interaction
of the staff members with the management. The Group
provides a wide spectrum of informal communication
platforms regularly. There are advisory boxes in the
office, and regular experience sharings between middle
and senior management. Through these gatherings,
management is alerted to the issues raised by staff
members and can carry out responsive measures to
improve operations if appropriate. Besides, this enhanced
the sense of belongs of staff members.
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Furthermore, the Group arranged some regular and
irregular activities to facilitate as communication
platforms for the management and staff members such
as follows:

e Chinese New Year Gathering (" &EBIEZ") is the
most prestigious event of the year, attended by all
staff in the Group. Lots of lucky draws and games
make the evening full of energy and excitement. This
event provided chances to appreciate all of the staff
members with for the effort during the year.

e The Group believes that happy staff makes happy
customers and endeavor to provide happy working
environment. The Group promotes the relationship
between staff to make them like family members.
To promote work life balance, the Group organised
wellness activities like climbing the Baisui Mountain
("BmWU"EXEEHRREEE) and Tianbaigong
Mountain (" XBAQ"BXEEHRREE) in the past
years.
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B4. Labour Standards
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The Group believes in nurturing and developing top
talents regardless of race, gender, age, religious belief,
pregnancy, marital status, family status or disability. The
Group also respects human rights and oppose to the
abuse of child labour or forced labour in our businesses.
There is no use of child labour or forced labour in the
Group during the Reporting Period.

The Group also has policies to ensure all employees
and job applicants enjoy equal opportunities and fair
treatment. All employees have the right to complain in
case of discrimination, suspected misconduct and illegal
acts via established procedures. The Group will investigate
each complaint thoroughly, resolving it fairly and in the
strictest confidence.

The Group is also in compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to Labour Contract
Law of the PRC, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour and Employment of Children Regulations
(chapter, 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong,
etc. Recruitment and employment are carried out in full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations such as
the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, Laws of Hong
Kong and the guidelines issued by the human resources
department. The Group did not have any cases related to
child labour or forced labour in this year.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that sourcing and selection of
suppliers play a crucial part in enriching our brand
and product mix. The assessment on suppliers places
emphasis on their market positioning, image of
their brand projected, product design, production
capacity, quality and price range, anticipated market
acceptance of their products, supply lead time, reliability,
creditworthiness and past experiences in conducting
business with them. The Group's procurement team
regularly looks for quality suppliers in the market, and
will engage new suppliers upon their satisfaction of our
internal review and approval, which includes interview
with their responsible personnel and site visit to the
suppliers’ premises.

Product Responsibility

To enhance customers’ satisfaction of the merchandise,
the Group has stringent control over the quality of
merchandise. The Group carefully selects suppliers, and
pursuant to the supply or distribution agreements. The
Group's suppliers shall ensure the quality of products and
may also be required to provide us with the after-sale
services for the products sold to the Group. The Group
conducts inspections on the quality, measurement and
other specifications of the merchandise before accepting
delivery from the suppliers. The Group is entitled to
return or exchange the products to the suppliers if they
are found to be defective or otherwise in unsaleable
condition.
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In general, no products return or exchange by customers
is allowed except for malfunctions of or manufacturing
defects in products. Nevertheless, to foster customer
loyalty and enhance customer satisfaction, the Group
may allow product return or exchange to be made with
a valid receipt within seven days after purchase provided
that the merchandise is in good and saleable condition.
The Group also offers product warranty period of one
to three years depending on the nature of merchandise.
During the warranty period, the Group provides
maintenance and repair services to the customers for free
and will also exchange any defective products for free on
the condition that such products have been installed in
accordance with the manual and were used under normal
conditions. Defective products could be returned to the
suppliers for repair or replacement if the relevant supplier
is found to be liable for such defect.

Customer data protection and privacy

In addition, the Group is dedicated to protecting
intellectual property rights as well as consumer data
and privacy. Without the permission of the customers,
consumer data will not be used for publicity or other
purposes.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021, the Group has not identified any non-
compliance cases relating to product responsibility.
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B7. Anti-corruption

The Group takes its fraud prevention or anti-corruption
responsibilities very seriously. In addition to the ongoing
review of the effectiveness of the internal control systems,
the Group has established a whistleblowing policy
to direct employees to report to the Group’s internal
audit department about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Group. The Group also established
policy and guidelines about fraud prevention. They are
Commercial Bribery Control Rule ({72 BEE& FH &0 5T
B1)), Financial Fraud and Complaint Rule and Fraud
Prevention (B4 B EEMRBHEE R iR 22 HIRE ), Inspection
and Reporting Procedures (= B BE KR 5727 )) and
Management Override Prevention Policy ({B5 IEEIE/E
HEER)) .

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021, no legal case regarding corruption was
brought against the Group or its employees. Also, there
were no material cases of noncompliance with laws and
regulations on anti-money laundering in the PRC and
Hong Kong.
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B8. Community Investments
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The awareness of corporate social responsibility has
been increasing in the market. The Group realises the
importance of different stakeholders’ expectations.
In achieving long term, stable and healthy business
prosperity and growth, the Group strives to balance
the interests between stakeholders and is committed to
improve the community’s wellbeing.

The Group encourages the employees to play an active
role in the communities where they live and work. In
the past years, the Group was engaged in different
events with an aim to fulfill its social responsibility. For
example, in the past few years, the Group launched
“Jiyi Inspirational Student Fund” ((e—BIEBIZE %) for
the poor but outstanding students in Meizhou lJiaying
University (181 1 52 FE K 22), aiming at providing better
environment for those hardworking and ambitious
students to achieve their dreams.

The Group will continue to explore other means to
contribute more to the environment and strive to facilitate
the building of a healthy and sustainable society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RIE-HERERREESI

REPORTING INDEX

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
FEHB EE-—K

B RAREANISR st EA 4 L

A. Environmental

A. IRIE

A1: Emissions

Al T BEEY)

General Disclosure *A1. Emissions*
—AR i BB *A1HRRA*

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data | *A1. Emissions*

RS AE I IZAT.T

PR e 8 K AR R HE IR #E

*A1 R

KPIA1.2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where

Not applicable to the Group's

appropriate, intensity business
RS A IS 1RAT.2 BERBHNEER MEBER BE FBERARAEBNETR

KPI'A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced and, where

Not applicable to the Group'’s

appropriate, intensity business
RSB AR R FE1RAT1.3 FTELEEREEMEER WER) BE ABERARAEBNER

KPI'A1.4

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity

*A1. Emissions*

FRENIERA14

PREEBREEEYMER WER) BE

*A1BED*

KPI'A1.5

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved

*A1. Emissions*

BB AR IS 1RAT5

5 1R R B IR 2 B+ T K2 P 5 AR SR

*A1BER YD

KPI'AT.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved

*A1. Emissions™*

B EMIEIRAL.6
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*A1BERp*
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

total and intensity

Indicators (KPls) Description Section/Declaration
FEHBEE--—MK

HERARENIER HEA 3L

A2: Use of Resources

A2 (EREEA

General Disclosure *A2. Use of Resources*
— RN ER *A2 BIRfEA*

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in | *A2. Use of Resources*

B SRR AR 1RA2. 1

RRMEDIWEE KR NEREREEEREE

*A2 BERER*

results achieved

KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity *A2. Use of Resources — Water*
RA A RE1RA2.2 RIEKBREE *A2. BIRfERA—K*
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and *A2. Use of Resources —

Electricity*

B SRR R FE1RA2.3

I AR 5 BB M 51 B R RIS AR

*A2 BJRIEA—8*

KPIA2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved

*A2. Use of Resources — Water*

RASRAE IS IRA2.4

I K EVE R KR P BERREE  URIRTA B
K 518 K S AR SR

*A2 BEIRER—7K*

KPI'A2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced

*A2. Use of Resources —
Packaging *

RS AE R FE1RA2.5

N mFTAEEMENEER WER) BEESE
A==

*A2.BIRIER— B %
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEEm-—%
B R RRENIEE B A - P L

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 [ IRIERBIAER

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities *A3. The Environment and
on the environment and natural resources and the Natural Resources*
actions taken to manage them

R SRAR A HEARA3.1 HINEB RS HRIRIERRARAERNEATE R *A3IRIE R BAREIR*

REEERRZENTE

A4: Climate Change

4 FIREML

General Disclosure

—ARINEE

KPIA.4.1

Description of the significant climate-related issues

which have impacted, and those which may impact,

the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them

*A4. Climate Change*

B RRE IS RA 4L

WO &R EEHBTAEERENERRIE
HEAEE  REHTTH)
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

group and geographical region

Indicators (KPls) Description Section/Declaration
TE@EEE—&

HERARENIER e 3L

B. Social

B. #&

B1: Employment

B1: {E(®

General Disclosure *B1. Employment*
—ARINEE *B1 BB~

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age *B1. Employment

— STAFF DISTRIBUTION BY
POSITION AND GENDER

— DISTRIBUTION BY AGE

— DISTRIBUTION BY YEARS OF
SERVICE*

RASRAE IS 1EB1.1

MR B EEE FRER Rt @B DRI B T4
=

*B1.1E1%

- BRI MERE D
- BRERE D

- BIRBEEE D

KPIB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region

*B1. Employment*

FHAEWIE1EB1 .2
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*B1.{E{E*
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEEm-—%
B R RRENIEE B A - P L

B2: Health and safety

B2 . EEHZLZS

General Disclosure

*B2. Health and Safety*

—RRE

*B2 ERE L

KPIB2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

R S4B 51282,

E TERAARMIE TR A B EEXR

KPI B2.2

Lost days due to work injury

B2 AR A5 1%B2.2

HITHBERH TIERE

KPIB2.3

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored

*B2. Health and Safety*

BSR4 A5 1%B2.3

TP ER A BV 2 (R R B 2 24 T LUK AERE#
TRERG

\|

i
Wt
i

*B2 R BB

B3. Development and training

B3. EE&IEI

General Disclosure

*B3. Development and Training™*

— R E

*B3. 2 B Ky i Il

KPI'B3.1

The percentage of employee trained and employee
category

*B3. Development and
Training*

3] 2 48 A5 1%B3. 1

RESEREDHZIEER DL

*B3 8 & ;e 1R E)l

KPI B3.2

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category

*B3. Development and
Training*

B2 4R A F51RB3.2

Bith Rk EEERE D HERESTMZIT
R

*B3.2 B K15l
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPls) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
1 E K RRERIEE #REA - P L

B4: Labour Standards

B4 : BT T

General Disclosure

*B4. Labour Standards*

practices to avoid child and forced labour

— RN ER *B4.55 TR A~
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment *B4. Labour Standards*

B S AR A5 1%B4. 1

Rt R (8 18 B Y8 i OB o B8 T Ko s il o5 T

*B4.55 T AR %~

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices | *B4. Labour Standards*
when discovered
RA AR X3E1RB4.2 M ERERERB R HRBRBERMRERNS | *B4. B TREE
11 8 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEEm-—%
B R RRENIEE B A - P L

B5: Supply Chain Management

BS : HIEEEIE

General Disclosure

—RIRE
KPI'B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region *B5. Supply Chain
Management*

2R S AR 2 F5 42 B5. 1 it e 8 DR 2 E *B5. {1 & 3 B 3B+

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, | *B5. Supply Chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management*
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored

A S AR A HE1EB5.2 A RIS R E RIS S  mERNTHRE G *B5. MR EIE~
NHEEEE « UK B REAINNITRERS A

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify *B5. Supply Chain
environmental and social risks along the supply chain, | Management*
and how they are implemented and monitored.

A S AR A $E1EB5.3 WA B B R IV IRIE Rt B R IR AVIE 6 - *B5. (LR BB~
MR ABRAMIT REE 7k

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote *B5. Supply Chain
environmentally preferable products and services Management*
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A SR AR 2 5 12B5.4 BT REHREREESRIRRE QKRR | *BoHEEEIE

18O USRI IT R EE TR 5k ©
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPls) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
1 E K RRERIEE #REA - P L

B6: Product Responsibility

B6 : EmuE

General Disclosure

*B6. Product Responsibility*

—ARINEE

*B6. EmBE*

KPI B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons

*B6. Product Responsibility*

B SR AR R F51%B6. 1

CENCEXERBRTEZ 2 REREHRME
WHEYE D EE

*B6.EmET*

KPI' B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with

*B6. Product Responsibility*

RASRAE WIS 12B6.2

BRERNERKRBGIRF#HE URER S

*B6.Emm s E*

KPI' B6.3

Description and practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights

*B6. Product Responsibility*

BSR4 X 151%B6.3

B35 ST Jso #fE 5 M o8l 2 P A RA B L e 18 B

*B6.EmEE*

BERTE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall *B6. Product Responsibility*
procedures

A A XI5 1%B6.4 R B 21 E B8 K E m e E *B6.EE an &= 1+

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy | *B6. Product Responsibility*
policies, how they are implemented and monitored

A S 4R X35 12B6.5 HIMUE B & B RHRE RAARBEER » LURBRAHIT *B6.EmmE fE*
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IR

HERERES

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
FEHB EEH--—K

HERABENMIER e 3L

B7: Anti-corruption

B7 : R&S

General Disclosure *B7. Anti-corruption*
—fRINER *B7.RE5*

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt -

practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
case

B 2 4R A5 1RB7 .1

RESHARETANEESRETEEECHE
S ERER T MR B Ko s aR A

KPIB7.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored

*B7. Anti-corruption*

B2 4R A5 1RB7 .2

HA LSRR A RREN  URBRARTRER

ARz

*B7.REI5*

KPIB7.3

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

*B7. Anti-corruption*

B2 AR A5 1RB7 .3

WA REHERREESRRARERMRBERN
BB DURABRI ST R EE 5 5% ©

*B7.REI5*

E—EREMRAR
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPls) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
1 E K RRERIEE #REA - P L

B8: Community Investments

B : HHE&EE

General Disclosure

*B8. Community Investments*

environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport)

— RN ER *Beit @I E*
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, *B8. Community Investments*

R SR 4 2 F51RB8. 1

EIERERE MHE RREEE - HFLIRER &
B X1E-EB)

Bt @G E*

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the *B8. Community Investments*
focus area
A i 4R X35 12B8.2 AEIMBFAEMNEIR W25 RE) *BeIt @ E*
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiyi
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group”) set out on pages 135 to 311, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

5 3L % B 3R &

= ==
< H

HRE—ZERARABTRR ZIBIIIZHETRS

(RS EFMAI B RAE)
BER

RMEEHE—EZERARAE (B8 RH
MEAE (Al EEE) IR E135E311
BNGREMBRET BER "S- "F+_A
=+—BZREMBRRE URBEZHL
FEZEREEnREMEAERG R GREEa
BEFRARGERENER UGBV HHRR
st BEETEEABEREIE

KA 2SRV BRKRERBESEG ST
MAg (EEFMAAE)) ERNS A BER
HEL ((ERAPMBREER) BEEMP SR
T BSEER-_E__#+_-_B=+—HBH
REMBRARESEZHEFENGS
BRERMGERERE TEEREBLEK
BRI BERE Ak
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. The key audit matters we identified are (i)
impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets;
and (i) revenue recognition on contract work of interior design and
building engineering services.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022
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Key audit matter
PSR Et R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
5 3L % B 3R &

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEMANEANARIEMREN SN

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

BRRWREAUREHEEZRETE

We identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter
due to the significance of trade receivables and contract
assets to the Group's consolidated financial position and
the involvement of significant management judgements
in evaluating the expected credit losses ("ECL") of the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets.
RME#NEZBRURIERGNEE Z RENG
AHAREREE REARBZRUARBEBRENE
EY BEBRZGEMBRIMEBEKXR BT
it EEBCEZRBRBRENEEZRRAGE
B8 ((FEHEERE) I REREIEZHE-

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
trade receivables and contract assets included:

BB ZRWHIERESNEE 2 RETEMETZIE
FEE:

e Obtaining an understanding of the key controls on how
the management estimates the ECL allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets;
THREEEBMGHESRRNEBERENEETRBRES
BEEENEEZES ;

E—ERERAR
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Key audit matter
R EHRIE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEAMAEEMREATE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

BREWREURSHEEZRENYE (@)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's net trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to
approximately RMB262,044,000 and RMB364,929,000,
which  represented approximately 19% and 27% of
total assets of the Group, respectively. The management
of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of
trade receivables and their related contract assets based
on individual assessment for those which had been
determined as significant balance or credit impaired
whereas the remaining balance are assessed by means
of provision matrix through groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns, after considering internal
credit ratings of trade receivables and their related
contract assets, ageing, repayment history and/or past
due status and forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. Estimated losses are based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and their related contract assets and are
adjusted for forward-looking information.

N_Z__F+_RB=+—H> BEEEZESREK
MEUREHNEEFEANARE262,044,0007T K&
AR 364,929,000t ohllh SEEEBEEZYN
19%/K27% - BEEEEEEREEARENSLHR
EEREZEBZRBAREREGHENEE ZER
> st B RUEEIER EER SN EEZ 2 T8
HIEE BB MRER U B EHBEH TG I
TEREZRUREREEBENEENNNEER
R EREC ERT R R AR RS ETREER
BATKNENANE RN ESNRTEMLERE 5
BEMERBERINSBEHZANETDHE G5tEED
BEREEBZRUREREEREGHNEERFHARN
BEBEFAENENISL WA B REL S

o
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Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in identifying of significant or credit impaired trade
receivables and contract assets and grouping of the
remaining balance of trade receivables and contract
assets into different categories in the provision matrix
with reference to ageing, repayment history and/or past
due status of trade receivables and contract assets;
EREEEMNAERELEREEREZEZRK
MIERENEEUREEZRBHRIERGHNEERR
BEoRBEHEERERAFRERN ZEERIE EFH2
ZERRBARBRENEEZRE - BREL R
SEHAAR T

Assessing the reasonableness in determining i)
estimated loss rate applied for the significant or credit
impaired trade receivables and their related contract
assets, ii) estimated loss rate applied in each category
in the provision matrix and iii) forward-looking
information, with reference to financial information of
debtors (if available), default rates and recovery rates
published by a credit rating agency, historical default
rates and settlement records of debtors, ageing analysis
of trade receivables and contract assets and current
economic conditions;

MEEEUTEEZSEMN BERANAKERBE LR
EEREZESRUREBREBMSNEE ZEHE
o0 EBEREERERZ (T EBEE KiiAl
EHER BHR2ZEBAZYBEN (Ha#HE
R EBENRKREETREBAMZEBIEBEFA
ZIBFEANXREMNCR BERRERREBERENE
7 2 BREe DT LU B AT IR IR
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Key audit matter
PSR Et R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEMANEANARIEMREN SN

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

BRRWHREURSHEEZRENYE (@)

As disclosed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an allowance
for expected credit losses ("ECL") amounted to
approximately RMB9,022,000 and RMB5,019,000 of
trade receivables and contract assets during the year
ended 31 December 2022, respectively. The accounting
policies and estimation uncertainty in relation to the
impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract
assets are set out in Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

N EMBRRMWFI0FMEE BEZ_S -2
+ZA=+—HBLFE> BSEERIEZEWIIE
REHNEEZTEREEHEE (BREEHE)) &5
DRIA R AR ¥9,022,0007T &2 A R #5,019,0007T °
ERESREMEBERENEEZ REN G ZE5TH
Rt AEE MDA AR S IR RM T3 R4 0

Testing the integrity of information used by
management to estimate the ECL allowance of
individual debtors and develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables and contract assets ageing
analysis as at 31 December 2022, on a sample basis,
by comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales agreements, sales invoices and other
supporting documents;

WA EERE BN LsHENEHB A ZEREES
HEEATICREERZEN ZTEYE  AAER
BREEZRRRIERENEEN _2_"_F+_A
=t+—HZERESN BBRERS P2 E5EE
BAERAH E R  HEEERAME T XS ;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtaining an understanding of their scope of work and
terms of engagement; and
TEBEUISEREX G ZBEREI ENRE
BT RETFHERSEER ; &

Challenging the valuation technique and
reasonableness of the significant inputs used by the
management and the valuer in the valuations based on
information obtained from the independent sources.
BEEBUBMNRENEZER BREEE &G
BN LERMRGEER EZRERBAMB L GIE
Mo
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Key audit matter
R EHRIE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEAMAEEMREATE

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design and building engineering services

ERRGRBEEIRRBSHIENRATESD

We identified the revenue recognition on contract work
of interior design and building engineering services as a
key audit matter due to the involvement of significant
management estimation in measuring the progress
for performance obligations of incomplete services
contracts.

AR BRTHRBENZBNERTEE I REXR
EEE MG WRMAEHNEARS RBERIRZRS
BHNTRZ WA AERETEE

The Group recognised contract revenue by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations at the end of the reporting
period which measured based on the proportion of
contract costs incurred for work performed to date
relative to the estimated total contract costs. The
recognition of contract revenue therefore involves
significant management’s judgements and estimation
of the progress and outcome of the project, particularly
in estimating the budgeted contract costs based on
the agreements, quotations or other correspondences
from time to time provided by the subcontractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of the
management.
EEEZENREPRTRENBNE T EERT
ERNRA EREEREREBITIFELEZSHMK
FAEHE G SR AR LA E - F L > RS
MRASREEEBHEREERER ZERHE K
Est LEHEGFBEESONE HLiRIESEE SR
ZnEE HEEEE B R R M 2 %% |RES
HBAMUREERE 2 KB mhste
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Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition on
contract work of interior design and building engineering
services included:
BPIMEARFTRERIRERB SO IR ZWA SR
ETZEFEE:

e  Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over
the processes that the management performed in
relation to the estimation of total contract costs and the
determination of the status of completion of the service
contracts;
THREBENEH SN EEREERTENZ
TR PR EIT Z 12 7 P 2 AR IES

e Understanding from project managers about the status
of completion of selected contracts at the end of
reporting period;
MIEEKETRAMEESNNRES R Z M
s
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Key audit matter
PSR Et R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEMANEANARIEMREN SN

Construction revenue and contract assets are estimated
by using the percentage of completion method, which
is calculated based on the costs incurred on each
construction contract at the end of the reporting period
divided by the total estimated costs for the contract and
then multiplied by the estimated construction revenue
expected to be earned.
BREWARSNEENERTHB DL A ETHE
AR RS REESNNREHREREEL 2R
KRS 2 (5T A48 %8 » B IR LATEAARS BRE 2 1
ST AGTE

As disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the revenue recognised from provision
of interior design and building engineering services
amounted to approximately RMB28,457,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2022. The accounting policies
and estimation uncertainty in relation to the revenue
recognition on contract work are set out in Notes 3 and
4 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
MR BB RRWEASIRE  RMBEE_T -
TZA=+—HLEFERIKRBREEARST RE
RIERBZWAKNARE28,457,0007c - BRAGHK
TRWARES &5t BUR Kb st A HEE M2 RIS
RE M IRARME3I R

Evaluating the reasonableness of estimated total
contract costs to be incurred by checking against
the agreements, quotations, invoices or other
correspondences from time to time provided by
subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved, on a
sample basis; and
FEwmE2EAD DO HEMSNHEE AR
Rz W% B LR HMBH > HARFTER T
EEXZFHRENMEAZ5EY &

Evaluating the reasonableness of the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligations
of service contracts by comparing the percentage
calculated based on costs incurred at the end of the
reporting period against that calculated based on
confirmations from surveyors, if any, on a sample basis,
and investigating any significant differences identified.
WL mENBITRBEVBNEEZEEZ
BEM FAEARIERBREBREGHARFAEEN SR
ZEDLERBASMZESR WA tEZEB S
tE» UK B EERIFTHA B 2 ERERE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors of the Company in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group's audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 1% D R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy

Practising Certificate Number: PO7560
24/F, Siu On Centre,

188 Lockhart Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

31 March 2023
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains, net

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Provision for impairment losses under
expected credit loss model, net

Provision for impairment loss on
goodwill

Share-based payment expenses

Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year

TEMENT OF PROFIT ORLOSS AND

OTHER COMPBEHENSIVE INCQLME

ST RhEMZAKE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZE__F+_HA=+—HILFE

2022 2021

—E-— s

NOTES RMB’000 RMB 000

Jiorza ARETFT ANEBFT

WA 5 559,763 458,296

HE K (529,444) (430,716)

EH] 30,319 27,580

HUg A 7 7,708 21,105

Hham $ 58 8 2,945 7,303

DRI E R (5,266) (5,433)

THRX (15,808) (14,455)
TEHEEEERE T ZRE

ESIE R JBRE 10 (33,180) (6,162)

BEZ BEEERE

(1,175) =

RS AR AR (11,903) (303)

YR 3D N 9 (13,439) (17,846)

PR AT (B538) EF (39,799) 11,789

iSRSz 11 (117) (3,925)

F A (F5E) ER 12 (39,916) 7,864
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_Z__F+_A=+—HILFE

Other comprehensive income:

Item that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:

Gain on revaluation upon transfer of
property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to investment
properties, net of related income
tax

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

(Loss)/profit for the year
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for
the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company for
the year
— Basic (RMB cents per share)

— Diluted (RMB cents per share)
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ROFIT OR LOSS AND

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBEFT NEBFT
399 2,046
6,452 (1,173)
6,851 873
(33,065) 8,737
(39,761) 7,559
(155) 305
(39,916) 7,864
(32,910) 8,432
(155) 305
(33,065) 8,737
(Restated)

Geg=ze 7))

(17.88) 4.44
(17.88) 4.42




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBRRER

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 RIZEZ-HF+ZA=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Goodwill

Prepayment for acquisition of
investment properties

Deposits and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Amounts due from related parties

Trade and other receivables and
prepayments

Contract assets

Restricted cash

Bank balances and cash

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank borrowings

Other borrowings

Lease liabilities
Convertible loan notes
Contract liabilities
Income tax payables
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NOTES
HfaE

16
17
18
19

23(d)
23

20
32

21
26

23
22
24
25

27
28
28
31
29
30

2022 2021
—E-C TET—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT NE#FT
19,705 25,009
7,067 7,605
61,520 62,500
52,033 53,208
33,977 33,977
- 42,893
1,178 1,178
10,633 6,601
186,113 232,971
1,218 4,280
3,945 934
795,437 580,511
364,929 350,521
182 2,182
7,017 31,958
1,172,728 970,386
1,358,841 1,203,357
120,246 97,609
232,038 267,734
3,360 50,602
41 181
44,014 37,110
3,483 1,576
28,678 24,971
431,860 479,783
E—ERARAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EMBIRAR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 MZ-ZE_—_&+_H=+—H

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

MENEERE
HEEARHAR
ERBAR

IRITERR
HE&R

BEFE

B2 Rz ki

R
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FAEBEE AELER

IFERED

R 4RER

The consolidated financial statements on pages 135 to 311 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ms. Hou Wei

R
DIRECTOR
EF
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28
31
32

33

E135E3N1ENGEEHFEHREREN

2022 2021
—E-C s —
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT NEBETFT
740,868 490,603
926,981 723,574
- 4,404
= 53
21,877 21,239
21,877 25,696
905,104 697,878
112,112 75,223
792,269 621,777
904,381 697,000
723 878
905,104 697,878
R_ET =

FZA=t+—RESFEHERFETIE I
A TIEEAREE

Mr. Liu Xianxiu

ABESFKE
DIRECTOR
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At 1 January 2021
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Issue of consideration shares (Hote 36)

Conversion of convertible loan notes
(Note 29

Lapse of share options Mote 74)

Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments (ot 34)

Transfer to statutory resenve (Vote/

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2022
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Issue of shares (Aote 33

Evercise of share options /oze 33)

Conversion of convertible loan notes
Note29)

Lapse of share options Note 34)

Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments (Aot 34)

Transfer to statutory resenve (Aote/

At 31 December 2022

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HEEmEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 &ZE_ZE__H+_A=+—HLFE

~5-f-

7l
REM2ENE

EMEMEAE

AERA
BEEIEHE(

EpEmEERG

EnEAEAE

RUBBRAN

Contingent ~ Convertible Property Share-based Non-

Share Share  consideration loan notes Other  revaluation  Translation ~ payments  Statutory Retained controlling
capital premium reserve  equity reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests  Total equity

THRER PLar]
g REER HREH: ELrAiE
Bt RBER  REEE f#f EfHE B ERHR fE  EEHE RIS 0 R ]
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RIMB000 RIMB000 RIMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ABRFE  ABBTR  ARRFT  ABRTT  ARBFT  ABRTT  AREFR  ABRFT  ABETR  ARBRFT  ABRTR  ABRFT  ABRTR
(Note a) (Note ) (Note )
(ida) ) ()

69,002 441,565 B35 8* (54,850) * 2410* 3504 % 4207* 17290 132,115* 673,868 513 674,441
- - - - - - - - - 7559 7559 305 7,864
3 = = = = 2,046 (1173) o = = 8713 = 873
= = o = = 2,046 (1173) = o 7559 8432 305 8737
431 U (3577 = = = = = = - 4500 = 4500
1,890 17,019 = (10) - - = - - - 18899 - 18899
5 - = = s - - (1.779) - 175 = - -
5 5 = = = 5 - 303 - s 03 - ElE
= . 2 = = = = = 602 (602) - - -
53 483328* o 18* (54,850 * 29456 2351% 2735* 17892 140847 697,000 878 697,878
523 483328¢ - 18* (54,850) * 2945 2351 2735* 17892 140,847 697,000 878 697,878
- - - - 4 B - - - 39,761) 39,767) (195) (39916)
= = 2 = = 39 6,452 = = o 6,851 = 6,851
- - - - - 3%9 6,452 = = (39,761) (32.910) (15) (33,065)
33401 174412 - - - - - - - - 207813 - 207813
3488 17,105 - - - - - N - - 20593 . 20593
- - - (18) - - N - - - (18) 2 (18)
- - - - - - - (2,739) - 2735 - - -
- - - - - - - 11903 - - 11903 - 11903
= = = = = = o = 1,064 (1,064 = = =
M e - - GAB0F 2985 L G N VA % ™ I
* ZERBREEEROVBRNRANGS
BHARNET92,269,0007T (CE-—F ! ARHK

approximately RMB792,269,000 (2021: RMB621,777,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

et o

621,777,0007T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE_Z-__F+_A=+—HIFE

Note:

(a)

140

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Island (2009 Revision), the share
premium of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions
or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid and the
Company is able to pay debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Other reserves

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, other reserves mainly comprise (i)
the capital injection from its equity holders of the Company and net
accumulative effect of deemed distributions and contributions between
the Company and its equity holders of the Company since 2014, of
approximately RMB91,523,000 in total, and offsetting (ii) the aggregate
deemed cost of the consideration amounting to RMB145,450,000 paid
to the Company for the issuance of 9,999 new shares to the shareholders
upon the completion of the Reorganisation as detailed in the Company’s

annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

According to the relevant rules and regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"), each of the Company's PRC subsidiaries shall
transfer 10% of their net income after tax, based on the subsidiary’s PRC
statutory accounts, as statutory reserves, until the balance reaches 50%
of the respective subsidiary’s registered capital. Further appropriations can
be made at the directors’ discretion. The statutory reserves can be used
to offset any accumulated losses or convert into paid-up capital of the
respective subsidiary.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss)/profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

(Reversal of)/provision for write-
down of inventories

Finance costs

Provision for impairment losses under
expected credit loss model, net

Impairment loss on Goodwill

Interest income

Loss from changes in fair value
of investment properties

Write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on modification of convertible
loan notes

Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other
receivables

Increase in contract assets

Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills
payables and other payables

Increase/(decrease) in contract
liabilities

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
rERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

NOTES
KiaE
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2022 2021
—ET-= SE T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR EFT NEETFT
(39,799) 11,789
5,028 6,668
314 147
(1,666) 686
13,439 17,846
33,180 6,162
1,175 =
(6,479) (19,315)
1,766 731
= 10
= (5,360)
= (2,000)
= (685)
11,903 303
18,861 16,982
4,728 10,954
(108,668) 11,536
(19,427) (8,286)
22,637 (12,681)
1,907 (8,822)
(79,962) 9,683
= (109)
(79,962) 9,574
E—ERERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mMEBHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #HZE_E - "+ _HA=+—HILEE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Interest received

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from bank and other
borrowings

Net proceeds from placing of shares

Net proceeds from exercising of share
options

Repayment of bank and other
borrowings

Interest paid for bank borrowings

Interest paid for convertible loan
notes

Repayment of lease liabilities
— principal portion

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented
by bank balances and cash

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022

142

NOTES
Ktat
REEE
BEYX BEKRRB
BUFE 7
REEHRT (FRA) RE
R
AR

IRIT R B MBS TR

Fo&E R Z FrS R IBF 88
TEBREZFIISTRIAFEE

EERTREMBER

RITERENAFE
PJREMZZENAHE

BEHEEAE
—REED

RE SRS R

RERAEEEM FHL)
YRR

R—A—BZRERALE
it
SMEEE RIS

R+ZA=+—HzZHER
MEFEY LUERITHEERR
RERT

2022 2021
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RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT NEBETFT
= (374)

260 79
260 (295)

10,043 86,339
207,813 =
20,593 =
(178,408) (57,800)
(4,969) (9,798)
(428) =
(195) (751)
54,449 17,990
(25,253) 27,269
31,958 4,713

312 (24)

7,017 31,958




2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL

Jiyi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The controlling shareholder of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as to the “Group”) is
Xinling Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI") which is wholly-owned by Ms. Hou Wei. The
address of the Company’s registered office is to Windward
3, Regatta Office Park, PO. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands and the address of its principal place of
business is unit 912, 9/F, Tai Yau Building, 181 Johnston Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 41.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") while the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) to enable the
shareholders of the Company to have a more accurate picture
of the Group’s financial position and performance.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

2.2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.2 ERAMIEAMBHREEDN (FEEH

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations

The application of the amendment to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group'’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

2.2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause?

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current’

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants’

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which includes all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (”Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the end
of each reporting period. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (l.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:—

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

e  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders

of the investee;

e  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance. All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in the
accounting policy for subsidiaries below.

Changes in the Group'’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply
an optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of
the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred
tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of
activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no
further assessment is needed.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9.
Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of
HKFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting date with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement
as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units. Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units (group of
cash-generating units) is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit (group of cash-generating
units) and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (variation
order of construction work), the Group estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled using either (a)
the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount,
depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXEHEBE &
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EBRGHWA &)
Existence of significant financing component (Continued) FHEEAMELS (&)

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the services is less than one year, the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.

For contracts where the Group transferred the associated
goods or services before payments from customers in which
the Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration
for significant financing components, the Group applies a
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. The Group recognises interest income during the
period between the payment from customers and the transfer
of the associated goods or services.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of office premises and retail stores that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXEHEEK®
Leases (Continued) HE E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) FEFEZBFABA )
Right-of-use assets EHAESE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FRESERANEE !

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease HEaB YT ESE;

liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement e NEABBHMAXZAFHZERNEAE
date, less any lease incentives received:; TF HERIBEWEEESR ;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and s XREFEELXZEMFVITEEMSE; K

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in o AEERBRABEIRIEBHERE  REME
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring MEEMTES M NS ERHEEEMRE
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying E B R & 1 P RR E AR RE T A
asset to the condition required by the terms and TEEZ AT

conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated RS E AR Al R 5T & KR
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any BEETE IHEaR 2 EREMRS
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments EFHAE > KEEBERECovid-1918RHE
to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent BEMEANATTEE S ZMERNE
concessions in which the Group applied the practical E&mRmRIN e
expedient.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over TRREENHEGAHEREAREER
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. ZRIEEREREETE
JIY1 HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EAIHEE &=

Leases (Continued) HE E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) FEFEABABA (B)

Lease liabilities HEAE

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises REEREBHI cEERIRZERIZN
and measures the lease liability at the present value of ZHENFRERIRGTEREEE -1
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating STEBEENMMIRER  HAREXZEEHE
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the ERa AR AIAEEFSANREERG
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement BHEZ 1 EEMAIE

date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include: MENREE !

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) o EEMM (BRFEBERBENR BEM
less any lease incentives receivable; FEBEEEE ;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a e EN—IEIEHILEXROEMHEN
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the oML ERRABBEIRAZ ISR
commencement date; K&t&

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under e REFNGFEEEFRAHEAEERLET
residual value guarantees; S ZEE8

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is s WMAEESERTETEREEER
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and AIEEEEEEREZTHE &

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease e MEERMRMBAERITHEARLME
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate BEzEZR AR IEEEZ IS
the lease. (NE

160 JIY1 HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE®=E

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modfications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for
a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE®=E

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in Hong Kong dollars to the Group'’s
presentation currency (i.e. RMB) are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in translation
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
translation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.

3.

EREHEK &
5his ()

REBEREFHEEREERELEZE
REBNELAREERDTREE

MBIREMBREMS  AEBEHZ
BEEREREANRSBEHRBITZE
KMERAEFBZ 27 EE BIARE) -
WA KR IEB RN FIHERRE &
FFZHAB 2 R RIENS) > B T
AERANMEHBZER-FRELEZER
Z TR NA) i E M 2 E Y T RS I B
RiEHEE N ZEm Rt

RHE—EBINES BNHEXRERR—
BB EBNEEMED Y RREH—E
BEBIINEBINE AT IEH E D
EFENHECSSRBEEDRATME
ERNBINEBNGELHABMELTN
WoEm) K RAEREEE ABLZEFE
B2 RmPA RSB EREREN

NEERT

BUBTIEZAEREEFESHIR
ERsERNEER BIARR ARZE
RAEBEENEME I W RS R
Hin#FH Rt -RERRETRAZERE
ERERARTEEN D EERm-

E—ERERAR
—E_FFR

165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

166

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
in relation to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in relation
to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payments
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE®=E

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based payments
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be transferred
to share premium.

Share options granted to customers/consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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170

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. KR &
Taxation (Continued) fRIE (&)
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, BVER SR IEAR IR 18 R e a0 M HL B

except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting

REMEERaNEENEaPERZ
HEBRBZBERT  BHAREERIBIN S
DA EMEE RGN E RN B m P
e MEBEH 2Bt EREEERE
MIBSIEIER A BIIR B R B St AT EH

for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the ez EERNC
accounting for the business combination.
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BERSE

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below). Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land under
HKFRS 16 or prepaid lease payments under HKAS 17) at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the property, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes and investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties and
bank balances), and other items (contract assets) which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXEHEE#E

Financial instruments (Continued) £RIAE #)

Financial assets (Continued) ETHEE B

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to THEEREETEBYEREERFI

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued) FE FEEFIEZ BEMES 2 HE (8)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk () EERRARELHA
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased R EEERRES BT BRI
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares RAMEEAR AEBRRKRSBHIAS
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument MTAHRENSESHNRAREYSD
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default WA ITAHBEREOETHN
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of JR B S 1T LE B2 o O AR W Lt TE 5T A B
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group rEEGgEZREGEATJRENTES
considers both quantitative and qualitative information REMELR AR RNEBR
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical = B 4S5 2% /7 B B 11 & B A9 Al R 4
experience and forward-looking information that is Bt

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into BoE AhEERRBEES AEL

account when assessing whether credit risk has increased FE AEEGERUTER !

significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in e FMIANRWEH IRNHBEE
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or SR E RO FERA A TREE = |

internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market e FEERBINEHISZIEREREE
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in = HUEEREXRE LA &
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for BAGEENIEHABHERAIIEL
the debtor; Al
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

186

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

188

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over five years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
certain trade receivables and contract assets are each
assessed as a separate group. Trade receivable and
contract assets with significant outstanding balances
and amounts due from related parties are assessed
for ECL on an individual basis);
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

190

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

e  Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors;

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payable and other
payables, bank borrowings and convertible loan notes are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. KEHE &

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible loan notes

The component parts of the convertible loan notes
are classified separately as financial liability and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.

1 92 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022

IR @&
EHEERED (B
AR IR BT IR

MR EREENEERORESNL
BNREUAREREERRATANE
REUNBERETREBERKRA R UEE
THERERF —EHeREEMRNETEH
BENARABIRAGRATANSKEBFTZ
MR ERRAT R

REFON 8ESH (@ETHRAR
SEMR 30T TEAH) AT ESBHE
TmAAMRARS Z EUEES ATE
1T it o

DEARENRREREESTIANR
TRENFEREDEENSNEE -H
PRREFESD I 5t A R e (REHNPRFATR

&) BAERHEBENE LI 98
%EEE’H@HREY_?%?‘J@EUEAFE*L@JEE’
RZBERT  RERBERRZERRERE
fonumiji°1ﬁ1?ﬁﬁz%#7$ﬁﬁ§%%ﬁﬂﬁﬂEI
MARETE NGRS ERSEEE
T?aamﬁﬂOﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁéﬁéﬁiﬁﬁiﬁfﬁﬁﬂ%{’T\
EYSE Rl G Sl



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible loan notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and
cash at bank balances, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

194

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of
discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated income statement.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is
initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured
at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with the general guidance for provision above;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
guidance for revenue recognition.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:—

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent;

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:—

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group'’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The
Group recognised additional deferred taxes relating to Land
Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
on changes in fair value of such investment properties as
appropriate.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
(including the trading of bulk commodity) to a customer,
the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group as a principal) or to arrange for
those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group as an agent). The Group is a principal if it controls
the specified good or services before that good or services is
transferred to a customer.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets with significant balances
and credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually. In
addition, the Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables and contract assets which are individually
insignificant. The Group has engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to estimate the ECL of the Group's
trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are
based on internal credit ratings as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. Estimated
losses are based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and their related contract
assets and are adjusted for forward-looking information. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in Notes 37(b), 23 and 22,
respectively.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 4. FEEHHEIREFFEEHZEE

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design
and building engineering services

The Group recognised contract revenue by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation at the end of the reporting period which measured
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated total contract
costs. The recognition of contract revenue therefore relies
on the management’s estimation of the progress and
outcome of the project, which involves the exercise of
significant management estimation, particularly in estimating
the budgeted contract costs, which are prepared by the
management of the Group on the basis of agreements,
quotations or other correspondences from time to time
provided by the subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved
and the experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management of the
Group conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of service
contracts by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
amounts incurred. Construction revenue and contract assets
are estimated by using the percentage of completion method,
which is calculated based on the costs incurred on each
construction contract at the end of the respective accounting
period divided by the total estimated costs for the contract
and then multiplied by the estimated construction revenue
expected to be earned.

Notwithstanding that management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for the
construction contract as the contract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue and costs
may be higher or lower than the estimates and this will have
significant impact on the revenue and profit recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 &ZE_ZE__H+_A=+—HLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design
and building engineering services (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, the contract assets recognised based
on the percentage of completion method is RMB364,929,000
(2021: RMB350,521,000).

Impairment assessment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. Determining whether goodwill is
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. As at 31 December 2022
and 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill is RMB52,033,000
(2021: RMB53,208,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 19.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair values, with
changes in fair values being recognised in the consolidated
income statement. The Group engaged independent valuation
specialists to determine fair values as at 31 December 2022.
The valuers used valuation techniques based on an income
approach by referencing the rental income of comparable
market data. The carrying amount of investment properties
at 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB61,520,000
(2021: RMB62,500,000). Further details are disclosed in Note
18.
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5. REVENUE 5. A

() DIHFERSHWA:

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

202

customers:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_S-_—_H+-RA=+—HLEE
Provision of
interior design
Sale and and building
distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total
RIEER
HER Btk
PiEEm  EEIRRS Hst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBEFT AREFT
Types of goods and services SmRkiR#HER
Sale and distribution of merchandise HERDHEm
— Building materials —EM 28,389 - 28,389
— Home improvement materials —REREMR 2,043 - 2,043
— Furnishings —RE 6,424 = 6,424
~ Bulk commodity trading —AREmER 494,450 - 494,450
Provision of interior design and REEARGTRERTIRE
building engineering services AR5
— Interior design —ENKET - 2,224 2,224
- Building engineering services —BETRRH - 26,233 26,233
Total st 531,306 28,457 559,763
Geographical markets HEHIE
The PRC FE 531,306 28,457 559,763
Timing of revenue recognition YT A FERE B R
At a point in time NS 531,306 - 531,306
Over time I8 By P - 28,457 28,457
Total st 531,306 28,457 559,763
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (Continued)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers: (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from

contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in

the segment information.

Sale and distribution of merchandise
Provision of interior design and
building engineering services

Total revenue

HERDHE®
RUEARGRERTRE

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

WA @)

() DIHFEREHWA : (&)

UTHEINERGHWRALRDEE R
PIiRESTRZ ¥R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZE-__&#+-H=1+—HLEE

Adjustments

Segment and
revenue eliminations  Consolidated
SEUEA AR HE =8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBTFT AREFT

531,973 (667) 531,306
28,457 - 28,457
560,430 (667) 559,763
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47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers: (Continued)

Types of goods and services EmkiR#HEER
Sale and distribution of merchandise HERDHE @
— Building materials — &M
— Home improvement materials —KBEEMR
— Furnishings —RE
— Bulk commodity trading* —RREmEH*
Provision of interior design and REFTARGFRERETRE
building engineering services R
— Interior design —ERRE
- Building engineering services —BETRIRH
Total @it
Geographical markets &
The PRC g
Timing of revenue recognition U A FERE B R
At a point in time NI E
Over time I By P
Total mst

* At the beginning of the business, approximately
RMB32,342,000 of the bulk trade sales made in 2021 were
purchased by the customers’ related parties.
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WA @)

() DIFBEREGHWA: G

=

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-B=+—HILEE

Provision of

interior design

Sale and and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

REER

HEK #stk
DiEEm BEEIRRE A5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR BT NE BT ANRETFT
69,786 - 69,786
10,653 - 10,653
5,995 - 5,995
285,314 = 285,314
- 21,322 21,322
- 65,226 65,226
371,748 86,548 458,296
371,748 86,548 458,296
371,748 = 371,748
- 86,548 86,548
371,748 86,548 458,296

* REREBRER T -FHNAR
B HERENARIE32,342,00070H
ERHREBSEE-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA #@

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) PIFEFERAHWA : @)
customers: (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from WTFEIZERENWALED B E R
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in PIiRESTRZ ¥R

the segment information.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+A=+—HIEFE

Adjustments

Segment and

revenue eliminations Consolidated
T EBUA A i o)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ABETT ARETT

Sale and distribution of merchandise HE KD iHE® 375,859 4,111) 371,748
Provision of interior design and REEARGTRERTRE

building engineering services AR5 86,548 = 86,548
Total revenue LA 462,407 4,111) 458,296
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

206

customers

Sale and distribution of merchandise

The Group sells a range of building materials, home
improvement materials, and furnishings to the
wholesale market and directly to customers through its
own retail outlets. During the course of business, the
Group engages in trading of bulk commodities with its
customers from time to time.

For sales of building materials, home improvement
materials and furnishings to the wholesale market,
revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been delivered to
the wholesaler's specific location (delivery). Following the
delivery, the wholesaler has full discretion over the manner
of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging from
0 day to 360 days upon delivery, depending on the type
of products sold. For those new customers, the Group
will request deposits from them who entered into the
sales contracts, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract, until the customers obtain control
of the goods. The amounts of deposits requested vary
amongst different contracts.

For sales of home improvement materials and furnishings
to retail customers, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, being at the point the
customer purchases the goods at the retail outlet.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the goods.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers (Continued)

Sale and distribution of merchandise (Continued)

The wholesalers, retail customers and customers of bulk
commodity trading have neither rights of return nor rights
to defer or avoid payment for the goods once the goods
are accepted by them. A contract liability is recognised
for consideration received for which revenue has not yet
been recognised.

For the trading of bulk commodity, the Group would sell
a commodity within a short period after purchase under
which profit would be generated or loss may be incurred
from these transactions. Since these trading contracts
are entered into for the sole purposes of the receipt
or delivery of the commodity in accordance with the
Group's expected purchase or sale and, accordingly, these
contracts are accounted for as revenue and cost of sales.
Revenue is recognised when control of the commodity
has transferred, being when the commodity have been
delivered to the customers’ specific location (delivery).
Following the delivery, the customers have full discretion
over the manner of distribution and price to sell the
commodity, has the primary responsibility when on selling
the commodity and bears the risks of obsolescence and
loss in relation to the commodity.

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging from
0 day to 360 days upon delivery, depending on the type
of products sold. For those new customers, the Group
may request deposits from them who entered the sales
contracts, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of a contract, until the customers obtain control
of the goods. The amounts of deposits requested vary
amongst different contracts.
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

208

customers (Continued)

Interior design and building engineering services

The Group provides interior design and building
engineering services to customers. Such services are
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.
Revenue is recognised for these services based on the
stage of completion of the contract using input method.

The Group’s interior design and building engineering
service contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the service period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group
requires certain customers to provide upfront deposits
ranged from 20% to 60% of total contract sum, when
the Group receives a deposit before interior design and
building engineering services commences, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the specific contract exceeds
the amount of the deposit.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to
the same contract, is recognised over the period in
which the interior design and building engineering
services are performed representing the Group’s right
to consideration for the services performed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance
in achieving specified milestones. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. The Group typically transfer the contract
assets to trade receivables when the Group issued invoice
to the customers based on the value of work.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers (Continued)

Interior design and building engineering services
(Continued)

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, are classified as contract assets, which ranges
from one to five years from the date of the practical
completion of the construction. The relevant amount of
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables when
the defect liability period expires. The defect liability
period serves as an assurance that the interior design
and building engineering services performed comply with
agreed-upon specifications and such assurance cannot be
purchased separately.

The Group considers the promised amount of
consideration contain significant financing component
and accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted
for the effects of the time value of money taking into
consideration the credit characteristics of the Group. The
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at the date of transfer of the associated
goods or services. The Group recognises interest income
during the period between the payment from customers
and the transfer of the associated goods or services.

5.

WA @)

(i) BEFNSHNBRONEE @)

EARGIREZELERE (&)

FE U R B8 = 10 GR PG B AR JE o A B
BRENEE HEERNERERT
Rz AE—E=hF -ERBETHE
miEs BN SN BEESREN DA
HEBSRWIRIE - R EEHAR R
BFFMITHEARST REE TR
B MENRRE  WEHAEREHE
BILIBREE o

FEBERX/AENEZBEESEKR
BB AItRNEBEAERZE
ERFR RNEZRCHEERREE
BZXEFRAE xEBRARBRR
AEBRZRNEEERE IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

210

customers (Continued)

Online distribution and electronic marketing

The Group also offers its customers online distribution
and electronic marketing services through a multi-
channel network. During the contractual period, the
Group will provide advisory services on product pricing,
upgrade customers’ online selling or live channel
platforms” interfaces, offer training courses on online
selling strategies, source suitable key opinion leaders
to promote customers’ products through online live
channels, and provide repair and maintenance services
for customers’ online live channels. Revenue is recognised
when the services are rendered over time since these
services provide all of the benefits that are received
and consumed simultaneously by the customers. The
performance obligation is satisfied when customers use
the Group’s advertising and internet information services
in their daily operations for selling or promoting their
owned products through different online platforms.
The transaction price for the services is charged at a
predetermined fixed rate with no significant variable
consideration. Invoices are issued on a monthly basis and
are usually payable within 30 days.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group decided to temporarily suspend the business
of online distribution and electronic marketing after
thorough consideration of the potential profitability
of the business, the cost of maintaining the online
distribution platform, and the changes in the e-commerce
licensing policies in the PRC. As a result, there had been
no revenue generated from the online distribution and
electronic marketing business in FY2022 and FY2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021 and the expected timing of recognising revenue are

as follows:

At 31 December 2022

Within one year —&R

At 31 December 2021

Within one year —FR

5. WA #&)

(i) PEEREFSHNRTEOTE
MZHE

TR oFE+TA=S+—HRS
P-—F+-A=+-BHEER
TRABE RERREBHFER 2
3253 (BRI R A BRI :

W2+ =-H=+—H

Provision of
interior design
Sale and and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

HER REEMRHR
SEEm BETERS Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARBFT ARBTFT

= 378,272 378,272

RWE-_—F+"F=+—H

Provision of

interior design

Sale and and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

HER REERFRFK
DR BETERE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ABETT ARETT ARETT

= 358,846 358,846

E—EREMRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (CODM),
make decisions about resource allocation based on the
revenue by types of goods or services delivered or provided and
reviews reports on the financial performance of the Group as
a whole. No other discrete financial information is reviewed by
the CODM for the assessment of performance of the Group.
Therefore, no other segment information is presented. The
Group is currently organised into the following two revenue
streams as follows:

1. Sale and distribution of merchandise

2. Provision of interior design and building engineering
services
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable segments:

Year ended 31 December 2022

Segment Revenue
Segment Revenue
Less: Inter-segment sales

External sales
Segment cost of sales

Segment gross profit

SEBA
DEUA
B ) e

ShERSH &
DEHERS

SDEEF

DEEH (&

ST ERUT A B 4R

FEBZWAREFEREZRDMEI D Z

DU
B#E-ZT-—_S+-"B=+—HLEE
Provision of
interior design
Saleand  and building
distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total
RIEERN
HER B
NtiEm  BEIERS Wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT ARBETFT
531,973 28,457 560,430
(667) - (667)
531,306 28,457 559,763
(507,173) (22,271) (529,444)
24,133 6,186 30,319
E—ERBRAT
ot oo : 3 21 3



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Segment Revenue
Segment Revenue
Less: Inter-segment sales

External sales
Segment cost of sales

Segment gross profit

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment gross profit represents the gross profit earned by
each segment without allocation of other income, other gains
and losses, distribution and selling expenses, administrative
expenses, provision for impairment losses under expected
credit loss model, net and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

DEBA
DEBUA
B D EEEE

ShERSH &
DEPHE M

SEREF

Inter-segment sales are charged at costs.
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Provision of

interior design

Sale and and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

RHER

HE R Fatk
DiFEm BREIERS st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRETFT NEETFT ANRETFT
375,859 86,548 462,407
(4,111) = 4,111)
371,748 86,548 458,296
(361,868) (68,848) (430,716)
9,880 17,700 27,580

KEDER 2 &St BURBAMGE3Fr i 2 A&
B2 5t EERAER - DB BRI D EER
DEEMWEA N HfthR o R E1E DIk
HERS THAX RAEEEERE
NZREEBRER BRI AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results
of each segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly review
such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue
and segment gross profit are presented.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in the PRC (country of
domicile) and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the relevant
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

6. DBEE B

SEBRA R R (B

FTELERRERBE DM ZEEER
EHRR -BMEZ2IDMBEERDHBER
DI RARETECERRELEMRER
NERKRFEFEEREREREN -
I 25D BRRA R D BEF]

HMESH

AEBEFBUNTE FIEER) kEB-

BERAEERBEIIFEFZWAZER

TR E R MEEY - BRAAEREIER
HEEZEN I REEMEUEZRY]-

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
KEIIBERZIA ERBHEE
(Note)
(Hiz2)
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C “E-—F | Z¥ZZ B —F

RMB000 |  RMB'000
ARBFT | \RETT | ARBFT | ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

559,763 458,296 174,302 184,543

- = - 40,649

559,763 458,296 174,302 225,192

The PRC o
Hong Kong B
Note:

Non-current assets excluded financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and deferred tax assets.

Mt

FRBEETBERATESABGNEREE
FIEIERRIRE E ©

E—ERERAR
—E_FFR 21 5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as

6. DEEHR @
SEBURA R R (B
EHEEERZEH

REEEE REEMFEBBHELR

follows:

Customer A EEA
Customer B =FB
Customer C ERC
Customer D EFD
Customer E ZFE
Customer F EPRF

L Revenue from bulk commodity trade.

* The customers contributed less than 10% of the total revenue of the

Group.
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10% U EZERZWAUT :
2022 2021
—ZE-= s
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETFT NEHEF
108,100’ N/A A58 3 *
88,406' N/A A58 F *
71,932" N/A A58 3 *
55,344' N/A 758 A *
55,034 148,242!
N/A FiEF* 85,296'
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

OTHER INCOME 7. HftgA
2022 2021
—E-= o
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT NEEFT

Interest income from trade and other 85 KR HAMME WA
receivables and prepayments MEFBEMRIBEZ

FEWA 6,479 19,315
Bank interest income RITH B UA 260 79
Rental income (Note) HEWA (B:L) 852 1,621
Sundry income WA 117 90
7,708 21,105

Note:

The amount represented rental income arising from operating leases of

et -

ZERIEHENRAEEZREYEECERE

EZHETUAC

investment properties in which the lease payments that are fixed.

E—ERERAR
—E_FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

8. OTHER GAINS, NET 8. Hfthg A 3E8

218

2022 2021
- T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANE#EFT
Gain on modification of convertible loan AR ERERETT NG
notes (Note 29) (P45¥29) - 5,360
Investment income from the receivable B PTSTUIER IEAE B
relating to the refund of investment FEUNRIE 2 I B Wi
proceeds 3,963 -
Loss from changes in fair value of KREME AT EZEFH 2B
investment properties (Note 18) (Hta#18) (1,766) (731)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) SMNESE RIS (B518) /3458 196 (1)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 5% % BB Kk - (10)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BERKEZWER
plant and equipment - 2,000
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR W - 685
Others HAit 552 -
2,945 7,303
FINANCE COSTS 9. MEME
2022 2021
—E£-C- T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEHFT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEITFE 8,282 10,086
Effective interest expense on convertible R ER iE—‘.i?J"E
loan notes (Note 29) BRAN S (#a229) 5,155 7,740
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEFMNE 2 20
13,439 17,846
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

10. PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) on A T & IBERESE,
(B[O ZREEE
— contract assets —BHNEE
— trade receivables — B S ENIE
— other receivables and deposits —HthE R IE R ZE

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 37(b).

10. FREASEGRER T2 RERBRE
KR

2022 2021
—E--F BT —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE#E T ANEBFT
5,019 572
9,022 2,000
19,139 3,590
33,180 6,162
A B E R MIEE37(b)
E—ERBRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11. RGBS

2022 2021
- — BT —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEETFT
PRC EIT PEIREFTIER
— Current tax —BIHATRIE 3,707 7,050
— Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior —BEFERERE
years (BBREE ) - 773
3,707 7,823
Deferred tax (Note 32) IRIEIRIE (Hf3£32) (3.590) (3,898)
117 3,925

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and is exempted from the Cayman
Islands income tax.

The Company’s subsidiary in the BVI was incorporated under
International Business Companies Act of the BVI and is
exempted from the BVI income tax.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group's income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong
Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11. FRSMREX @

FRFAEHRAXIEGSEmkHEME

The income tax expense for the years can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

B U & 2 BRI AT S B AR T ¢

2022 2021
—¥-- TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEEFT
(Loss)/profit before tax BRiRAT (B518) A (39,799) 11,789
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% BB EFRERRE
25%stE 2 RIE (9,950) 2,947
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARMBAZRBEE
tax purpose (1,794) (777)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for RN Z 2 MBEE
tax purpose 2,979 63
Underprovision/(overprovision) in respect of BREFEEEELE,
prior years (HBEE#EE) - 773
Tax effect of tax losses utilised from FABFAERESIEZ
previous periods MBTE (89) (781)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERMIEREE
MR E 8,971 1,700
Income tax expense for the year FAMERES 117 3,925
— INZ]
»-zewmen )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

12. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. £ (§8) EH

222

Loss/(profit) for the year has been arrived at after charging/ FREE GaR) IHE&MR GIA) LT
(crediting): KIBBEN .
2022 2021
= — B
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFiT ANEBEFT
Directors’ remuneration (Note 13) BRI WaE13) 4,568 2,452
Other staff salaries, allowances and HthET#H< 2R EY
benefits in kind =l 5,205 7,132
Retirement benefit scheme contributions for BE S T/EH 7 BRINE
other staff H] 5T B HFR 447 302
Equity-settled share-based payment HMET 7 U AZ U
expenses for other staff RinAERZTREEZ 4,210 303
Total staff costs BT A48%8 14,430 10,189
Auditor's remuneration 1Z B B BN 1,139 1,027
Depreciation of property, plant and MZE- BB RREITE
equipment (Note 16) (Htst16) 5,028 6,668
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 17) {EFRHEE EITE (H3£17) 314 147
Equity-settled share-based payment BA R 2 DU AR 32 A ARR 17
expenses for consultants AERZAHRFEE 6,046 =
(Reversal of)/provision for write-down of WoREE (L) EE
inventories (1,666) 686
Variable rental payments in respect of office BREMAEZTYERZTEE
premises and retail stores W PEEEMR
— Lease rental payment* —HEHEE R 1,573 653
Gross rental income from investment KREYEHRSWALELE
properties (852) (1,621)
Less: direct operating expenses incurred B FERELEHESERAZ
for investment properties that generated KEMEMSIN B
rental income during the year EiERX 163 163
(689) (1,458)
The amount represents the short-term leases entered with lease term * ZSRBIEFTEI M A E IR —ER

ended within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES'’

EMOLUMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors” and chief executives’ remuneration for the year,

13. EE BRETHABRESHHM

disclosed pursuant to the application Listing Rules and the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Name of Directors

Executive directors
Ms. Hou Wei

Mr. Yang Baikang
Mr. Liu Xianxiu

Non-executive director
Mr. Hou Bo

Independent non-executive director
Mr. Ho Hin Yip

Mr. Ye Yihui

Mr. Hou Lianchang

Chief executive officer
Ms. Deng Yiyi

Total

Exns

BiTER
e
BHESE
HEARTE

FHITES
RREE

BUFHTES
[GESS
EHMERE

I
BERLt

a5t

() EEXERESITHASRNHH

EREFREETHA BN
PBIE R LR RE B A B
BT :

B AR
B

B8E_FT_—_F+-A=+—HL
FE

Retirement Equity-

Performance benefit settled

Salaries and related scheme share-based
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions expenses Total

bARg A3 {3

BIET  MURMHAER
e  HEREE  RREMTEA RIS Zh% st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  AREFR  AREFT  ARETT  ARETT
1,440 139 - 6 236 1,821
240 - - - 235 475
240 112 - 24 236 612
1,920 251 - 30 707 2,908
240 - - - 235 475
240 - - - 235 475
120 - - - 235 355
120 - - - 235 355
480 - - - 705 1,185
- 600 - 18 - 618
2,640 851 - 48 1,647 5,186

E—ERERAR
—E_FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE_Z-__F+_A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES' 13. EE -BE{THRASRESNHM

EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#&)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EFRESITBRABNEM &)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_ZE_—F+"HB=+—HIt
e
Retirement Equity-
Performance benefit settled
Salaries and related scheme share-based
Name of Directors ) Fees allowances bonuses  contributions expenses Total
Uiz
BHEN  UROAER
ik a2y RFEMEL SRR ZH% 4zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

NEEFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  ANERETT  ARETT

Executive directors BITES

Ms. Hou Wei BHELtT 1,193 121 - 5 3 1322

Mr. Yang Baikang Lliz) ok 199 - - - 3 202

Mr. Liu Xianxiu AEARE 199 97 - 21 3 320
1,591 218 - 26 9 1,844

Non-executive director FHTES

Mr. Hou Bo FEREE 199 - - - 3 202

Independent non-executive director BIUFHITES

M. Ho Hin Yip ftisE 199 - . - 3 202

Mr. Ye Yihui ERBRL 99 - - - 3 102

Mr. Hou Lianchang ZHERE 99 - - - 3 102

397 - - - 9 406

Chief executive officer TEMEE

Ms. Deng Yiyi plltcx e - 497 - 15 = 512

Total st 2,187 715 = 41 21 2,964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

Performance related bonuses is recommended by
the remuneration committee of the Company and is
approved by the board of directors, with reference to the
Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The executive directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group. The non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

In addition to the directors’ remuneration presented
above, the Group also provides other non-monetary
benefits (such as cars) to Ms. Hou Wei. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment in relation to these non-monetary
benefits amounted to nil (2021: RMB397,000).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office during both years.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during both years.

13. EE BRETHABRESHHM

(a) ESRERSITHASHHEHM (E

REHBEABREARAHFMNEZES
BER O UTHEFEHE EHE2E
FEBZEEXE BARRKAE
EEER T4 58U ©

EXFIRZATESRESITEA
EZHMNEEZRAERARSEERR
BRTEREFZMB 2 - £
FImIFATESZHMARSIEME
FRBREMBART WER EFZ
#l o EX PR Z B IFITEE#r
MEBRREFETERADEFTZH
B

bR EXX 25 2 EEBEHMIN > NERTR
BERZ TREEMIESEEF] (F
WHE) BE_ET__F+_A4
—+—HLEFE BlZEFEEER
MzME-BERIEBEHEAZ (=
Z-—%F : AE¥397,0007T) °

RmEEE AEEHfEREEXN
B AF 2% 1 35 0 A 2 52 [ 3 0 A B
BYSERN U F A BERR AR (E o

RWEEE  SESEHITERIE
ItEEA 5o 5 [P) = B8 A R B = 2 BF o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES'’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees of the Group during year
ended 31 December 2022 included three directors (2021:
three directors) and one (2021: one) chief executive of
the Company, details of whose remuneration are set out
in the disclosures above. Details of the remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2022 of the remaining one
(2021: one) highest paid employee who is neither director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

(b)

13. EE BREITHABRESHHM

(#)

rEBRBE_T-__F+°HA
=t—RLEEEZL%EEHME
EERZREF(CETE—F:=4
EF) RFERE—% (CEZ—F:
—%) BRETHRABE  BEZHM
HBHN X ZEBRR-8E_F
" THE+ZRA=+—HILEE&HT
—% (CEZ—F —%) BFEAF
EFURSTHRABZESHME
B2 #MsFRIT

Salaries, allowance and other benefits & 2B R EMEYEF]
in kind

Equity-settled share-based expense ARG A 2 A ARG D 72 B Rt
52

Retirement benefit scheme BRIRfEA IR

contributions
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2022 2021
—E-C BT —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AR HEFT
941 911

1,723 —

15 15

2,679 926
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES' 13. EE -BES1THRASRESNHM

EMOLUMENTS (Continued) #)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEZHE &)
The number of the highest paid employee who is not TR RBDEENTHERZES
director nor chief executive officer of the Company whose HFoEE B TEE B 2 ASL:

remuneration fell within the following bands:

No. of employees

BEAH
2022 2021
—¥-- TET—fF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 =E
3,000,000/ 7T 1 -
(c) Directors’ material interest in transactions, (00 EENXE THRANZEKXRKE RS
arrangements or contracts
Save for disclosed, no significant transactions, FRETIEEEE SN ) KA BB E R FR TR
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's FREREEIBERNEAABES
business to which the Company was a party and in RESHELSFNEFPERIEEE
which a director of the Company and the director’s BRNEAmBRAERERE
connected party had a material interest, whether directly FZEARZ ZHREH -
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
14. DIVIDENDS 14. B8
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of BHE_Z_F+“A=+—HLEE>
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022, nor 1BE (0] 2N A B B 38 B B 3RO A9 3R B UK 1
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting g2 BREAREIREE IR 2K
period (2021 Nil). ECEZ—HF .8\)-

E—EREMRAR
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15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per

sk (5518) &

KTRABHEE ANBLEREAREE (BR)

228

share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on S BRI TSRS
the following data:
2022 2021
—EZC TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEEFT
(Loss)/Earnings (&548) &R
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to Tt EERERKRES
owners of the Company for the purposes (B8 /BRI
of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per KATES AEISER
share (§548) /s (39,761) 7,559
2022 2021
—EZCHE T —fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEEFT
(Restated)
C<E==pTl))
Number of shares & H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Tt ESRER (518
for the purpose of basic (loss)/earnings per B FIMES =z S @A NHE
share FHE 222,416 170,364
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: — Bi##EBEHZEIRZ FE !
Share options fEReE = 676
Weighted average number of ordinary shares it E SR #E (5518)
for the purpose of diluted (loss)/earnings BTS2 BRI
per share FEHEE 222,416 171,040

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic (loss)/earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2021 has been restated for the capital
reorganisation of the Company on 13 December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the share options had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic (loss)/earnings per share and
were ignored in the calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per
share.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
convertible loan notes had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
(loss)/earnings per share and were ignored in the calculation of
diluted (loss)/earnings per share.

15. §i (5518) &8 @

AR EE8EE S —F+__A=+—
HIEFEZSKER (BH BIZEE
BRMEFHBEEERERTNR T
FE+"B+T=HZRTEHETFUET

REEZE-__F+"HA=+—HIHF
B BREHESRER (518 BIAKR
BEER METESREE (518 B
R et AZEBRECERATZE-

BE_S__FR-_F_—&F+_78
=S+—HLEFE TBRREREREHSR
HA (B518) /BRAESREBEER &t
EEREE (B8 BRI ESTAZE
HMRENREZ AT R

E—EREMRAR
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ME -BER=HE
Furniture,
fixtures
Owned Motor and office Leasehold  Construction
properties vehicles equipment improvements  in progress Total
RA-
EE#HER
BENE RE WAERE g HEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEBEFT ANEETT ARBEFT AEBETT AEEFT ARBEFT
cosT 278
At 1 January 2021 R_E_—F—H—H 29,730 4,421 1,933 27,726 4,558 68,368
Additions wE - - - 374 - 374
Write-off/reclassification Wi/ EWNE 496 (95) (749) (2,261) (4,558) (7,167)
Transfer to investment properties B EREYE
(Note 18) (W3t 18) (146) - - - - (146)
Exchange realignment EREE S (78) 5 = S (78)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE_—&
1 January 2022 +ZBR=+-BX
" "&-B—H 30,080 4,248 1,184 25,839 - 61,351
Disposal HE - (98) - (23,239) - (23,337)
Transfer to investment properties B EREYE
(Note 18) (Hizt18) (651) - - - - (651)
Exchange realignment ERAE = 275 = = - 275
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ&
+ZB=+-H 29,429 4,425 1,184 2,600 - 37,638
DEPRECIATION id-]
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—&—H—H 10,503 2,164 1,157 21,517 - 35,341
Provided for the year (Note 12) FRERE WZ12) 945 397 85 5,241 = 6,668
Eliminated on write-off/ RisE /S ERgH
reclassification (421) (125) (315) (4,681) - (5,542)
Transfer to investment properties B EREYE
(Note 18) (Hzt18) 97) - - - - 97)
Exchange realignment EREE = (28) = = = (28)
At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—-£&
1 January 2022 +ZR=+-HBX
" "fF—-B-H 10,930 2,408 927 22,077 - 36,342
Provided for the year (Note 12) FREE (I212) 932 315 60 3,721 - 5,028
Disposal HE - (93) = (23,239) = (23,332)
Transfer to investment properties B EREYE
(Note 18) (Hi£18) (265) - - - - (265)
Exchange realignment ERAE - 160 - - - 160
At 31 December 2022 KZEZZ
+ZB=+-H 11,597 2,790 987 2,559 - 18,198
CARRYING AMOUNT AR E
At 31 December 2022 R-B-—&
+ZB=+-H 17,832 1,635 197 4 - 19,705
At 31 December 2021 R_EZ—fF
+-B=+—H 19,150 1,840 257 3,762 - 25,009




16.

17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated, after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, on a straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

3.3%
5% to 10%
5% to 10%
5% to 10%

Owned properties

Motor vehicles

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Leasehold improvements

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group leased
out certain properties located in the PRC to independent
third parties and transferred owner-occupied properties
to investment properties. The total carrying amounts of
the properties at the respective dates of transfer were
RMB9,850,000 (2021: RMB9,965,000).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Leasehold

16. M BB K= (@

Lt BB RREBRBR REMGE
FABEBRESREUTIIERITE :

BEM%E 33%
HE 5%Z%10%
RE\EBERERWAZRE 5%%10%
HEEE 5%Z10%

BE_ T __F+_B=+—HLHE
B AEEHBURTEZETYUET
BUE=F UIHBERVEESRERE
ME-YPERZEBRHPZRERLES
AER1£9,850,0007t (ZEZ—F : AR
9,965,0007T) °

17. EREEE

offices
premises and

lands retail stores Total
MAEMER
HELH ZERE 4act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEEFT NEEFT NEEFT
At 31 December 2021 and WZEZ—-F
1 January 2022 +=ZB=+—HR
—E-_-_%—A—H
Carrying amount REME 7,293 312 7,605
At 31 December 2022 gt e
+ZR=+-H
Carrying amount IREE 6,818 249 7,067
E—RBRAT
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 17. ERESE &

FR T EEEOEEHAREEZEEHN

During the year, major items included in the movement of

right-of-use assets as followings: s
2022 2021
—¥-- TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEEFT
Depreciation charge (Note 12) IWEER Wati12) 314 147
Additions to right-of-use assets fERAEEEEM - 365
Termination of lease arrangement KRIFTAEZ 8 = 5,593
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) R EREY % (H15£18) 1 6
During the year, total cash outflow for leases under financing FR MEBEGEHETNEHEZRE R EEE
activities as followings: W
2022 2021
k- S TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEEFT
Total cash outflow for leases MEZREMHE 1,573 751

For both years, the Group leases various offices premises and
retail stores for its operation. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 1 year to 10 years with fixed payment.
The Group does not have the option to purchase the leased
properties at a nominal amount at the end of the relevant lease
terms or any extension/termination options which are solely at
the Group’s discretion. The Group's obligations are secured by
the rental deposits for such leases. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The Group determines the lease period
to be the non-cancellable period based on the contractual
terms of the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for retail
booths. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short term leases
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

The above items of right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line method over the lease term.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group with
four independent third parties (“Business Partners”) bided the
land use right with total amount of RMB57,700,000 which
is situated at Shenzhen in the PRC. The portion invested
by the Group amounted to approximately RMB5,758,000,
which represented to 9.69% of the total consideration. All
acquisition costs of land use right were fully paid by the Group
and Business Partners. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group and Business Partners entered into the Land
Transfer Agreement with the local government for the usage
of the land use right with a period for 30 years from 15
September 2020.

The land use right has been obtained as at 31 December
2021.

17. EREERE @

FEEERNTERUTILAHHBESE R
:;ﬁ::fﬁ)i’z_v_—fﬁ—i— =
B EMEEHE EOREZEES
sz 258 HH?'FH‘?% Gl

rEREEERE R ABEBRERA
HEE o

BEZTEF+A=+—HIEE"
AEBHENLEBIE=F EESER
1) BRI P EDRYIEY T B A 48
84 ANR#857,700,00070c AEEREHN
ER 495 AR KE5,758,0007T » (H4BERY
9.69% ° T HIF AN FIE B E A H
AEBREBSEBAEESZN -BEZ
EEFA+ZRA=+—HIEFE x&EE
RS EH B S 1 BT BL L (5 B
ARG THEERSE ARNHE
“EFENBE+HBREAH30E

tHERRER S —F+_8
=+—BEE-

E—ERERAR
—E_FFR 233
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 17. ERESE &

The Group has entered into Memorandum of Understanding
Agreement with Business Partners, a commercial building will
be constructed and developed on the abovementioned land
and the Group will be the main constructor for the whole
construction project. The directors of the Company expected
that parts of the properties will be used as owned office
and the remaining parts will be leased out for earning rental
income when the commercial building completed.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group leased
out certain properties located in the PRC to independent
third parties and transferred right-of-use assets to investment
properties. The total carrying amount of the right-of-use assets
at the date of transfer was approximately RMB1,079,000
(2021: RMB1,079,000).

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of approximately RMB45,000
(2021: RMB234,000) are recognised with related right-of-use
assets of approximately RMB43,000 (2021: RMB225,000) as
at 31 December 2022. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set
out in Notes 31 and 37(b).
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AEBHEETUR PR ZYETEIL
BFoH O UBEAREEEEEREY
E-REEHAE FRAREEAKREE
#2 ANEH1,079,0007T (ZE-—F: A
E#81,079,0007T) ©

TS PR X 2258
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group leases out commercial property units under operating
leases with rentals receivable monthly. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 1 year to 15 years and no unilateral
rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held by the
Group and lessees. Majority of the lease contracts contain
market review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the
option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

18. IR EME

BE_BE__FR"ZE-_—5+°H
=+—HLEFE  xEBREEEHEN
EEEYMEBRA - HEAERANRIN-EE
— R P R/ FEE15F > KEERAME
AU EET BN S FHEER
HE - RBoENHIHARBATELER
BEERR 2 T IH T IR

AEBR T EREEZHMAZING REE -
REBFAAEHEHUERBEESBEZY
FEERFHE - HOTEHERFEERER
K/SABARBREREBEME
EER

RMB’000
NEHFT
At 1 January 2021 N _E_—F—HF—H 61,130
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 16)  E# B % - BEREE HaE16) 49
Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 17) EREGRAEEE Wit17) 6
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss (Note 8) 1A 18 WHERR 2 A &RV (#fa28) (731)
Increase in fair value recognised upon transfer from
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets REMEERZR EYE - BEKE
to investment properties in other comprehensive EURGERAREESEEREY
income R 2 A FEEM 2,046
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 B2 —F+-RA=+—HBK
“E-"F#—HF—H 62,500
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 16) BB B KR&EE (H1:t16) 386
Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 17) EREERAEEE Wit17) 1
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss (Note 8) 1 185 NFEER Z A &L (Bf:28) (1,766)
Increase in fair value recognised upon transfer from REMEEKRZEANBEYE BB RH
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets BEUREAREESRELEY
to investment properties in other comprehensive ERFRER AT EE
income 899
At 31 December 2022 R, 2 e = [ ] = 61,520

E—ERERAR
—E_FFR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In determining the fair value of the investment properties, the
Group engages the independent qualified professional valuer
to perform the valuation. The management of the Group
works closely with them to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model and explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the investment properties to
the board of directors.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. The fair values
of certain investment properties have been adjusted to exclude
prepaid or accrued operating lease income to avoid double
counting.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used) at the end
of reporting period.

Valuation technique
and fair value

Investment properties hierarchy Significant input(s)
fBlEsER
RENE ATERSR EXBANE

15 units of a commercial building
namely Jiyi Household Material
City located at No. 2 Xianzi Middle
Road, Chengjiang Town, Meixian
District, Meizhou, Guangdong
Province, the PRC (Note 1)

PEERE SN HIEHRERIR
BHPRFN—IEBHRETH
15@8 70 NE—RERMH
Wiz1)

2022: RMB61,520,000

2021: RMB62,500,000

MR REZ B E(

BT F ARM61,520,0007

“2 "% AR¥62,500,0007

S

Income approach
Level 3

(2021:3.25%)

LN
SE34R

SRR N

Note 1: The land use rights of the commercial building were granted for a
term expiring on 4 September 2048 for composite uses.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year
(2021: Nil).
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Gross monthly rental income ranged from
RMB500 to RMB150,000 (2021: ranged from
RMB500 to RMB150,000) Term yield: 2.75%
(2021: 2.75%) Reversionary yield: 3.25%

NEARES00TE
AEWﬁomwﬂ_ﬁ_—i

N ARE50070E A R #150,0007T)
FHRER 1 2.75% (B -—
ERREE325% (CE-—

18. IREWME ©@)

REBERBEMERTER  AEELEE
YEEREXGEMETHE AERE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%éﬁt&ﬂi@%%ﬁﬁi
REABREZHE TAESTERERE
MERNTFEREZIRE -

REstIELRTFER  MEZESRRE
RamnHEERAR - ETREMEZAF
EEFAE UMRRMHESEEEE
WA BREEFTE -

TREHEBRUNANBEMREEZE
REVERTEZEN (LHEMGERZE
R Fir R 8 A\ BUR) o

Relationship of
inputs to fair value
BARERA
ATERRE

A slight increase in the term
yield and reversionary yield
used would resultin a
significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa

Pz EHN G X R ERE R
REREHENEER AT
BRI R2ZTF R

F:2.75%)

F:3.25%)

BEEFEENIMEREFHANR_-Z
WN\FABMBEm (Fira AR

Hiatr :

FRTEBANBRE=HK (=
FIHE) e

= —
=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing on goodwill,
management allocated goodwill to the Group's cash-
generating unit ("CGU") identified. The Group’s goodwill
arising on acquisition of the subsidiaries, as detail in Note 36,
during the year ended 31 December 2022 was allocated to
the online distribution and e-marketing services and home

decoration.

Cost
At 31 December 2021 and 2022

Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 January 2022

Impairment loss recognised
At 31 December 2022

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

19. HE

MEERENEmE
EERENAERReELEU ((REE
CBEE__F+A=+—
HIEFE > ZEBRWENRB AR MES
WEE GFiERIEE36) ENERE
B e AR A B PR 75 DA e BR SR B A o

HEAL)

BEEERBEDEK

S ni)

Online
distribution and Home
e-marketing decoration
services CGU cGU Total
BEDHER
LR EHRTS RXERHRE
REEFEN EEE #ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEIEFT NEIEFT NEIEFT
5%
N_E - —FK
BT TF
+-—B=+—H 37,411 15,797 53,208
REHRERE
K-B-—%£—A—H - - -
BERRESE 1,175 - 1,175
ATET T F
F=ESa—E 1,175 = 1,175
IREEE
A
+-A=+—H 37,411 15,797 53,208
A e
+-A=+—H 36,236 15,797 52,033
E—ERBRAT
—EBCEFR 237



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. & ©)

Online distribution and e-marketing services

The goodwill was arisen from a number of factors including
the expected fast growing on the multi-channel network in
the PRC, digital transformation on the traditional distribution
channels, internet sales channel and assembled workforce of
the acquired business. These benefits were not recognised
separately from goodwill because they did not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

Home decoration

The goodwill was arisen from a number of factors including
the expected growing on the home interior design for
residential properties in the PRC and assembled workforce of
the acquired business. These benefits were not recognised
separately from goodwill because they did not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill of the CGUs recognised is expected to
be deductible for income tax purposes
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

19. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment assessment

Online distribution and e-marketing services

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation with reference to a
professional valuation for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year (2021:
five-year) period. Cash flows beyond the projection period are
extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3% (2021:
3%) per annum. The pretax rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows is 26.97% (2021: 23.71%) per annum.

During the years ended 31 December 2022, provision for
impairment loss on goodwill arising from online distribution
and e-marketing services amounted to RMB1,175,000 (2021:
nil) was recognised.

Home decoration

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation for the year ended 31
December 2022. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year (2021: five-year) period. Cash flows beyond the
projection period are extrapolated using an estimated growth
rate of 3% (2021: 3%) per annum. The pretax rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows is 19.24% (2021: 19.24%)
per annum.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, no
provision for impairment loss on goodwill arising from home
decoration was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20.
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent
long-term equity investments (Note 37(c)).

21. INVENTORIES 21.

Finished goods &l

Inventories represent goods held for resale and interior design
and building engineering projects.

The provision for write-down of inventories is generally made
on those inventories which are sold subsequently with the
prices lower than the carrying amounts while the reversal of
provision for write-down of inventories is only recognised for
those inventories which are sold subsequently with the prices
higher than the carrying amounts.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, reversal of write-
down of inventories amounted to RMB1,666,000 (2021:
provision for of RMB686,000) was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets arising from:

Services contracts for provision of interior
design and building engineering services

Less: allowance for expected credit losses

22. AEE
2022 2021
—ZT-= —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT NEETFT
BUTSEELEZAGHNEE
RHEHEANRRERIRE
ZRRBEEH 378,273 358,846
B TEERE SRS (13,344) (8,325)
364,929 350,521

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance
in achieving specified milestones at the reporting date on
construction works. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Contract assets, that are not expected to be settled within the
Group's normal operating cycle, are classified as current and
non-current based on expected settlement dates. The non-
current contract assets is measured at amortised cost using
interest rate of 6.96% per annum.

BHNEETBHEAEEMC MR AE
HEREMN TEWEENRETN AR RA
MRS EFNBORR AL BN &R S B R
BETREEMEEERBIRKERIE H
ZERANRAEFRS ENEEERE
B 7 EUWRIE

RRTEEAEENESZEBRRNG
BEHNENEE REBMEEEHIES
MBRIERE IR ENEECRER
R6.96 %I BIHp A5t &8 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

Typical payment terms of services contracts for provision of

interior design and building engineering which impact on the

amount of contract assets recognised are as follows:

242

The Group's services contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction
period once certain specified milestones are reached. The
Group requires certain customers, other than the local
government or with those of long term relationship, to
provide upfront deposits ranged from 20% to 60% of
total contract sum as part of its credit risk management
policies. When the Group receives a deposit before
interior design and building engineering services
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
specific contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

The Group also typically agrees a retention period ranging
from one to five years for 3% to 5% of the contract
value. As at 31 December 2022, the retention receivables
amounted to approximately RMB46,875,000 (2021:
RMB46,332,000) are included in contract assets until the
end of the retention period as the Group’s entitlement to
this final payment become unconditional upon expiration
of the defects liability period and are transferred to trade
receivables.

The Group classifies contract assets as current when the
Group expects to realise them in its normal operating
cycle.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

Movement in the contract assets and the contract liabilities
balances during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021

are as follows:

At 1 January

Rights of consideration for works amplitude
but not yet billed

Transfer from the contract assets recognised
to trade receivables

Less: allowance for credit losses

At 31 December

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in Note 37(b).

22. BHNEE B

BE_Z__H#K-Z

—FZE4EH

Z+—HLEFESHNEERGHNERE

BRZ EENUE
2022 2021
—E-= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT NEBFr
w—B—H 350,521 344,170
FETRIERARZ
TIRERREZERN 31,018 86,548
HERIRENEEERES
B 5 EWRIE (11,591) (79,621)
W EEEEEE (5,019) (576)
BW+ZHA=+—H 364,929 350,521
B B E BT EE37(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. B REMBWRIELKRADGRIE
PREPAYMENTS
2022 2021
—¥_- BT
RMB '002 RMB ‘000
ARETFT ANEHFT
Trade receivables from contracts with ERAHNNE S EHRIE
customers: -
Due from third parties: BWE=FmE
— sale and distribution of merchandise —\fﬁ’%&ﬁﬁﬁr"aﬁ@ 225,583 50,016
— interior design and building engineering —ENRTRERTE
services AR ‘ 50,827 53,076
Due from a related party: FE U — 24 RA B 75 RIS -
— sale and distribution of merchandise —HHERDHE S 431 382
- (L. 276,841 103,474
Less: allowance for expected credit losses A TRHAE BB G (14,797) (5,775)
262,044 97,699
Other receivables H{thFEUTTRIE
Contract performance deposits (Note (a)) BNENEE (WWata@) 6,649 5,650
Project tender deposits (Note (b)) TRBREEE BaEn) 65,844 504
Other tax recoverable Hha] Y [C1#3 18 1,832 2,295
Rental deposits HE®ZE 165 165
Receivables relating to the refund of KREPTISMIERIEER
investment proceeds (Note (e)) FEWIE (7 (/ﬁzf(e)) 21,231 38,796
Others HAth 11,490 7,759
- 107,211 55,169
Less: allowance for expected credit losses A TRHAE EEEEE (24,091) (4,054)
83,120 51,115
Prepayments AR \
Prepayments for purchase of goods and BEEmARERE 2 TE
provision of services (Note (c)) Ni—'ﬂlﬁ (/]ﬁaf(c)) 372,563 358,256
Prepayment for acquisition of investment KR B =2 T8~ E
properties (Note (d) (H13#(d) 33,977 33,977
406,540 392,233
Notes receivable arising from bulk ATrEmBZEHEEN
commodity trading business (Note (1) FEW =& (BYE()) 77,710 116,334
Trade and other receivables and prepayments & 53 K H fth F& W F I8 LU K
FAfTRIE 829,414 657,381
Analysed as Pagib:]
Non-current IEmEN 33,977 76,870
Current m 795,437 580,511
829,414 657,381
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=B 5 R R M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #HZE_ T _&F+_A=+—HILEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Contract performance deposits are advanced to customers at the
beginning of interior design and building engineering services
contracts. The deposits are repaid to the Group based on the
progress of services and terms of the contract.

The contract performance deposits are expected to be recovered
within one year from the end of the reporting period.

Project tender deposits are advanced to potential customers during
the contract tendering period. The deposits are repaid to the Group
when the tendering process is completed.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the balance of an amount
of approximately RMB372,563,000 (2021: RMB251,754,000)
represented a prepayment for purchase of goods mainly for the new
construction of a commercial building in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2022, guarantee on these receivables provided
by Ms. Hou Wei, a substantial shareholder of the Company, is
amounted approximately RMB422,322,000.

The Group recognised an allowance for impairment loss amounted
to approximately RMB1,385,000 of this amount during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The properties were in the process of development of commercial
premises by an independent property developer. The properties
are located in Meizhou in the PRC and planned to be completed
by 2024. The management intends to lease out the properties for
earning rental income when the properties are fully constructed. Full
consideration was paid and no further cash outflow is expected to
be paid for the properties.

23. B REMEWFRIERTAITRIE (&

(0)

BHENRENEARFTRBETLRERS
BHRERENTER R ERRBER
REKIFRBETAER-

FHRANBEORSR N REHABRES—
A EIE

TEARRENEGABEREERENTFEE
BER - ZERNBREFTHMERETARE
Eo

RIEZ—_E+"BA=+—H HBEOA
E#372,563,000t (ZTE=Z—F ! AR
251,754,0007T) 5 X EF N R BRI E—1E5
*XEFEEERCANRIE.
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TEAN AR E422,322,0007z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #ZE_Z-__F+_A=+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(e)

246

As at 31 December 2022, included in the balance of an amount
of approximately RMB21,231,000 represents the principal and
interest receivable from the two guarantors (the “Guarantors”)
of the Company’s investment in Xinfeng Culture Media Limited
(EEXEEEBRAR(

a repayment agreement (the “Repayment Agreement”) signed

“Xinfeng Culture”) in pursuant to

between the Company and the Guarantors on 1 November 2021,
in which the Guarantors agreed to refund the investment principal
of approximately HK$21.32 million, with a maturity date of 30
April 2024 and a 20% annual interest rate. As at 31 December
2022, the Company has received payment for the first two
instalments, amount to HK$2,000,000. However, the Guarantors
had defaulted in the repayment of the instalment since 31 August
2022. The Company is in the course of seeking legal advice and
will take appropriate legal actions against the Guarantors and
enforce the Company’s rights under the Repayment Agreement,
where appropriate, including but not limited to, (1) enforcing the
Company’s right to sell the acquired 20% of the issued shares of the
Target Company back to the vendor (the “Vendor”) under the terms
of the acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) at a
consideration of HK$21.32 million, (2) demanding the Guarantors
to repay all the unpaid interest under the Repayment Agreement
and, (3) demanding the Vendor and the Guarantors to repay all the
costs and losses that the Company incurred from the Acquisition
Agreement and Repayment Agreement. For the background and
details of the acquisition of 51% issued share capital of Xinfeng
Culture, the Repayment Agreement and the profit guarantee
provided by the two guarantors, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 19 February 2019 and 10 October 2022.

Given the Guarantors had defaulted in the repayment of the
instalment, after taking due consideration on the repayment ability
of the Guarantors and the recoverability of the amount, the Group
recognised an allowance for impairment loss for the full amount of
outstanding principal and interest receivable from the Guarantors,
which is recorded in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB665,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(f)

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
had entered into several trade receivable (the “Notes”) factoring
arrangements and transferred those trade receivables to banks
or other financial institutions (the “Arrangements”). Under the
Arrangements, the Group may be required to reimburse the banks
or other financial institutions for loss of interest if any trade debtors
have late payment after the maturity date, which is normally for
one year terms from the initial day, or subsequently found default.
As such, the Group retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to such Notes, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the Notes as
“note receivables” and the associated borrowings from banks or
other financial institutions. As at 31 December 2022, the original
due date of such Notes are ranging from February to May 2023
(2021: original due date of such Notes were ranging from July to
December 2022).

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of

allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice

dates:

Within 6 months 7~ME B A
6-12 months NETZEA
1-2 years —EMF
Over 2 years BB mE

23. B RHEMBKRREREAMRIE @

BE_ZTE_—_FKR-_FE-_—+=AH
=t+—HEFE AEBEFTIZEES
FEWEIE (T2 REZH BZ2EES
FERRIEER ZRITHEMSAEE (T2
BE)) o BIRTH MEME ZEB AR
H#&(GBEAEHE—FHRB) ERNRHE
BEIRELN AEEFEMRTREMEE
HEEENSEL - AENIL AEEER
BEEZSZENERENRBRERNE
ERRKRER Bt KEBEERZHEN
2 EIRE AR A TR R MUK AERAIBER
THHMEREBER - RIS+
B=+—H ZEZEMNRIPEANTZ
ZT-F_BERAZB (CEZ—F &
ZEENRINPENFSEZZFELAE
Sy = )

U BEREZRREINE ZERFRIAE
(R EERERER) HIRE DI

2022 2021
—ET-= B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE#E T NEBETFT
156,403 29,434
20,470 20,696
37,602 6,462
47,569 41,107
262,044 97,699
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

23.

24,

25.

248

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade
receivable are debtors with aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RMB105,641,000 (2021: RMB68,265,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. It is not considered
as in default by considering the background of the trade
receivables and historical settlement arrangement of these
trade receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral over
the balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 37(b).

RESTRICTED CASH

As at 31 December 2022, the restricted cash mainly represents
the security deposits provided to secure certain bank
borrowings.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances, including time deposits with original
maturities less than 3 months, carry interest at prevailing
market rates which ranged from 0.01% to 0.3% (2021:
0.01% to 0.3%) per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is
provided. Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note
37(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due from related parties are non-trade related,

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Related parties

Ms. Hou Wei

Meizhou Xikang Construction Company
Limited* (“Meizhou Xikang") (H§
MEREETIREERAE), an entity
significant influenced by a close family
member of Ms. Hou Wei

Mr. Wen lJingfeng, the son of Ms. Deng

Haiming

*

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 37(b).

B 75

373
ISMTHERER
TRAERAA*
(Mg MiER) -
RAGRLTRIE
TRNEAZEN
—XER)
A
EERLLZF)

Shi

T

The English name is for identification purpose only

26. [R5 TRIR

FE SRR Bk 75 "RIE 7 IF B 5 18 RE ~ SRR
ERRBMEREE -

Maximum amount
outstanding during the year
ended 31 December

#Z+-A=+—H

LEEZRBHAEGEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
B | E_—F| ZIBZZE| 2%
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABEFT | N\EEFT | AREFT | NEEFT
3,011 = 3,011 =
934 934 934 934
= = = 16

3,945 934

* EXLEEREG

BB Z 5F BB A I EE37(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #HZE_E - "+ _HA=+—HILEE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Other payables

Salaries and staff welfare payables

Deposits received for building engineering
services

Other tax payables

Withholding income tax in respect of
dividend payment

Other payables

Trade and other payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

27. BHRHEMBERIE

B Z B ARIA

H{thFE (3 FRIA
B #HE R ETEN
BWERTIERBEE

HhEIRIA

BRR SR 218
PSR

H P& (I 7RIE

B8 REtEARIR

2022 2021
—=T-— B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEETFT
44,301 41,746
44,301 41,746
4,182 2,920

4,361 4,361
16,456 14,845
16,000 16,000
34,946 17,737
120,246 97,609

UTHEREZEHRR2INZEZELR

based on the invoice date. HZREC DT o
2022 2021
—Z=E-— BT —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT NEEFT
Within 6 months ~NMEB R 10,122 16,548
6 to 12 months NE+TZEA - 1,125
Over 1 year Bid—F 34,179 24,073
44,301 41,746
The credit periods on purchases of goods and subcontracting BEEEmEDERBZEEHRNFOE

services ranged from 0 to 180 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Secured fixed-rate bank borrowings
(note (a))
— Within one year or on demand
— After one but within two years

Discounted commercial bills and discounted
Letter of Credit that were not yet due
(Note 23(f)

Unsecured loan from a shareholder (note (b))

— Within one year or on demand

Unsecured loan from Ms. Deng Yiyi, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, as
director”

— Within one year or on demand

Unsecured loan from other un-related
companies
— Within one year or on demand

Total bank and other borrowings

Less: Loans due within one year or on
demand classified as current liabilities

28. IRTT R H R

BRI E E M R IRTTERR
(Hfzt(a))
——FREHIEER
——FRERMERN

e REV AR R IR B E iR
K A53R 15 R
(Ht5223(1))

RE—BRRZEHIFE
R (b))
——FRHIRES

REREEITHARE
HRBUL (FRES)
Z BRI E ™A
— —FARFIRER

AR E R AT 2
AP E R
— —ERREER

RIT R E M ERAE R

B NESRBaRz—F
WNEIZERE 2 G/

2022 2021
koo S T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT NEEFT
154,328 151,400
= 4,404
154,328 155,804
77,710 116,334
- 10,703
- 32,079
3,360 7,820
235,398 322,740
(235,398) (318,336)
- 4,404
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28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(@ As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the bank borrowings were
secured by property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
land use right in PRC recognised as right-of-use assets and the
property in the PRC held by Chief Executive Officer.

The bank borrowings were also jointly guaranteed by Ms. Hou Wei
and Mr. Deng Jianshen, spouse of Ms. Hou Wei.

The secured fixed-rate bank borrowings are denominated in RMB.

Details of charges over the bank borrowings are disclosed in Note
38.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings and other
companies’ borrowing are as follows:

4
@
#

Effective interest rates (per annum): VRS

Fixed-rate borrowings TE R AR

(b)  The loan from a shareholder is unsecured and interest-free.
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Mt

(a)
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o

)

ACECER-F-—E+-A=t—
B RITERENE BEREHE BAN
% A EREEEZ PELHEREN
RATEA PSP RIS IR

RFEREER L TR BERLE (BIRL
TRYEE) B ER-

BIEFEEMRRITERUAREE

RITEMEIRT BIRENFE38

RERBITERREMABERZBEENR

(HEEREOFER) @ENT !
2022 2021
- B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEHEFT

4.94% - 12.00% 4.85% - 12.00%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

On 25 June 2019, the Company issued convertible loan notes
in an aggregate amount of HK$102,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB89,817,000), bearing coupon interest of
6% per annum to eight independent third parties (the “CB
holders”). The convertible loan notes are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The convertible loan notes entitle the CB
holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time during the conversion period at a conversion
price of HK$1.0 per convertible loan note, which is subject to
the adjustments pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
convertible loan notes as follows:

(i) a maximum of not more than one-third of the principal
amount of the convertible loan notes held by such CB
holders may be converted into conversion shares from
the twelfth month after the issue of the convertible loan
notes;

(i) a maximum of not more than one-third of the principal
amount of the convertible loan notes held by such CB
holders may be converted into conversion shares from the
fourteenth month after the issue of the convertible loan
notes;

(iiiy all the remaining of the principal amount of the
convertible loan notes held by such CB holder may be
converted into conversion shares from the sixteenth
month after the issue of the convertible loan notes.

29. AR ERERE

=t = chay = Rl okl = B /N =il IPAN

LEUFE=F (MMMRESFE AL &
1748%8102,100,00078 7t FHERLIARE
89,817,0007T) WA EMER » REF
6% BEEXFE - MK EMERLU
BTt E AT RRERERER TR E
HFRB AR S0 HAE A (E A R
MR ESMH IR ERTER1.0E T (AR
B R ERER 2 BRI RHFAE) &
MK EREREHIRAR A B Z BRI
:

() ZFAIBRRESFHEAFTAEZAR
REREET REFABB=D2Z—
NAZEA NP RRERERET
BB+ _EREBRATIARD ;

(ih ZFARRESFHEAFTAEZAR
REREET REFABB=D2Z—
MARZEAR AR ERERET
BB+ IUE R EERATIARD ;

(i) ZFAIMRESFHEAFTAEZAR
REREBETHFAAGR TAZEAN
RABMBREREBRETERSE I/ E
BREER D RHRM
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

The convertible loan notes shall mature on the date falling
eighteenth month after the date of issue. The Company may,
at any time prior to the maturity date, redeem all or part of
the outstanding convertible loan notes at the redemption
price of 105% of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible loan notes before the first anniversary of the date
of issue and 108.5% of the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible loan notes after the first anniversary of the date
of issue, together with the accrued interest incurred before the
period from the redemption date and interest for the period
from the redemption date to the maturity date at the rate of
6% per annum, by giving a prior notice of not less than thirty
days to the CB holders of such convertible loan notes subject
to the terms and conditions of the convertible loan notes.
Any convertible loan notes outstanding on the maturity date
shall be redeemed by the Company subject to the terms and
conditions of the convertible loan notes.

At the maturity date (i.e. 24 December 2020), if the
convertible loan notes have not been converted or redeemed,
they will be redeemed at 108.5% of par, unless the CB holders
and the Company mutually agree to extend the maturity date
to 24 June 2021 (“Extension Period”). The CB holders shall
exercise the conversion right to convert the convertible loan
notes into conversion shares during the Extension Period at the
conversion price of HK$1. Interest of 6% will be paid quarterly
up until the settlement date.
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29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

At initial recognition, the equity component of the convertible
loan notes amounted to approximately RMB2,811,000, net
of the transaction cost attributable to equity component of
approximately RMB16,000, was recognised separately from
the liability component. The equity component is presented
in equity as “convertible loan notes equity reserve”. The early
redemption option is considered as closely related to the host
debt. The effective interest rate of the liability component is
16.50% per annum.

On 24 December 2021, the convertible bonds in the
amount of HK$60,544,445 (equivalent to approximately
RMB49,501,000) have been converted into 60,544,445
conversion shares by the CB holders, and the remaining
convertible bonds in the amount of HK$41,555,555
(equivalent to approximately RMB33,976,000) are extended
to 31 August 2022 (the “Extended CB Maturity Date"”) after
mutually agreed by the Company and CB holders. Except
for the above, all the other terms and conditions remain
unchanged.

29. AR ERERE &

RS s AR ENER I En
DEANER®2,811,0007T @um&*%
EhZRFMANAREE, 00075)
BEPDDHAER AL DN ER

Fﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁx,ﬂ%%zﬁﬁ%ﬁ£§IJ0¢E
PEOIEEEGRARETERRIAERM
BERD 2 ERFNZER16.50%

RZEZ—F+IZAHZ +E H: %
%660,544,445%8 Tt BERN AR
49,501,0007T) B RT#A IR (& 25 B H AT # A%
BEHEFAEARIRAE60,544,44508 DI
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29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued) 29. TR ERER (&

As at the date of modifications, taking into account the terms
of the extension, the fair value of convertible loan notes were
amounted to approximately HK$68,366,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB56,886,000) and approximately
HK$45,411,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB37,128,000)
on 24 June 2021 and 24 December 2021, of which the fair
values of liability component and equity component were
amounted to approximately HK$68,333,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB56,859,000) and approximately
HK$33,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB27,000) on 24
June 2021, and approximately HK$45,389,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB37,110,000) and approximately HK$22,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB18,000) on 24 December
2021 respectively. As a result, the Group recognised a gain
on modification of convertible loan notes of approximately
RMB5,360,000 in the consolidated statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and transferred the
amount of approximately RMB10,000 from “convertible loan
notes equity reserve” to “retained profits” in the consolidated
statements of changes in equity for the year ended 31
December 2021.

As of the Extended CB Maturity Date, after considering the
difference between the market price of the Company’s share
and the exercise price of the convertible loan notes and its
impacts to the valuation of the fair value of equity component
of the convertible loan notes, the amount of approximately
RMB18,000 (2021: RMB10,000) from “convertible loan notes
equity reserve” was transferred to “retained profits” in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

The effective interest rate of the liability component for the
extended convertible loan notes is approximately 15.0%
(2021: 17.32%) per annum.

As at the date of this report, the Outstanding Convertible
Bonds have reached the Maturity Date. The Company and the
outstanding bondholder are in the course of negotiating for
a further extension of the Maturity Date and the outstanding
bondholder has indicated its intention to agree to an
extension. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 31 August 2022 and further announcement(s) to be
made by the Company as and when necessary in relation to
the Outstanding Convertible Bonds.

The extension of the Maturity Date, if realized, would allow
the Company to enjoy more flexibility when planning its
financial resources, as it would enable the Company to apply
its financial resources to fund its operation and/or business
development, especially when facing the challenges of the
COVID-19 situation, instead of repayment of the Outstanding
Convertible Bonds by 31 August 2022 so as to maximise
returns to the Shareholders.

For further details in relation to the Outstanding Convertible
Bonds, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 23 April 2019, 25 June 2019, 24 December 2020, 31
December 2020, 24 June 2021, 16 July 2021, 24 December
2021, 17 January 2022 and 31 August 2022, the circular of
the Company dated 14 May 2019, 26 January 2021, 30 July
2021 and 11 February 2022 in respect of the Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM"), and the poll result announcement
dated 30 May 2019, 22 February 2021, 10 September 2021
and 7 March 2022 in respect of the EGM.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #HZE_E - "+ _HA=+—HILEE

29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued) 29. AJHARERER @)
As a result of the Share Consolidation became effective on 13 HRKRMEHRZEZZE+ZA+=
December 2022, the following adjustments were made to the HEX BERHERITEIRKRESNITE
exercise price of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds and the BERITEERTEITRKRESEBRT
number of Consolidated Shares falling to be issued upon the BTN HROBEFHLUATHAE

exercise of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds:

Prior to adjustment After adjustment
Adjusted
Number number of
of Existing Consolidated
Shares to be Shares to be
issued upon issued upon
full exercise Adjusted  full exercise
of the exercise of the
Exercise price  Outstanding price per  Outstanding
per Existing  Convertible Consolidated  Convertible
Share Bonds Share Bonds
REBHT
REBHT WK ATE
A K AT1E AR RS &
ARG E skt RFEST

sREE RIEOHN  SHkiAz  SHERHE
RipziT#EE RERNEE KRBTER HEHE

(HKS) (HKS)
C&T) =5,
Outstanding Convertible Bonds BARTEIRRES 1.00 41,555,555 5.00 8,311,111
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued) 29. ATIRERERE ©®

The movement of the equity and liability components of the FAMKREREEEGREEHDZ

convertible loan notes for the year is set out below: EEEIUWT
2022 2021
ot St 3 BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEEFT
Equity component i)
Carrying amount at the beginning of FYEREE
the year 18 28
Transfer to retained earnings upon extension R IEEEEERERE R (18) (10)
Carrying amount at the end of the year FRIREE - 18
2022 2021
—EZCHE TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEEFT
Liability component I=KEEba
Carrying amount at the beginning of FHREE
the year 37,110 56,248
Interest charge (Note 9) MEZH #E29) 5,155 7,740
Interest paid BEAF 8 (428) -
Converted into shares IR KD = (18,899)
Gain on modification of convertible loan AR B EREST WG
notes (Note 8) (B15#8) - (5,360)
Exchange realignment PE R EE 2,177 (2,619)
Carrying amount at the end of the year FRIREE 44,014 37,110
E—ZRBERAE
S TFFR 259
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. 259E|
2022 2021
—E-C T —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFiT ANEEFT
Deposits received from customers HPTMIEEEMZ
in relation to: BEPWEEE !

— Sale and distribution of merchandise —IHE KD H 2,941 1,113

— Provision of interior design and building —EHERNRT RS
engineering services TR 542 463
3,483 1,576

As at 1 January 2021 and 1 January 2022, the contract
liabilities amounted to RMB10,398,000 and RMB1,576,000
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, respectively. The
directors of the Company considered that contract liabilities
would be realised within one year based on the Group’s earliest
obligation to transfer goods or services to the customers and
are classified as current liabilities.

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year was
primarily due to significant contract liabilities were recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are set out in Note 5(ii).
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31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

LEASE LIABILITIES

31. HE&E

2022 2021
—E-C A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT NEBETF T
Within one year —FRN 41 181
Within a period of more than one year but ~ BBE—FERZHMEZ
not more than two years A - 53
41 234
Less: Amount due for settlement within B OREBaEE TR
12 months shown under current liabilities + - EBREHENZ
H1g 41) (181)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months JERBIAEIE FRIRZ
shown under non-current liabilities +-EB%&
EIHBEN 218 = 53

DEFERRED TAX

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets R IBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEEE

32.

MR AR

FHRRRESNM S » & TIELE

MEEEKRBBREREHE M BREM
= RERIBAERRZ AT ¢

2022 2021
—T-F B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEEFT
10,633 6,601
(21,877) (21,239)
(11,244) (14,638)
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262

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32. JEIEMIE (47
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and (assets) UTAREKEE LT EE ZBEER
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BRIEGER (BE) REHEH :
prior years:
Revaluation
Accrued of Allowance
rental and  investment ECL for
payroll properties provision  inventories Tax losses Total
Fxtiie REMEZ BHER
RIE EffLE BHEEE FaiEE RIERSHE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RisF RisF RisF RETT RETT RETT
At 1 January 2021 RZZ2Z—5—F—H = 20,911 (2,480) (245) (161) 18,025
Gain on revaluation upon transfer  B¥1 % BERREUK
from property, plant and FREEEERE
equipment and right-of-use assets & EY £ 2 EENE
to investment properties - 511 - - - 511
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss B .(ME) /%
(Note 11) (atn) (580) (183) (2,058) (172) (905) (3,898)
At 31 December 2021 and R_E_—#+"A=+—-Hk
1 January 2022 “E-"%-F-H (580) 21,239 (4,538) 417) (1,066) 14,638
Gain on revaluation upon transfer ~ B¥% BB kst UK
from property, plant and EWE%%%%@E%%%%
equipment and right-of-use assets ZEftlam
to investment properties - 196 - - - 196
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss B4 (ARR) /1B (HrzE11)
(Note 11) (334) 442 (4,750) 417 690 (3,590)
At 31 December 2022 RZFZZ&+ZA=+-H (914) 21,877 (9,343) S (376) 11,244

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately RMB50,050,000 (2021:
RMB24,989,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses
amounting to RMB1,504,000 (2021: RMB3,619,000) during
the year ended 31 December 2022. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMB15,188,000
(2021: RMB14,962,000) that will expire from 2023 to 2027
(2021: 2022 to 2026). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
difference attributable to the retained profits earned by
the subsidiaries in the PRC amounting to approximately
RMB153,802,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB161,957,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({fZE A R HF1E
T HIBERE TIEH])) effective on 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT ((FZE AR HLFME L #MIEEREITIK
B EHE4HE)) effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sales or transfer of state-owned land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject to
LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures in relation to the gains arising
from sales of properties in the PRC effective from 1 January
2004. Deferred taxation of LAT has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of appreciation
value of investment properties located in the PRC.

32. IRIEFRIE (&)

RIFFPETEMIRE BZEZNE—
B—Hie st EAERE RN E AT B
Z2aMHNBEERKEBHMATBIIR R
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P>k B BL A B BY /8 A B P Bt B R BB i A
MR EEE4 AR 18153,802,0007t (&
——%: ARE%161,957,0007T) {EHIELE
MIBREH FRAREETENZEGR
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33. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised ordinary shares
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022 at HK$0.1 each

Capital Reorganisation (note (a))
At 31 December 2022 at HK$0.5 each

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
At 1 January 2021 at HK$0.1 each

Issuance of consideration share upon
acquisition of subsidiaries

Conversion of convertible loan notes

At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022 at HK$0.1 each

Placing of new shares under general
mandate (note (b))

Exercise of FY2018 Share Options
(Note (c))

Exercise of FY2022 Share Options
(Note (d))

Capital Reorganisation (note (a))

At 31 December 2022 at HK$0.5 each
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EEGER

RN —F—HF—H-
2T —HF+ZA=+—HkK
—E__F—-HB—HSREE
0.187T

RAEMHR (@)

N B "HF+"H=+—HS
BEEIE0.58 7T

ERTREREER
R_E_—F—-HA—HSREE
0.187T

RUEE B A B B ETRERD

B RERRE

RZIEZ—F+"A=+—HK
TR TE-FA-OSKREE
0.1%87T

R — RIS E MRS

gza(o)
TS N\ BEEERE
(Ha#(c))
TE_E R FEERRRE
(Hta#(d))
AR E4H (BTt (a)

RZE-_—_F+-"HB=+—H
ERREE.SEIT

Number of Share
shares capital

Liabg 4= s
RMB'000

ANEETT

5,000,000,000 609,650
(4,000,000,000) -
1,000,000,000 609,650
815,275,321 69,002
51,993,846 4,331
23,115,278 1,890
890,384,445 75,223
387,927,833 33,401
8,533,334 734
31,982,000 2,754

(1,055,062,090)

263,765,522

112,112
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note (a) Capital Reorganisation

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting held on 9 December

2022 (the "EGM"), the resolutions approving the capital reorganization

involving the share consolidation, the capital reduction and the share sub-

division (the “Capital Reorganisation”) was duly passed by way of poll. The

Capital Reorganisation involves:

0}

(ii)

(iii)

Share Consolidation

Every five (5) issued Existing shares of HK$0.10 each shall be
consolidated into one (1) Consolidated Shares of HK$0.50 each,
and every five (5) unissued Existing Shares of HK$0.10 each shall be
consolidated into one (1) unissued Consolidated Share of HK$0.50
each.

Capital Reduction

The Capital Reduction will be implemented subsequent to the
Share Consolidation becoming effective, pursuant to which the par
value of each of the issued Consolidated Shares will be reduced
from HK$0.50 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up capital of
the Company to the extent of HK$0.49 on each of the issued
Consolidated Shares. As such, the issued share capital of the
Company will be reduced.

Share Sub-Division

Immediately following the effectiveness of the Capital Reduction,
the Share Sub-Division will be implemented on the basis that every
unissued Consolidated Share of HK$0.50 each in the authorised
share capital of the Company shall be sub-divided into fifty (50) New
Shares of HK$0.01 each.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note (a) Capital Reorganisation (Continued)

The Share Consolidation became effective on 13 December 2022 as a
result of the resolutions approved in the EGM, while the Capital Reduction
and the Share Sub-Division became effective on 20 February 2023 after
the court order (the “Court Order”) issued by the Court of Cayman Islands
(the “Court”) confirming the Capital Reduction and such order together
with the minutes approved by the Court containing the particulars
required under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands with respect
to the Capital Reduction were filed and duly registered with the Registrar.
For details of the effective date of the Capital Reduction and the Share
Sub-Division, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17
February 2023.

The effect of the Capital Reorganisation on the share capital structure of
the Company is summarised as follows:

Before Capital
Reorganisation

RERASE 4B A

Authorised share capital 500,000,000
EERA

Par value HK$0.10 per

Existing Share

EE BRIRE RD0.108 7T

No. of authorised shares

EERMDEE

5,000,000,000
Existing Shares
5,000,000,0008%

RAE RGN

Par value of issued share capital (HK$) 131,882,761.20
BEITRAmE B)
No. of issued shares 1,318,827,612
Existing Share
1,318,827,6128%
BERHN
3,681,172,388
Existing Share
3,681,172,388k%
RAE RN
368,117,238.80

BETRHEE

No. of unissued shares

RETRINEE

Par value of unissued share capital (HK$)

RETRAEE B
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R s (4)
Mz EE ()

HRERRFHARSG EMIERIRESR  RHDSH
RIZBZ"HF+"HA+=R4%E% MKHEHS
BB (DERR)) 3% BRI AHRAY AR (DX
fRHE<1) B RABBARNDIFANR T2 -_=F
TR BEXR AREARESBERERTHE
NERERERRERENERRAHIHMFIE
R CREMEERERTELNERL - AR
RABUR R RRMFAEN B IRNE F2EE
ABHBAATE_=—F_A+tHNAS-

RABEHARBDRAREZ L EMAMIT ¢

Immediately after the
share consolidation
becoming effective

but before the capital
reduction becoming

Immediately after
the Capital
Reorganisation

effective becoming effective
SRERMESHERE
B 52 R s Bl iRl 2 3 A ERERAEHENE
500,000,000 500,000,000
HK$0.50 per HK$0.01 per
Consolidated Share New Share

BREHR10.508 7T
1,000,000,000

BRAIRP0.0178 7T
50,000,000,000

Consolidated Share New Share
1,000,000,0008% 50,000,000,0008%
EHRD Elieah)
131,882,761.20 2,637,655.22
263,765,522 263,765,522
Consolidated Share New Share
263,765,522f% 263,765,522 %

A HERD R,
736,234,478 49,736,234,478
Consolidated Share New Share
736,234,4785% 49,736,234,478}&
BN Eliah)

368,117,238.80 497,362,344.80
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note (a) Capital Reorganisation (Continued)

For details of the Capital Reorganisation, please refer to (i) the
announcements of the Company dated 4 November 2022 and 9
December 2022 respectively in relation to, among other things, the
Capital Reorganisation; (ii) the circular of the Company dated 24
November 2022 in relation to the EGM; (iii) the announcement of the
Company dated 9 December 2022 regarding, amongst other things, the
poll results of the EGM; and (iv) the announcement of the Company dated
17 February 2022 in relation to, amongst other things, the effective date

of the capital reduction and the share sub-division.

Note (b) Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 25 January 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
28,022,000 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing price
of HK$1.2 per placing shares pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the placing agreement signed between the Company and the placing
agent dated 30 November 2021. The net proceeds (after deducting the
placing commission and other related expenses and professional fees)
from the placing amounted to approximately HK$33.1 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB28.5 million). Please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 30 November 2021, 20 December 2021, 11 January
2022, 12 January 2022 and 26 January 2022 for further details.

On 15 March 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
48,000,000 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing price
of HK$0.9 per placing shares pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the placing agreement signed between the Company and the placing
agent dated 4 March 2022. The net proceeds (after deducting the placing
commission and other related expenses and professional fees) from
the placing amounted to approximately HK$42.6 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB36.6 million). Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 4 March 2022, 8 March 2022, 11 January 2022 and 15
March 2022 for further details.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 33. Ig74s (&)

Note (b) Placing of new shares under general mandate (Continued)

On 28 April 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of 56,000,000
placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing price of HK$0.76
per placing shares pursuant to the terms and conditions of the placing
agreement signed between the Company and the placing agent dated 22
April 2022. The net proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and
other related expenses and professional fees) from the placing amounted
to approximately HK$42 million (equivalent to approximately RMB36.2
million). Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 22
April 2022, 25 April 2022, and 28 April 2022 for further details.

On 31 May 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of 41,431,833
placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing price of HK$0.57
per placing shares pursuant to the terms and conditions of the placing
agreement signed between the Company and the placing agent dated 20
May 2022. The net proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and
other related expenses and professional fees) from the placing amounted
to approximately HK$23.3 million (equivalent to approximately RMB20.0
million). Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 20
May 2022 and 31 May 2022 for further details.

On 27 July 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of 73,230,000
placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing price of HK$0.55
per placing shares pursuant to the terms and conditions of the placing
agreement signed between the Company and the placing agent dated 14
July 2022. The net proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and
other related expenses and professional fees) from the placing amounted
to approximately HK$39.7 million (equivalent to approximately RMB34.2
million). Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14 July
2022 and 27 July 2022 for further details.

On 17 August 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
45,882,000 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing price
of HK$0.55 per placing shares pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the placing agreement signed between the Company and the placing
agent dated 3 August 2022. The net proceeds (after deducting the placing
commission and other related expenses and professional fees) from
the placing amounted to approximately HK$24.9 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB21.4 million). Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 3 August 2022 and 17 August 2022 for further details.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note (b) Placing of new shares under general mandate (Continued)

On 22 September 2022, the Company allotted and issued a total of
95,362,000 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing price
of HK$0.38 per placing shares pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
placing agreement signed between the Company and the placing agent
dated 9 September 2022. The net proceeds (after deducting the placing
commission and other related expenses and professional fees) from
the placing amounted to approximately HK$35.9 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB30.9 million). Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 9 September 2022 and 22 September 2022 for further
details.

Note (c) Exercise of FY2018 Share Options

During the year ended 31 December 2022, share option holders exercised
their rights to subscribe 8,533,334 (2021: Nil) ordinary shares in the
Company at HK$0.704 (2021: HK$0.704) per share with net proceeds of
approximately RMB5,173,000 (2021: Nil) and resulted in the increase in
share capital of approximately RMB734,000 (2021: Nil) and share premium
of approximately RMB4,438,000 (2021: Nil).

Note (d) Exercise of FY2022 Share Options

During the year ended 31 December 2022, share option holders exercised
their rights to subscribe 31,982,000 ordinary shares in the Company at
HK$0.56 per share with net proceeds of approximately RMB15,421,000
and resulted in the increase in share capital of approximately
RMB2,754,000 and share premium of approximately RMB12,667,000.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. LRI ABBRZHAMNRS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

In order to provide incentives and rewards to eligible
participants for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group, the Company adopted share option scheme on 6
October 2015. The maximum number of Shares which may
be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time. The total number
of Shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total number
of Shares in issue as at the date of listing of the Shares, being
36,000,000 Shares, unless the Company obtains the approval
of the shareholders in general meeting for refreshment.

The shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 30 May 2019 to approve the renewal of the 10%
general limit on the number of shares which may be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of the options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme, being 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as of 30 May 2019 and amounting
t0 69,120,000 Shares.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme, please refer to
“Report of the directors” of the Company’s annual report.
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Share options granted on 2 November 2018 (the
“FY2018 Share Options”)

On 2 November 2018, the Company granted 36,000,000
share options to certain directors, senior management,
employees, consultants and customers of the Group. These
share options have exercise price at HK$0.704 with exercise
period of 3 years starting from 7 months after the grant date.
Under the plan, participants are granted options which only
vest subject to grantees continuing to be an employee of the
Group or providing service to the Group through each vesting
date. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 2 November 2018.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
FY2018 Share Options held by directors, senior management,
employees, consultants and customers during the years ended

34. URIBBERZ(TMES @

RIE—N\E+—RAZHIEHLZHEE
(MIZF— )\ FERARE)

A ZE-N\F+—EBEZH > AREEEAE
BEETEE SAREEE - EE BEK
E A H36,000,00010 BB - ZFBER
ITEEA0.7048 T TEAA3IE 8
KREEBRR7EARG -RigZsTE 28
EERBRE BFEARARSHEBER
BEMATEBRENATEEIRMER
BoruEB o FBEHNARABEHBAZ
E—-N\E+—BZHzZA%

TEANBRE S —ER-B-—fF
tCE=t—HLFEEE BREE
B EE EERESREZAATCS

31 December 2022 and 2021: — N\BI M EEBE AR > B
Number of share options
fRlRIEYE
Lapsed Exercised Lapsed
during During during
Options Vesting period At 1.1.2021 theyear  At31.12.2021 the year theyear  At31.12.2022
RZEZ—-F RIEZ-F RZBZZE
falRiE RER —-R—H FER%Y +ZBR=+-H FMTE FER%% +-A=+-H
Directors EZ
Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019 = = = = = =
1t 2 \&+-BZHE
“Z-NERA-H
Tranche 2 02.11.2018-01.05.2020 700,000 (700,000) - - - -
Bt “Z-\F+—-AZHE
“2°ZF1R-H
Tranche 3 02.11.2018-01.05.2021 700,000 - 700,000 (200,000) (500,000) -
Bt “Z-\E+—A-A%E
“2”-%1A-H
1,400,000 (700,000) 700,000 (200,000) (500,000) -
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share options granted on 2 November 2018 (the
“FY2018 Share Options”) (Continued)

Options Vesting period

fRlekE RES

Senior management BREEE

Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019

£t “Z-\F+-BZHE
“Z-n&1R—H

Tranche 2 02.11.2018-01.05.2020

B “2-\F+-BZHE
“ETZERE-H

Tranche 3 02.11.2018-01.05.2021

=it “2-\E+-AZHE
& -FRA-H

Employees /3

Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019

il “Z-\f+—-HAZHE
“E-h&1F-H

Tranche 2 02.11.2018-01.05.2020

BH “Z-\E+-AZHE
“Z22Z5RR-H

Tranche 3 02.11.2018-01.05.2021

Bt “Z-\E+-RAZHE
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34. URIDBERZ(ARRS @&

R-FE-N\F+—A-BRHLZHERRE
(M- \MBFERRRE) &

Number of share options
fRlRiEYE

Lapsed Exercised Lapsed

during During during
At 1.1.2021 theyear  At31.12.2021 the year theyear  At31.12.2022

S RIBZ-§ RZBZZ

—-B-H FER%® +ZRA=+-H FRTE FR%Y +ZA=t+-H
100,000 (100,000) - - - -
100,000 - 100,000 - (100,000) -
200,000 (100,000) 100,000 - (100,000) -
400,000 (400,000) - - - -
400,000 - 400,000 - (400,000) -
800,000 (400,000) 400,000 - (400,000) -
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Share options granted on 2 November 2018 (the
“FY2018 Share Options”) (Continued)

Options
fRlekE
Consultants

Tranche 1

it

Tranche 2
i

Tranche 3

B4t

Customers

Tranche 1
B—H#t

Tranche 2

BH#

Tranche 3
F=H#

Exercisable at the end of
the reporting period

Vesting period
RER
B

02.11.2018-01.05.2019
“E-\F+-BZHE
“E-NERR-A
02.11.2018-01.05.2020
- \f+—-AZHE
“22ZFRA-H
02.11.2018-01.05.2021
“E-\F+-BZHE
“Z-_-%18-A

ER

02.11.2018-01.05.2019
- \f+—-AZHE
“2-NERR—H
02.11.2018-01.05.2020
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34. URIBBERZ(TMES @

R-IFE-N\F+—AZBRHZHERRE
(MZE—-\MBFERIE) @

Number of share options
fRlREYE

Lapsed Exercised Lapsed

during During during
At 1.1.2021 theyear  At31.12.2021 the year theyear  At31.12.2022

RZEZ—-F RZEZ-F RZgZZ

—-R-H FERM%Y +ZBR=+-H FMTE FER%® +-A=+-H
5433333 (5:433,333) - - - -
5,433,334 = 5,433,334 (2,966,668) (2,466,666) =
10,866,667 (5:433,333) 5433334 (2,966,668) (2,466,666) -
5,366,667 (5,366,667) - - - —
5,366,666 - 5,366,666 (5,366,666) - -
10,733,333 (5,366,667) 5,366,666 (5,366,666) - —
24,000,000 (12,000,000) 12,000,000 (8,533,334) (3,466,666) -
12,000,000 -
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. URINABBERZIRRS &

(Continued)

Share options granted on 2 November 2018 (the
“FY2018 Share Options”) (Continued)

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 2
November 2018 was HK$6,953,000. The Binomial model
had been used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options were based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varied with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

The key inputs of the model for Tranche 1 to 3 were as follows:

Share price AR B
Exercise price T1EE
Risk-free rate R E
Dividend yield % B
Expected volatility TRHA 13

Time-to-maturity and expected life | A BFER K FE 5+ 4 HA

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome. As at 31 December 2021, the weighted average
exercise price for FY2018 Share Options was HK$0.704 per
share.
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RIE—-N\E+—RAZHIELZERE
(M- \MBFERRRE) &

RIZE—N\F+—BZBHRELEZERE
Z 155 AT {E %6,953,0005 75 c —IETE
*‘JEJEHEMﬁJrﬁ%H%EEZ’A%EO%Jr%E%HQ
BAFEMERNEREE RBREKTD
ﬁé%%zﬂi{ﬁﬁoﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ‘iﬁﬁﬁ%%?
FHREIZNTEEEMBFTARRE -

FE-MRBZTEHAREBENT

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
F—i#t B B
HK$0.69 HK$0.69 HK$0.69
0.6978 7T 0.69787T 0.69787T
HK$0.704 HK$0.704 HK$0.704
0.704%8 7t 0.704%E 7T 0.7048 7T
2.02% 2.18% 2.25%
0% 0% 0%
43.4% 43.7% 46.1%
1.5 years 2.5 years 3.5 years
1.5 2.5 3.5

BRENBESFHERBE=ZFNEZL
BB A —ERRIEEERNTEER -
TR RAOR 18 2 BR 1R 5% E 2 R IR BE S AU R R
RigH - MERBRA—EWLL - R -F
——H+ZR=+—H ZT-/\MRF
EERENETHTEERSR0.704%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Share options granted on 2 November 2018 (the
“FY2018 Share Options”) (Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company's share price over the previous 18
to 42 months. No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, share options
amounting to approximately RMB2,735,000 (2021:
RMB1,775,000) was lapsed and were transferred from share-
based payment reserve to retained profits.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no share options
were granted or exercised, except for 12,000,000 share
options were lapsed. The Group did not recognize any expense
(2021: RMB303,000) for the year ended 31 December 2022 in
relation to FY2018 Share Options granted by the Company.

Share options granted on 27 July 2022 (the “FY2022
Share Options”)

On 27 July 2022, the Company granted 69,100,000 share
options to certain directors, senior management, employees
and consultants of the Group. These share options have
exercise price at HK$0.56 with exercise period of 10 years
starting from the grant date. Details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 July 2022.

34. URIBBERZ(TMES @

R-IE-N\F+—AZRRLZHEARE
(MIZE—N\MBFERRRE) @

RHRKEERARABRENRBE18E42
BRZELKBERE - stEATERFHRE
FIAEMBER HERENSE -

BE"Z__F+_A=+—RHLEE
EIRENANR2,735,0000 (ZE ——
F: ANR¥1,775,0007T) B8 1 B R
NAERZ IREESBEERE RN

REE_E-_—F+-B=+—H81
FE - HMEBEREERID N EITH
12,000,00017 B RGBSR M PRIM o BLE
T T+ RA=t+—HILFE &~&EE
TEMEATDEHH S/ \HBHEE
BERERDEARE CEZ—F AR
#303,0007T) °

R-E-Z-FtBA=-++tRHIBHZERE
(M= EERRE)

MN_E__FtB_+tH AATAKR
ERETES SHhEERE -EEKEM
% 469,100,000173 BE RS 1 © 5% S B RS RETT
FEEAR0.568 T THEHAAI0E B
EHRB - HEBHENEARABEHEAZE
- = o = B ol == /A=

E—ERERAR
—E_FFR 275



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share options granted on 27 July 2022 (the “FY2022

34. URIDBERZ(ARRS @)

M-S ZFtAZ+taEBHZERE

Share Options”) (Continued) (T —HHEEBRE) @)
The following table discloses movements of the Company's TREBBEZZS - F+ZB=+—
FY2022 Share Options held by directors, senior management, ALEFEESE -sHhEEE ES KRERM
employees and consultants during the year ended 31 FHEZARBAZEZ"MEBFERERKRE
December 2022: kL)
Number of share options Number of share options
(Before Share Consolidation) (After Share Consolidation)
HEiREYE BiERE
(R B 1{R &6 a0) (R EHE)
Exercised Share
during Consolidation
At 27.07.2022 theyear At31.12.2022  Adjustments  At.31.12.2022
RZEZZF R-BZZF
KZE-Z& +=R +=A
Options - 22 tAZ+tH FRTE =t+—HB ROEHAR =+-H
(Note 1)
(z1)
Directors S 7,000,000 (2,000,000) 5,000,000 (4,000,000) 1,000,000
Senior Management SREER 18,300,000 (7,482,000) 10,818,000 (8,654,400) 2,163,600
Employees (= 8,700,000 (8,300,000) 400,000 (320,000) 80,000
Consultants B8] 35,100,000 (14,200,000) 20,900,000 (16,720,000) 4,180,000
69,100,000 (31,982,000) 37,118,000 (29,694,400) 7,423,600
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period 54 #K AI471§ 7,423,600
Note 1: As a result of the Share Consolidation became effective on 13 Wt RN eHR _E_“_F+"A+=

December 2022, adjustments were made to the exercise price
of the outstanding FY2022 Share Options and the number
of Consolidated Shares falling to be issued upon the exercise
of the outstanding FY2022 Share Options in accordance with
(i) the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme; (ii)
Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules; and (iii) the Supplementary
Guidance on Main Board Listing Rule 17.03(13) and the
Note immediately after the Rule attached to the Frequently
Asked Question No. 072-2020 issued by the Stock Exchange
on 6 November 2020 (the “Stock Exchange Supplementary
Guidance”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. URRinHERZAMZS @
(Continued)
Share options granted on 27 July 2022 (the “FY2022 RIS FtAZ+tHENHZERE
Share Options”) (Continued) (IZEZ—RHEERERE) &)
Prior to adjustment After adjustment
Adjusted
Number number of
of Existing Consolidated
Shares to be Shares to be
issued upon issued upon
full exercise Adjusted  full exercise
of the exercise of the
Exercise price  outstanding price per  outstanding
per Existing FY2022 Share Consolidated FY2022 Share
Share Options Share Options
K ATRER
el RATHERY —§-C
S MBEE
HBER BREE
fRRg e sk BERITER

TETRE aftikis RFET
shRAke ®FRT2Z ZERE  Aftkitz

Date of grant REBH 21T1fEE RERMEUE fTfEE  KBERYE
(HKS) (HK$)
(&) (#7)
27 July 2022 B2 "H#tA”+tH 0.56 37,118,000 2.80 7,423,600
The estimated fair value of the options granted on 27 July RIE__HFtA-+tHRBEZER
2022 was HK$13,914,039. The Binomial model had been B2 st AFESA13,914,0398 7w 18
used to estimate the fair value of the options. The variables NREEAN T EREZATEFE
and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share EREATEMERNEHEERBR
options were based on the directors’ best estimate. The value BEREEZREMGS -BREBERES
of an option varied with different variables of certain subjective HTEFREXNIEEEMBMRRE-

assumptions.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. LRIABBRZAMKS &

(Continued)

Share options granted on 27 July 2022 (the “FY2022
Share Options™) (Continued)

The key inputs of the model were as follows:

Share price HK$0.56
Exercise price HK$0.56
Risk-free rate 2.78%
Dividend yield 0%
Expected volatility 42.78%
Time-to-maturity 10 years

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome. As at 27 July 2022, the
weighted average exercise price for FY2022 Share Options
was HK$2.80 per share (or HK$0.56 per share prior to Share
Consolidation).

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over 6.7 years started
from 6 November 2015 (“the Listing date”) of the Company
to 27 July 2022 (the "Valuation date”). No other feature of the
options granted was incorporated into the measurement of
fair value.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB11,903,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022 in relation to FY2022
Share Options granted by the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Share options granted on 27 July 2022 (the “FY2022
Share Options”) (Continued)

As of the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had a total of 7,423,600 share options that had
been granted but remained unexercised, in addition to 4,000
share options that were yet to be granted under the Scheme.
The unexercised options represented approximately 2.81% of
the Company’s shares in issue, while the ungranted options
represented approximately 0.01%. Collectively, the 7,427,600
unexercised options amounted to approximately 2.82% of the
Company’s shares in issue as of that date.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
7,423,600 granted but unexercised FY2022 Share Options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of these
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 7,423,600 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$20,786,080 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, no share
options were granted.

34. URIBBERZ(TMES @

RIS -FtAZ+tHEBHZERE
(TR EEBERE) @)

HEZSUBERRENWERR X288
REEERITTENBRES 7,423,600
19 U R R IE % 51 8 1A R 3% H #94,0001%
BRE - RITTEBREGAABEET
FRPBIAI2.81%  MAEEHBREMD
0.01% ©7,427,60014 RITEERE S 15
NABRZHBETRNBI492.82% ©

RHREBR REZSE ARFTAE
7,423,600 BEREEHRITENZE
TTHMBEEERE ZEEREERY
THEB BRERBEAQARREEARBE
B EE177,423,600RREIN A AE] EER
T ZBSMNIG 220,786,080 7T (R 5t 3 17R8
%) o

REEHRE  HEBREERD
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

35.

36.

280

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes of 5%
of eligible employees’ relevant aggregated income with a cap
of HK$1,500 per employee per month, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiary is
required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of RMB401,000
(2021: RMB549,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings, convertible
loan notes and lease liabilities disclosed in Notes 28, 29 and
31, respectively, net of bank balances and cash and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and other reserves.
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36.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group
receives a report from the share registrars on a timely basis on
substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit from
the date of the Listing.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

36.

37.

BEFEREE @)

TABDEEBFF—RERELRBF
RZBERZ BN EFEETERENE
RZEXRRERIEFAR REEFZE
ZAEEREBRMRE RGO ET
R EIEURETHEFSNERIRA
B THEEREARE-

ME—SNEBRFIME B R ENRS » AEEI
MERT ELTE B 2P _E TR RO > A RFT IR
ERDRBRDATI25% o 25 B K B U B i
MBRELERTIFARFRENERX
RipEmAVRE KRB £ BHLK
HRER 525%RIPREE

TWMIA

(a) EMIRERN

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL

Unlisted equity securities

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

EHMEE

BRAFESIARB®mZ
TREE

FE LRSS

REIHA AT R Z
TRMEE

AR

2022 2021
g T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ANEEFT
1,178 1,178
798,765 227,204
399,658 44,459
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables, amounts
due from related parties, bank balances and cash,
trade and bills payables and other payables, bank and
other borrowings and convertible loan notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have the foreign
currency bank balances which exposes the Group to
foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the
Group's foreign currency denominated monetary
assets at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

HK$ BT

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

37. T H &)

(b) MBRKEERBRFREE

FEBZIETHIAGERAY
Bt A\ BmzEREE B85 KHEAM
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FRRE B %&?—??FJEHTAIELX&
H At B T RRIE ~ SR1T R H &
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.

In the opinion of management of the Group, the
expected change in foreign exchange rate will not
have significant impact on the carrying amount of
the foreign currency denominated monetary assets,
hence sensitivity analysis is not presented.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to bills payable as disclosed in Note 28, lease
liabilities as disclosed in Note 31, fixed-rate bank
and other borrowings as disclosed in Note 28 and
fixed-rate convertible loan notes as disclosed in Note
29. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances as
disclosed in Note 25. The Group manages its interest
rate exposures by assessing the potential impact
arising from any interest rate movements based on
interest rate level and outlook.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates
movement on bank balances.

37. T H @)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.
Total interest income from financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost is as follows:
Other income HBA
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ ¥Z#IE AT EZ
THEE
Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured
at FVTPL:

RBHEMATEZ
TRAas

Financial liabilities at amortised
cost

No sensitivity analysis was presented as the
management considers that the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk for variable-rate bank balances
are insignificant.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. T H @)

(b) HFBEAKBEREREREE (@)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, contract assets, amounts due from
related parties and bank balances and cash. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. Information about the
Group’s credit risk management, maximum credit risk
exposures and the related impairment assessment, if
applicable, are summarised as below:

EEm R A EFE
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BEEMERAER Y HEENER -
rEENEERREIERAES RE
fthEWRIE s SN B E  FEURRE S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. T H &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals and to
determine any debt recovery action on those delinquent
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers.
Before granting credit to these customers, the Group
reviews the credit quality and defines credit limits by
these customers. Limits attributed to these customers are
reviewed once a year and each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group maintains a defined credit policy
to assess the credit quality of these customers and seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
so as to minimise credit risk. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 26%
(2021: 28%) and 66% (2021: 64%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMEERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances contract assets
based on provision matrix. Except for those trade
receivables contract assets with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired, which are assessed for
impairment individually, the remaining trade receivables
and contract assets are grouped under a provision
matrix based on shared credit risk characteristics by
reference to the ageing, repayment history and/or past
due status of trade receivables and contract assets.
Impairment of RMB9,022,000 (2021: RMB1,997,000)
and RMB5,019,000 (2021: RMB576,000) is recognised
for trade receivables and contract assets, respectively
during the year. Details of the quantitative disclosures are
set out below in this note.

37. T H @)

(b) HFBEAKBEREREREE (@)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. T H &)

(b) MBRAKRERBREREE (@)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

288

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Amounts due from related parties and other receivables
and deposits

For amounts due from related parties and other
receivables and deposits, the directors of the Company
make periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of these amounts based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The directors of the Company
believe that there are no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. Impairment
of nil (2021: nil) is recognised for amounts due from
related parties and impairment of RMB19,139,000 (2021:
impairment of RMB3,590,000) is recognised for other
receivables and deposits during the year. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in this note.

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by credit agencies. Based on above,
the credit risk on bank balances is considered to be
insignificant by the management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. T H @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BAERAGEREEREE (&)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEREREEFFG )
KEBMNAFEERRERTEE
R EER)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Trade receivables and

Internal credit rating Description contract assets Other financial assets

ARIEETE Fiat BEPRUREREHNEE 2 HUMEmMEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
default and does not have any past- not credit-impaired
due amounts

1Bz HFFMENEREELIETMNAE 2BEHEEER 2MERRREEHE
TR — i HIRE ERE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
dates but usually settle in full not credit-impaired

BavEs EBEALERIARRER BEE 2BEREERE 2B RHREEHE
2HEAEE — i B REERE

Doubtful There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external sources

AR BBNBELEZERIIMNIERR EHREHESEE 2HREREERE
R BT ERLUR FEREE — i M IRE ERE —WEHRESRHE
BBEEM

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired

B8 ERBETEEACHREERE 2HEHEEHEE 2HRRAEERE

—BHREERE —BHRESHE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

G| BERBENEFABAREMHE S ERIME E R

¥ mASEILERRIE BN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. &M T A ®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MERGEEEERBE &)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERBEFFE (B
The table below details the credit risk exposures of TRFAFBETHEBAEEBETE
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL Z2REREMEEZEERRE !
assessment:
2022 2021
k- Jontent - ZET-F
Internal 12-month or
Notes  credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
1282
M AUBGEETSR  RBEEESRE IREAE REEE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000
AEEFT AEEF7T ANEET NEEFT
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHRAIEZ ERER
Contract assets 22 (Note 2) 12-month ECL 364,929 -
BNEE (zx2) NEAEHEESE
Trade receivables from contracts with 23 (Note 1) Lifetime ECL
customers (provision matrix) 215,365 49,436
RRENZBRRYEE (zx1) 2HRBEERR
(BB
Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired 46,679 54,038
EEHEERE-
TRLREEHE
Lifetime ECL-
credit-impaired - 262,044 - 103,474
2HBBEERR-
BHREERE
Amounts due from related parties 26 (Note 2) 12-month ECL 3,945 934
Gl e (R2) ERBHEESE
Other receivables and deposits 23 (Note 2) 12-month ECL 83,120 299,038
HitEWFIEREE (MzE2) ERBHEESE
Bank balances 25 (Note 2) 12-month ECL 7,017 31,958
RiTER (Mz%2) ERBHEESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

37. T H @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Internal

Notes  credit rating

Wi AEEEES

Contract assets 22 (Note 1)

alEE (sx1)

Notes:

12-month or
lifetime ECL
28R %21
FHEERE

Lifetime ECL
(provision matrix)
2BEBEERR
(EEEm
Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired
LHBHREERE-
UENREEHE

(b) HFBEABEREREREE (&

EEmERAETFE (&

2022 2021
bt oo “BT-F
Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
IREAE REAME
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000
AEEFT  AREFR ANEETT  ARETFT
378,213 253,944
- 378,273 104,902 358,846
Htat -

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group
determines the ECL on these items by using a provision matrix,

grouped by internal credit rating.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers. The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for
trade receivables and contract assets which are assessed based
on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).
Debtors with significant outstanding balances or credit-
impaired with gross carrying amounts of RMB424,952,000
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB158,940,000) were
assessed individually.

MEZEWRERENEEMS * &
EEERBEBYBREENFEIRZ
B EE2BRREERENER
BEB -FARKERHRENEHRIE
PREEREZEBRRRISN REE
EREREEEEZFRERHAEER
B WiIRANEME TR D

EAXEREERREEZ —%H9
rEBRHEEREARBEET R
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EFBRKRZER  ARAENE2H
FEHEEFRE TEHREEREBE i
ZEEBEETG R _F 1+
B=+—HB BEREHREMEHR
BEHIREEREZEWIRR Z KM
B8 AR #18424,952,00070 (B - —F :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

292

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

37. T H &)

(b) MBRAKRERBREREE (&

Mzt (&

1. (Continued) 1. (#&)
Gross carrying amount ERIE4EE
2022 2021
. Jenfenk T2

Average Trade Contract Average Trade Contract
Internal credit rating WEME B4R loss rate receivables assets loss rate receivables assets
THBEHEE BEEKME aNEE THEEEX BHRURE BHEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR NE#F NE#F
Low risk [i9=0 0.92% 150,274 250,204 1.33% 10,394 194,442
Watch list BEE 9.44% 21,512 3,269 8.82% 4,630 7,232
Doubtful RER 14.3% 43,579 111,456 11.88% 34,412 52,270
Loss 54 - - - - - -
215,365 364,929 49,436 253,944

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated. The contract
assets have substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same type of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for
contract assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
provided RMB9,022,000 (2021: RMB2,000,000) and
RMB5,019,000 (2021: RMB572,000) impairment allowance
for trade receivables and contract assets respectively, based on

the provision matrix.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

37. T H @)

(b) HZRAKREEEERBE @

Mzt &

1. (Continued) 1 (%)
Gross carrying amount (Continued) IREARE (&
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TRETCEHEBEZEWMNERENE
has been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets: ERRZ2HABEREEHENES :
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
- provision - individual - individual
matrix assessment assessment
(not credit- (not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
28 28 21
BHEERR BHREERR BHEERR
—BRER — {34 — {34
(I 3R (M4 3R (BHR
FHR{E) FHR{E) FHiAE) szt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT
At 1 January 2021 R_E-_—&—H—H 9,143 4,888 - 14,031
Changes due to financial instruments ER-E-—&
recognised as at 1 January 2021: —B—HBHERZ
EMIAMES !
— Impairment losses recognised - BRDAESE 2,572 — = 2,572
— Impairment losses reversed —BELIRESE - (2,503) = (2,503)
As at 31 December 2021 and RIBZ—%
1 January 2022 +ZA=+—-Bk
T "&—-HF—H 11,715 2,385 - 14,100
Changes due to financial instruments E —Z - 4
recognised as at 1 January 2022: —B—HEZz
ERMTAMEE :
— Impairment losses recognised —BRDAESE 14,041 - - 14,041
At 31 December 2022 BZEZZ&
+ZB=+-H 25,756 2,385 - 28,141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. &M T A ®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBRABEEBRRBE (&)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) biaE : (#8)

1. (Continued)
Gross carrying amount (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivable are mainly
due to the recognition of impairment allowance for trade
receivable with a gross carrying amount of RMB276,841,000
(2021: RMB103,474,000) during the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Group writes off trade receivables when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over five years past due, whichever occurs
earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written

off is subject to enforcement activities.

2. The Group assessed the loss allowance for amounts due
from related parties and other receivables and deposits on
12m ECL basis. In determining the ECL, the Group performs
periodic review on the financial position of the debtors, its
settlement status and other contractual conditions to ensure
it is financially viable to settle the receivables. The Group
has applied ranged to 0.2% to 26.76% (2021: 0.17% to
18.13%) of credit loss rates and concluded that adequate
impairment loss is made for irrecoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. T H @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
2. (Continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances

that has been recognised for other receivables and deposits
and amounts due from related parties:

At 1 January 2021 W-E=Z—%—HB—H
Changes due to financial instruments RN —F—HF—H
recognised as at 1 January 2021: REMTEAEEZ

— Impairment losses recognised —BERRAERE
— Impairment losses reversed —BELRERE
As at 31 December 2021 and WZT=—%§
1 January 2022 +=ZB=+—HBR=Z%
—Z—#—HB—H
Changes due to financial instruments HER-ZZE__"F—H—H
recognised as at 1 January 2022: HRREMTAELEZ
— Impairment losses recognised —BRERREBE
— Exchange difference —EREL
At 31 December 2022 B-EZZ
+=B=+—H

(b) HZRAKREEEERBE @

Mzt &

2. (#)

TRETEREMBRREREE R
FEU R S AR 2 B REEZH

iR :
12m ECL 12m ECL
- individual - individual
assessment assessment
(not credit- (not credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
12{8 B 7&HA 128 B F&8HA
E8E518 8518
— &R EF L —{E B EFfE
(36 #% 37 (3 4% 4 3R
EERE) EERE HEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEEFT ANEHEFT ANEEFT
770 115 885
3,590 - 3,590
(306) (115) (421)
4,054 - 4,054
19,139 - 19,139
898 - 898
24,091 - 24,091
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FaMBEBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

296

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group has applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at 12m ECL as there is no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The
Group determines the expected credit losses for bank balances
by assessment of probability of default. During the year
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 in view of the nature of
the balance and historical default rate and forward looking
information, the Group considers the provision of impairment
allowance for the bank balances are insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of bank balances and cash deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from weighted average
interest rate at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity table

At 31 December 2022

Weighted
average
interest

rate
il
FigflE
%
%

Non-derivative financial liabilities JEf74 &R & &
Trade and other payables S REAMETTE =
Bank and other borrowings FTREMER 7
Convertible loan notes ERERRE 1732
Lease liabilities HEaE 10.00

37. T H @)

(b)

MEBEBREEERREE (&

REBZEE ()

REEEX

R-Z2-"F+”-RA=+—H

On demand Total
or less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
1month  1-3 months to 1year 1-5years Over5years  cash flows amount
BER FERRE
DMEA 12388 EREIE 1555 BilsE  RENE fREfE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ABETR AREFR ARBBFT ARBBFT AREFT ARETT ARET7T
120,246 - - - - 120,246 120,246
- - 235,398 - - 235,398 235,398
- - 44,014 - - 44,014 44,014
- - ] - - 4 ]
120,246 - 401,436 - - 504,417 399,699
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. M TR @&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MERAMBEEEHERBE &
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) THBELEE (B)
Liquidity table (Continued) BB ZZH (B)
At 31 December 2021 N2 —F+"“H=+—H
Weighted
average  On demand Total
interest  or less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
rate Tmonth  1-3months to 1 year 1-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
g BERA FUERRE
TaRE  DRMMER 1£3ER 3BRAE1E 1554 BiAsE RERE REE

% RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
% ANEEFn AEEFT ARETT  ARETT ARETn  ARETT  AREFT

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEfTESREEE

Trade and other payables ESREMEMNTE - 97,609 - - - - 97,609 97,609
Bank and other borrowings FAREMER 6.64 = = 359,842 5,308 = 365,130 342,104
Convertible loan notes THRREFZE 1732 = = 41,395 = = 41,395 37,110
Lease liabilities HEEE 10.00 - - 199 64 - 263 234
97,609 - 01436 5,372 - s04417 457,693
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The directors
of the Company are responsible to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The directors
of the Company works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The management reports the
valuation committee’s findings to the board of directors of
the Company to explain the cause of fluctuations in the
fair value.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

300

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Investments in the unlisted equity securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group assessed the minimum recoverable amount
of the investments will be covered by the personal
guarantee arrangement on the basis that the guarantors
have sufficient assets to support their personal guarantee.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
no fair value change had been recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 and as of the date,
the investments in the unlisted equity securities classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are amounted to approximately RMB1,178,000 (2021:
RMB1,178,000).

There were no transfers in different levels of the fair value
hierarchy during the reporting period.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (but fair value disclosures required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values based on
discounted cash flows analysis.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

CHARGES ON ASSETS 38.
The Group has the following charges on assets for bank
borrowings as set out in Note 28 at the end of the reporting
period:

Property, plant and equipment ME-BER&E
Investment properties KREMZE
Right-of-use assets FERREE
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 39.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
from financing activities.

BEKR

R EHR - S EB B sE28Fh 8 2 IR1T
BERAEUTEERM

2022 2021
—E-= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT NE#FT
17,832 19,151
61,520 62,500
1,255 1,310
80,607 82,961

MEEHEENEANHR

TRFIMETHELENETERERE
7 8RR RIIFRTEH RETHE
ENERMHEBEERENARESRE
REEBZEEREMERDBAME
mENAaE-

E—ERERAR
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39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 39.

302

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

At 1 January 2021
Financing cash flows (Note)

S AL
MERSTE (2)

Non-cash transactions: FERERG .

Gain on modification of BT R EREERN
convertible loan notes Wz

Converted into conversion BIAARIRKRN
shares

Termination of lease BIETEEZHE
arrangement

Notes receivable e i

Exchange adjustments bE R EFE

Interest expenses FERZ

At 31 December 2021 and ATET—F
1 January 2022 +ZBE=+—HX

“E-_"F#—A—H

Financing cash flows (Note) RERSRE Wiz

Non-cash transactions: FERERG .

Notes receivable e i

Exchange adjustments bE R EFEE

Interest expenses FERAX

At 31 December 2022 W-E--%+=AH

=+—H

MEEHEENRRNHR @

Bank

Lease and other Convertible
liabilities borrowings loan notes Total

T ik
HERRE HitnfEwk HRERE st
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
ANEEFT ABETT ABETFT ARETT
10,786 177,579 56,248 244,613
(751) 18,741 - 17,990
= = (5,360) (5,360)
- - (18,899) (18,899)
(9,821) - - (9,821)
- 116,334 - 116,334
= = (2,619) (2,619)
20 10,086 7,740 17,846
234 322,740 37,110 360,084
(195) (173,334) (428) (173,957)
= 77,710 = 77,710
= = 2,177 2,177
2 8,282 5,155 13,439
4 235,398 44,014 279,453

Note: The financing cash flows mainly represent net proceeds on issue of

convertible loan notes, proceeds from bank and other borrowings,

repayment of lease liabilities, repayment of bank and other

borrowings and interest paid and excluded proceeds from exercising

of share options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. A AR B
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated BRRZESEUBRET 2 EME 2P
financial statements, the Group has following transactions and BEEN AEEERBMEBUTRE KRG
balances with related parties: BR
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) ERARAERS

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_B=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—B-HF —EC—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKEFT ARETFT

Expense related to short-term lease paid A& RERMEILEZ T2

to Mr. Wen Jingfeng AR E RS - 24
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEIEABRIEM
The remuneration of executive directors, being the key HITES REEEEAS) WETNE
management personnel, are set out in Note 13, which P13 HIAFTMEEERET R
is determined by the remuneration committee having BARBERHIZEBEMETE

regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operation
SEMARIL R
HEM

Name of subsidiary

WBAR A

Zhan Yun Holdings Limited ~ BVI

REERAR HERRUHS
Sino Legacy Investments BVI
Limited
HEREUHS
Indirectly held subsidiaries:
MEREZREBAR:
Jiyi Investments Limited Hong Kong
E—RERERAT 0
Jiyi Entertainment Limited ~ Hong Kong
E-FEREBERRT &E
Jiyi International Trading Hong Kong
(H.K.) Company Limited
E-ERES EB) &8
BRAE
Win Giant Limited Hong Kong
&8
Guangdong Jiyi Household ~ The PRC
Building Materials Chain
Co. Ltd.*
("Guangdong Jiyi")
BRE-—XEEMEH FE

BRAS (BRE—)
Meizhou Jisheng Household - The PRC
Building Materials
Company Limited*
("Meizhou Jisheng")
BN EBKEEM
BRATF (TEMNER)

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Issued and fully paid

41.

AR EEMBAEFE

ARBRBREMREEREEFAEZN
BABFBHIIWM T

Proportion ownership

share capital/Paid-up interest held by
registered capital the Company
BRTRBERS FARRAZ
BRAMES FRA gz L)
2022 2021
ZEIZE |22 -&
% %
UsSD50,000 100% 100%
50,000 70
USD50,000 100% 100%
50,000 7T
HK$1 100% 100%
187
HK$1 100% 100%
18T
HK$100 100% 100%
10077t
HK$1 100% 100%
18T
RMB161,600,000 100% 100%
AR
161,600,0007T
RMB2,000,000 100% 100%
AE2,000,0007T

Proportion of

voting power held by
the Company
TRARFEZ
REMELA
2022 2021
ZECCZH | IT-F
% %
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

TBEH

Investment holding
LA

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
LEER

Investment holding

REER

Bulk commodity
trading
ArBmER

Investment holding

REZk

Sales of household
building materials

HERERM

Investment holding

kEzR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Name of subsidiary establishment/operation

SEMERIL RIS
WEATAE HEME
Guangdong Jiyi Xinya The PRC
Decoration and Design
Construction Company
Limited*("Jiyi Xinya")
BRE—(EHRENRS  PE
IERERRA
(TE—E%)
Jiyi Industrial Group The PRC
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.*
("Shenzhen Jiyi")
E-BEEE () e
BRAS (TRYIE—)
Shenzhen Xinjiale Cloud-  The PRC
based Decoration
Technology Co., Limited*
RTHREERERE  PE
BRAT
Meizhou Xinjiale Enterprise  The PRC
Limited*
BN EEE e
BRATF

Xinjiale Cloud-base Gaofeng The PRC
(Meizhou) Decoration
Engineering Company
Limited*

HREZREPFE (BN
KM TRERAR

) HE

Issued and fully paid  Proportion ownership

share capital/Paid-up interest held by
registered capital the Company
BRTRBERS FREAHEZ
BRAMES FRA gz L)
2022 2021
ZEIZE |22 -&
% %
RMB10,100,000 100% 100%
AE10,100,00075
RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
AE%10,000,0007T
RMB35,000,000 100% 100%
AE135,000,00075
RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
AK1,000,0007T
RMB306,000 51% 51%
AR %306,0007T

=B 5 R R M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #HZE_ T _&F+_A=+—HILEE

41. EATEEMELATFHE @

Proportion of
voting power held by
the Company
TRARFEZ
RERELA

Principal activities

TBEE

2022
———

— T —

2021

ZEI-F
% %
100%  Provision of
interior design
and building
engineering
services
RUENREKE
RIRRE

100%

100% 100%  Investment holding

REZR

100% 100%  Provision of home
decoration and
online distribution
and electronic
marketing
services

b ﬁ*”i&fdﬁu:’\
?%
Provision of home

decoration
RERE

100% 100%

Provision of home
decoration

51%

RERE

E—ERERAR
—E_FFR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41. AT X EMB AT FE @)
COMPANY (Continued)

Issued and fully paid  Proportion ownership Proportion of
Place of incorporation/ share capital/Paid-up interest held by voting power held by
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation  registered capital the Company the Company Principal activities
SEMARIL RS BEITRYRRE TRARAFHEZ TRARFEZ
WEATAE HEN BEEMES PR L) R TEEH
2022 2021 2022 2021
—S_"E | ZZ_—F |ZR_"F | ZBC-F
% % % %

Xinjiale Cloud-base Qinyang The PRC RMB600,000 51% 51% 51% 51%  Provision of home
(Meizhou) Decoration decoration
Engineering Company
Limited*

MREZEERE (8))  PE AR #600,0007T R E
KM TRERAS

Meizhou Xingju Culture The PRC RMB1,000,000 51% 51% 51% 51%  Provision of
Media Company Ltd.* electronic

marketing
services

IEMEFUEBEE F A 1,000,000 REEREHERE
BIRAR

Guangdong Jicheng The PRC RMB10,000,000 99% 99% 99% 99%  Investment holding
Building Materials
Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)*

BREHNEMEX H AE10,000,0007% REZK

(BIREH)

Jiyi (Shenzhen) Property The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% 100% 100% 100%  Estate management
Management Co., Ltd*

£ (R mxEE # A 2,000,000 WEERE
BRAR

Meizhou Jiyi Building The PRC RMB10,000,000 65% 65% 65% 65%  Sales of household
Materials Partnership building materials
(Limited Partnership)*

IBINTEZEMEBEE F AE#10,000,0007T HEREEM

(BIREH)

Jiyi (Shenzhen) Intelligent ~ The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100% 100% 100%  Sales of electronic
Technology Co., Ltd* products

E-R(F)BHEMEKE P A #5,000,0007% HEBFER
BRAT

Jiyi Zhiwo (Shenzhen) The PRC RMB5,000,000 51% N/A 51% N/A  Sales of electronic
Intelligent Technology products
Co., Ltd*

£—8E (RY) SRR FE AR 5,000,000 TER TER HEBTER
BRAH

306 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41. AT X EMB AT FEE @)
COMPANY (Continued)

Issued and fully paid  Proportion ownership Proportion of
Place of incorporation/ share capital/Paid-up interest held by voting power held by
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation  registered capital the Company the Company Principal activities
SEMERIL RIS BETRERRE FAEREZ TRARFEZ
WEATAE HEME BEEmEE PR e L) RERELA TEEH
2022 2021 2022 2021
—S_E |2 F |ZR_"F | ZBCF
% % % %
Jiyi Industrial Investment The PRC N/A 80% N/A 80% N/A " Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*
E-EERE (R + T EH ~EA TBR REER
BB (BRED)
Shenzhen Shenjilian Trading  The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% N/A 100% N/A~ Bulk commodity
Co., Ltd* trading
FITHFERES H AE#30,000,0007T B NER ARERER
ARAR
Guangjilian (Guangzhou) ~ The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% 100% 100% 100%  Bulk commodity
Trading Co., Ltd* trading
BEH (B B2 HE AR #30,000,0007% ArEmES
BRRAH
Shenzhen Jiyi New Energy ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 51% N/A 51% N/A " Investment holding
Technology Co., Ltd
RE—HERRRER F AR 100,000,00077 51% ~ER 51% TER REER
/A
Guangxi Jiyi New Energy The PRC RMB5,000,000 73% N/A 73% N/A " Investment holding
Technology Co., Ltd
ERE—HEREREER + A #5,000,0007 73% TER 3% TER BREER
A
Sinosat Asia Trading Co., Ltd  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
FEDNEZERAT A 1T 100% 100% 100% 100% HEERK
*  The English name is for identification purpose only * o HEXEBFEERH

E—ERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41. AT X EMB AT FHE @)
COMPANY (Continued)

All the principal subsidiaries operate predominantly in their FFEXTENBRARBEERNRKESEZ
respective places of incorporation/establishment. SEMARIL, PRI B IE o

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the ERIRARBDEEDAFIELELE
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected BXEREEFEZLAEBRNBRAT &
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of other ERA REEMWEB AR ZFBERER
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in R EREAR IR

particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting BMENBASEREMNESESNREGH
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the RS AR B FE -
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42, ZATIMBIR AR FEERER

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2022 202
RMB’'000 RMB 000
ARBETFT NEEFT

Non-current assets JERENE E
Investment in a subsidiaries RBABNKRE 254,468 254,468
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B A B 7R IE 81,846 74,913
Other receivables H g U srIE - 21,617
Right-of-use assets ERESE 43 225
336,357 351,223

Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE Wb 8 A B 7R I8 485,932 243,110
Amount due from a related party & Wit F8 Bt 75 TR 1B - =
Prepayments and other receivables TE FRIE & H At FE WLRIE 533 315
Bank balances and cash RITHEEGRNRIRE 519 131
486,984 243,556
Current liabilities e e s

Amounts due to subsidiaries FET BT B A B FRIE - 1,169
Amount due to a related party FE 1 R BG: 75 TR 893 818
Other payables HAE I 416 3,775
Convertible loan notes P EMER 44,014 37,110
Lease liabilities HEaE 41 181
45,364 43,053
Net current assets RENE EFE 441,620 200,503

Non-current liabilities JERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaRE = 53
Net assets BEFE 777,977 551,673

Capital and reserves e s B i e
Share capital il 112,112 75,223
Reserves B 665,865 476,450
Total equity R 4B RE 777,977 551,673

E—RBRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42, ZATIMBIRRARFEBEERR &
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves TRATHEZES
Convertible Share-
Contingent loan notes based
Share  consideration equity Translation payment  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserves reserve losses Total
AHRER
Rz ER URNAER Fit
RiVEE  SARERE e =1 PASEN: 1] | @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

ANRE T ANRE T ANRE T NEETFT NEBTFT NEBTFT NEETFT

At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—&—H—H 441,567 33,577 28 20,709 4,207 (29,847) 470,241
Loss for the year FREE - - - L = (,126) (4,126)
Other comprehensive expense  FREMPEBS
for the year - - - 1,858 - - 1,858
Arising from acquisition of ELBNERBAR
subsidiaries 22,522 (31,356) - - - - (8,834)
Conversion of convertible loan B AR RETZH
notes (Note 29) (Hfe29) 17,018 - (10) - - - 17,008
Lapse of share options BRELY - - - - (1,775) 1,775 -
Recognition of equity-settled AUBRARERZ
share-based payments NURDAERNT
(Note 34) (Hft34) - - - - 303 - 303
At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ-&
1 January 2022 +ZA=+-Hk
—E-"%-HA—-H 481,107 2,221 18 22,567 2,735 (32,198) 476,450
Loss for the year FREE - - - = = (13,110) (13,110)
Other comprehensive income  FREMPEE
for the year - - - 1,858 - - 1,858
Issue of shares BIRG 174,412 - - - - - 174,412
Exercise of share options 1TiEERRE 17,105 = = = = = 17,105
Conversion of convertible loan B RRETZH
notes (\ote 29) (H£29) - = (18) = = = (18)
Lapse of share options (Note 34)  SERRIESRAN (Hfz£34) - - - - (2,735) = (2,735)
Recognition of equity-settled RSB RAE R Z R D
share-based payments RHERIR
(Note 34) (Hft34) - - - - 11,903 - 11,903
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZE
+-A=+-AH
672,624 2,221 - 24,425 11,903 (45,308) 665,865
31 0 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG M5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 & ZE_ZE_"HF+_A=+—HIFE

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 February 2023, the hearing of the Company’s petition
for the Capital Reduction under the Capital Reorganisation
was held on 15 February 2023 at 9:30 a.m. (Cayman Islands
time) before the Court, and on 15 February 2023 (Cayman
Islands time), the Court made an order confirming the Capital
Reduction and such order together with the minutes approved
by the Court containing the particulars required under the
Companies Law with respect to the Capital Reduction are to
be filed and duly registered with the Registrar on 17 February
2023 (Cayman Islands time). Upon the Registration, all the
conditions precedent for the implementation of the Capital
Reduction and the Share Sub-Division have been fulfilled. For
further details in relation to the effective date of the Capital
Reduction and the Share Sub-Division, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 17 February 2023.

Besides above, there is no other material subsequent event
undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

43, FREHAEERIA

RIEZ=F"HF+tB &x28E5FH
BRABMHAEBET ZRKAHBE2FENRAE
R_E_=F"_F+HB LFAR=1+%
(FREHERME) RERET KR
“=HZHA+HHB (REHERME) AR
EE<HEERAH B AREESERKL
ERRHUE S B R BEFTRE W K& A HI
BBz EEmLRRFRERIN =
FZR+tH FEEERE BEXMER
RIEXEBRL -NERRE  BHERAHIR &
RPN B S MEG B EER B
28 B S B Rk A B 0 IR A AR A H BR RV #E —
THB FRRAABHBAZSI=F
“BAt+tHmAL-.

B XIS AR B RARER
CoEtC A=+ A&EEAERS
MRS E R EAEA PR EE
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEMBHRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 BE_ZT__H+_A=+—HLFE

The consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial reporting periods as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group are summarised

below:

RESULTS

Revenue WA

Loss/(profit) before tax BriRATES R, (aF))

Income tax expenses P8R

Loss/(profit) for the year FREE/ (8F))

Total comprehensive loss/ FRNEEEER/
(income) for the year (W) 48%8

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEMEE
Total liabilities aE8EE
Total equity R 4BEE
312 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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E 3

For the year ended 31 December

#E+_A=+—HLEE

AEERBEAERCERGREMHRERLZ
BELEAMBREAZGEEZE - BEERER
BHaE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C B —F EITF E-hE BE-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEFIT |NEETFT ANEBEFT ANEEFT ANEEFT
559,763 458,296 446,915 573,675 599,478
(39,799) 11,789 13,219 16,729 18,451
(117) (3,925) (2,759) (3,659) (6,159)
(39,916) 7,864 10,460 13,070 12,292
(33,065) 8,737 14,645 35,167 15,394
BEREH

At 31 December

w+=-—HA=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C B —F EITEFE E-hE BE-)N\E
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBEFIT |\NEETT ANEBEFT ANEEFT ANEEFT
1,358,841 1,203,357 1,080,132 929,930 743,963
453,737 505,479 405,691 394,368 250,241
905,104 697,878 674,441 535,562 493,722
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